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The Honourable Senator Neiman moved that a budget of
$2,500 be adopted to cover various expenses incurred up until
the end of the 1989-90 fiscal year:

Transportation and communications $1,000.00
Other expenses 1,500.00
TOTAL $2,500.00

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Marchand moved that the Stand-
ing Committee on Aboriginal Peoples meet regularly on Tues-
days between 8 o’clock a.m. and 11 o’clock a.m. in room 356-S
of the Centre Block.

After debate, the motion was withdrawn.

The Honourable Senator Marchand moved that the Com-
mittee retain the services of the Research Branch of the
Library of Parliament to carry out research for the Commit-
tee.

That the Chairman, on behalf of the Committee, direct
research officers to prepare studies, analyses and summaries.

After debate, the motion was withdrawn.
The Committee reviewed matters to be considered at a later

date.
At 10:55 o'clock a.m., the Committee adjourned to the call

of the Chair.

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 21, 1990
(2)

The Standing Senate Committee on Aboriginal Peoples met
this day at 12 o’clock noon in room 356-S of the Centre Block,
the Chairman, the Honourable Len Marchand, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Chaput-Rolland, Macquarrie, Marchand and Watt. (4)

Other Senator present: The Honourable Paul Lucier, for the
Honourable Willie Adams.

In attendance: The Honourable Senator Molgat.

Also in attendance: From the Research Branch of the
Library of Parliament: Wendy Moss and Patricia Bégin,
Research Officers; Marc Leclair, Assistant to Senator Mar-
chand.

The Committee met in camera to discuss its future activi-
ties.

The Chairman tabled the First Report of the Sub-committee
on Agenda and Procedure:

“Your Sub-committee met on Tuesday, March 13, 1990 and
agreed on the following recommendations:

That the Committee hold regular meetings on Monday
afternoon, from 3 o’clock p.m. to 6 o’clock p.m.;

That the Committee examine a draft order of reference call-
ing for a special study on the historical relations between the
Government and aboriginal peoples, including a contemporary
analysis of the major issues facing aboriginal peoples;

That until such time as the Senate adopts the order of refer-
ence calling for a special study, the Committee retain the

L’honorable Sénateur Neiman propose 1’adoption d’un bud-
get de 2,500.00 $ afin de faire face & diverses dépenses d’ici la
fin de I’année fiscale 1989-1990:

Transport et communications 1 000 00
Autres dépenses 1 500 00
TOTAL 250000%

La motion, mise aux vois, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Marchand propose que les séances
régulieres du Comité permanent des peuples autochtones se
tiennent les mardis entre 8hO00et 11 h 00, a la salle 356-S de
’Edifice du Centre.

Aprés discussion, la motion est retirée.

L’honorable sénateur Marchand propose que le Comité
retienne les services du Service de recherche de la Bibliotheque
du Parlement, pour la réalisation de travaux de recherche pour
le Comité.

Que le président, au nom du Comité, dirige les attachés de
recherche pour la préparation d’études, d’analyses et de résu-
més.

Aprés discussion, la motion est retirée.

Le Comité examine les questions qu’il devra étudier plus
tard.

A 10 h 55, le Comité suspend ses travaux, jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

LE MERCREDI 21 MARS 1990
2)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des peuples autochtones se
réunit aujourd’hui 4 12 h 00, a la piece 356-S, Edifice du Cen-
tre, sous la présidence de I’honorable sénateur Len Marchand
(président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Chaput-Rolland, Macquarrie, Marchand et Watt. (4)

Autre sénateur présent: L’honorable Paul Lucier, pour
I’honorable Willie Adams.

Egalement présent: L’honorable sénateur Molgat.
Aussi présents: Du Service de la recherche de la Bibliothe-

que du Parlement: Wendy Moss et Patricia Bégin, attachées
de recherche; Marc LeClair, adjoint du sénateur Marchand.

Le Comité se réunit a huis clos pour discuter de ses travaux
futurs.

Le président présente le Premier Rapport du Sous-comité du
programme et de la procédure:

«Votre Sous-comité s’est réuni le mardi 13 mars 1990 et a
convenu de faire les recommandations suivantes:

Que le Comité tienne ses séances réguliéres les lundis aprés-
midi, de 15 h 00 a 18 h 00.

Que le Comité examine un projet d’étude spéciale ainsi
qu’un projet d’ordre de renvoi y afférant, portant sur les rela-
tions historiques entre le Gouvernement et les peuples autoch-
tones, y compris une analyse actuelle des importantes ques-
tions auxquelles sont confrontés les peuples autochtones.

Que le Comité, dans I'attente de I’adoption par le Sénat d’un
ordre de renvoi pour une étude spéciale, retienne les services
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professional services of the Library of Parliament’s research
officers to handle its research needs.

That the Committee examine a draft budget covering its
regular activities for the 1990-91 fiscal year with a view to
adopting such a budget.

That the Committee invite national native organizations to
give evidence on Monday, April 30 and on Monday, May 7,
1990 at meetings to be held from 9 o’clock a.m. to 12 o’clock
noon and from 1:30 o’clock p.m. to 5 o’clock p.m.

The Honourable Senator Macquarrie moved that the report
of the Sub-committee be adopted.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

After debate, the motion which reads as follows: “That
regular meetings of the Standing Senate Committee on
Aboriginal Peoples be held on Mondays beginning at 3 o’clock
p-m. in room 356-S of the Centre Block” was withdrawn.

The Honourable Senator Chaput-Rolland moved,
That the following proposed order of reference be submitted
to the Senate for its approval:

“That the Standing Senate Committee on Aboriginal Peo-
ples be authorized to study and report on the relations between
the Aboriginal Peoples and the Government of Canada,
including a contemporary analysis of the critical issues facing
Aboriginal Canadians; and that the Committee present its
final report no later than March 31, 1991.”

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

A proposed legislative budget for the fiscal year ending
March 31, 1991 was discussed and changes were made. A new
version will be presented at the next meeting of the Commit-
tee.

The Honourable Senator Marchand moved that representa-
tives of six national native organizations be invited to give evi-
dence at meetings to be held on three consecutive Fridays,
namely May 4, May 11 and May 18, 1990. The witnesses
would represent the Assembly of First Nations, the Inuit
Tapirisat of Canada, the Native Council of Canada, the Metis
National Council, the Native Women’s Association of Canada
and the National Association of Friendship Centres.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

At 2 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of
the Chair.

TUESDAY, APRIL 10, 1990
(3)

The Standing Senate Committee on Aboriginal Peoples met
this day in camera at 9:35 o’clock a.m. in room 356-S of the
Centre Block, the Chairman, the Honourable Senator Len
Marchand, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Chaput-Rolland, Fairbairn, Hébert, Macquarrie, Muir,
Marchand and Watt. (7)

professionnels des attachés de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement, pour les besoins en recherche du Comité.

Que le Comité examine, en vue de son adoption, un projet de
budget portant sur les activités réguliéres du Comité pour
I’année financiére 1990-91.

Que le Comité invite les témoignages d’organisations
autochtones nationales les lundis 30 avril et 7 mai 1990, lors de
séancesde 9h00a 12h00de 13 h 304 17 h 00.

L’honorable sénateur Macquarrie propose que le rapport du
Sous-comité soit adopté.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

La motion suivante: «Que les séances réguliéres du Comité
sénatorial permanent des peuples autochtones soient tenues les
lundis, 4 partir de 15 h 00, 4 la salle 256-S, Edifice du Centre,»
aprés débat, fut retirée.

L’honorable sénateur Chaput-Rolland propose,—
Que le projet d’ordre de renvoi suivant soit soumis & ’appro-
bation du Sénat:

«Que le Comité sénatorial permanent des peuples autochto-
nes soit autorisé a entreprendre une étude spéciale sur les rela-
tions entre les peuples autochtones et le gouvernement du
Canada, comprenant une analyse actuelle des questions crucia-
les auxquelles les Autochtones du Canada doivent faire face, et
a en faire rapport. Que le Comité présente son rapport final au
plus tard le 31 mars 1991.

La motion, mise aux voix, fut adoptée.

Un projet de budget pour la législation, pour I'exercice
financier se terminant le 31 mars 1991 fut discuté, et des
modifications apportées. Une nouvelle version sera présentée
lors de la prochaine réunion du Comité.

L’honorable sénateur Marchand propose la tenue de trois
journées d’audiences avec des représentants de six organisa-
tions autochtones nationales les vendredis 4 mai, 11 mai et 18
mai 1990, soit I’Assemblée des premiéres nations; Inuit Tapiri-
sat du Canada; le Conseil national des Autochtones du
Canada; le Conseil national des Métis; I’Association des fem-
mes autochtones du Canada et le «National Association of
Friendship Centres».

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

A 14 h 00, le Comité suspend ses travaux, jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

LE MARDI 10 AVRIL 1990
(3)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des peuples autochtones se
réunit aujourd’hui 4 huis clos, 4 9 h 35, 4 la piéce 356-S, Edi-
fice du Centre, sous la présidence de I’honorable sénateur Len
Marchand (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Chaput-Rolland, Fairbairn, Hébert, Macquarrie, Muir, Mar-
chand et Watt. (7)
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The Honourable Senator Hébert moved that a $15,000
budget to cover various expenses incurred up until the end of
the 1990-91 fiscal year be adopted.

Professional and other services $6,000
Transportation and communications 3,000
Other expenses $6,000
TOTAL $15,000

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

The members discussed the upcoming work of the Commit-
tee.

After considering a list of possible witnesses, the Committee
retained the names of the following organizations: the
Canadian Human Rights Commission, the National Associa-
tion of Friendship Centres and the Indigenous Bar Association.

At 10:10 o’clock a.m., the Committee adjourned to the call
of the Chair.

FRIDAY, MAY 4, 1990
4)

The Standing Senate Committee on Aboriginal Peoples met
this day at 9:05 o’clock a.m. in room 356-S of the Centre
Block, the Chairman, the Honourable Len Marchand, presid-
ing. i
Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Adams, Bielish, Fairbairn, Hébert, Macquarrie and Mar-

chand. (6)
Also present: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Wendy Moss and Patricia Bégin, Research Offi-

cers.
Witness:

From the Inuit Tapirisat of Canada:

Mr. John Amagoalik, President.

The Committee began its consideration of its Order of Ref-
erence dated March 29, 1990, providing for a study of the rela-
tions between the Aboriginal Peoples and the Government of
Canada, including the critical issues facing Aboriginal Canadi-

ans.

The witness made a statement and answered questions.

At 11:50 o’clock a.m., the Committee adjourned to the call
of the Chair.

ATTEST:

L’honorable sénateur Hébert propose ’adoption d’un budget
de 15,000.00 $, afin de faire face 4 diverses dépenses d’ici la
fin de ’année financiére 1990-91:

Services professionnels et autres 6 00000 $
Transports et Communications 3000 00
Autres dépenses 6 000 00
TOTAL 15 000.00 §

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.
Le Comité se penche sur les travaux futurs du Comité.

Le Comité, aprés considération d’une liste de témoins possi-
bles, retient les organisations suivantes: la Commission cana-
dienne des droits de la personne; la «National Association of
Friendship Centres» et I'dIndigenous Bar Associatiop.

A 10 h 10, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

LE VENDREDI 4 MAI 1990
(4)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des peuples autochtones se
réunit aujourd’hui a 9 h 05, 4 la piéce 256-S, Edifice du Cen-
tre, sous la présidence de I'honorable sénateur Len Marchand
(président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Adams, Bielish, Fairbairn, Hébert, Macquarrie et Marchand.
(6)

Aussi présents: Du Service de la recherche de la Bibliothe-
que du Parlement: Wendy Moss et Patricia Bégin, attachées
de recherche.

Témoin:

De Inuit Tapirisat du Canada:
M. John Amagoalik, président.

Le Comité commence I’étude de son Ordre de renvoi daté du
29 mars 1990, soit d’entreprendre une étude sur les relations
entre les peuples autochtones et le gouvernement du Canada
comprenant une analyse actuelle des questions cruciales aux:
quelles les Autochtones du Canada doivent faire face, et & en
faire rapport au plus tard le 31 mars 1990.

Le témoin fait une déclaration et répond aux questions.

A1l h 50, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
Serge Pelletier
Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Tuesday, February 20, 1990

[Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Aboriginal Peoples met
this day at 9.30 a.m. to organize the activities of the commit-
tee.

Mr. Serge Pelletier, Clerk of the Committee: Honourable
senators, as clerk of the committee, I call the meeting to order.
Your first duty is to elect a chairman. I am ready to receive
motions to that effect.

Senator Adams: I nominate Senator Len Marchand for
chairman.

Senator Fairbairn: I second that motion.

The Clerk of the Committee: If there are no other motions, I
declare the nominations closed.

Hon. Senators: Hear, hear.
Senator Fairbairn: It has been a long time coming.

The Clerk of the Committee: It is moved by Senator Adams
that Senator Marchand be elected chairman of this committee.
Is it your pleasure, honourable senators, to adopt the motion?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Clerk of the Committee: Carried. I invite Senator Mar-
chand to take the chair.

Senator Len Marchand (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: That is the toughest election I have ever
faced. Thank you all for your support, and, as Senator Fair-
bairn said, it has been a long time coming. Some of us have
been speaking out in the Senate and in other fora about the
formation of a Standing Committee on Aboriginal Peoples. I
believe Senator Watt introduced a motion in the Senate sug-
gesting the formation of a special committee on aboriginal
issues.

We have a very serious and large task ahead of us. We have
the talent and we have the commitment to make a real contri-
bution. As your chairman, I shall be very non-partisan. I do
not believe that the issues this committee shall face should be
treated in a partisan way. Even though I have been elected a
Liberal in the other place three times, I plan to be non-parti-
san, as | believe that the issues of this committee supersede all
other issues. There have been good times and bad times and
good policies and bad policies over the 123 years since Confed-
eration, so I do not believe that finger pointing should be a
part of the operations of this committee. I shall also be very
non-interventionist. I shall depend a great deal upon the mem-
bers of the committee to keep things going. So, without further
ado, thank you again, and let us get down to work.

The next item of business is the election of the deputy chair-
man. We are open to nominations.

Senator Macquarrie: Mr. Chairman, I would like to put my
congratulations in a tangible form by nominating an excellent
person for deputy chairmané I refer to Senator Robert Muir,
who has been a denizen of the Hill for 33 years—

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le mardi 20 février 1990
[Traduction)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des autochtones se réunit
aujourd’hui, 2 9 h 30, pour planifier ses travaux.

M. Serge Pelletier, greffier du Comité: Honorables séna-
teurs, en tant que greffier du Comité, je déclare la séance
ouverte. Votre premiére tiche consiste 4 vous élire un prési-
dent. Je suis prét a recevoir les mises en candidature.

Le sénateur Adams: Je propose le sénateur Len Marchand
comme président.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: J’appuie la motion.

Le greffier du Comité: Comme il n’y a pas d’autres candida-
tures, je déclare la période de mises en candidature close.

Des voix: Bravo!
La sénatrice Fairbairn: Il en aura fallu du temps.

Le greffier du Comité: Le sénateur Adams propose que le
sénateur Marchand soit nommé a la présidence du Comité.
Plait-il aux honorables sénateurs d’adopter la motion?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le greffier du Comité: Adoptée. Jinvite le sénateur Mar-
chand 2 venir occuper le fauteuil.

Le sénateur Len Marchand (président) occupe le fauteuil.

Le président: C’est bien I’élection la plus difficile que j'aie
jamais gagnée. Je vous remercie tous de votre appui et, comme
I’a dit le sénateur Fairbairn, il en aura fallu du temps. Certains
d’entre nous réclament depuis longtemps au Sénat et sur
d’autres tribunes la formation d’un comité permanent des
autochtones. Je crois que le sénateur Watt a méme déposé une
motion au Sénat pour que soit créé un comité spécial des ques-
tions autochtones.

La tache qui nous attend est 4 la fois sérieuse et énorme.
Nous disposons de tout le talent et de tout 'engagement néces-
saires pour faire une contribution réelle. En tant que président,
je serai des plus impartiaux. A mon avis, les questions dont
traitera ce comité ne devraient pas faire I'objet de sectarisure
politique. Méme si j’ai été élu sous la banniére libérale a trois
reprises dans I'autre Chambre, j'ai l'intention de demeurer
neutre, étant donné que les questions dont nous sommes saisis
ont préséance sur tout le reste. Il y a toujours eu alternance de
bons et de mauvais moments et de bonnes et de moins bonnes
politiques depuis les 123 ans qu’existe la Confédération, de
sorte que le blime n’a pas sa place ici. Par ailleurs, je suis un
adepte de la non-intervention. Je compte sur la bonne volonté
des membres du Comité pour assurer le bon déroulement des
réunions. Encore une fois, je vous remercie et, sans plus atten-
dre, je propose que nous mettions I’épaule 2 la roue.

Le point suivant a I’ordre du jour est ’élection d’un vice-pré-
sident. J’attends les mises en candidature.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Monsieur le président, j’aimerais
concrétiser mes félicitations en proposant a la vice-présidence
une personne vraiment exceptionnelle. Je parle du sénateur
Robert Muir, un habitué de la Colline depuis 33 ans—
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[Text] [Traduction)

Senator Muir: Denizen? Le sénateur Muir: Un habitué?

Senator Macquarrie: . . . and even a Cape Bretonner has to Le sénateur Macquarrie: . . . et méme un habitant du Cap-

have learned something in that length of time. I nominate
Senator Muir.

Senator Fairbairn: As another denizen of the Hill, I am
happy to second that motion.

Senator Adams: I move that nominations close.

The Chairman: It has been moved that nominations close. Is
it your pleasure to adopt the motion?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

Senator Muir: Mr. Chairman, as a denizen and as a real old
hack of the Hill and Honorary Grand Chief of the Micmacs
for a long period of time, I take a great deal of pleasure in
accepting my election, although it was a tough_ ba_ttle, to this
position. I hope and trust that you will remain in excellent
health and that you will be at every meeting to take care of
things. Thank you.

The Chairman: Congratulations, Senator Muir. The next
item is the designation of the subcommittee on agenda and
procedure.

Senator Neiman: Is this the steering committee?
Senator Fairbairn: That is the new name for it, yes.

Senator Molgat: Why don’t we leave that matter in the
hands of the chairman in consultation with the two whips?
The Chairman: We can do that.

Senator Neiman: I suggest that a committee of three is suf-
ficient, although we may want more members than that to con-
sult on basic problems.

The Chairman: If we had five, it would give us some leeway
in case of absenteeism. How does three Liberals and two Con-
servatives sound?

Senator Molgat: It sounds fair.

The Chairman: [ would ask the deputy chairman to cqnsult
with his caucus about the members for the Conservative side.

Senator Muir: That will be done.

Senator Adams: Mr. Chairman, are all the members of the
committee present this morning? .If not, we should keep those
who are absent in mind when making appointments.

Senator Fairbairn: Senator Hébert is missing.
Senator Macquarrie: Senator Spivak is also missing.

The Chairman: Perhaps the wisdom of Senator Molgat
should prevail, as it is not urgent that we appoint the members
this morning. We shall consult and work through the whips.

Let us leave item four and skip to the holding of meetings
without a quorum and the printing of evidence. Pursuant to

Breton doit avoir appris quelque chose durant toutes ces
années. Je propose le sénateur Muir.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: En tant qu’habituée moi-méme de la
Colline, c’est avec plaisir que j’appuie la motion.

Le sénateur Adams: Je propose que la période de nomina-
tion soit close.

Le président: Il a été proposé de clore la période de mises en
candidature. Vous plait-il d’adopter la motion?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le sénateur Muir: Monsieur le président, en tant qu’habitué
qui connait vraiment bien la Colline et comme j’ai été pendant
longtemps Grand chef honoraire des Micmacs, je suis fort heu-
reux d’accepter le poste, bien que la bataille fiit dure. J’espére
que vous demeurerez en excellente santé de sorte que vous
serez présent a chaque réunion. Je vous remercie.

Le président: Félicitations, sénateur Muir. Nous devons
maintenant désigner les membres du sous-comité du pro-
gramme et de la procédure.

Le sénateur Neiman: S’agit-il du comité de direction?

La sénatrice Fairbairn: C’est ainsi qu’on I’appelle mainte-
nant, en effet.

Le sénateur Molgat: Pourquoi ne pas confier la question au
président, qui consultera les whips en chef?

Le président: Nous pourrions procéder ainsi.

Le sénateur Neiman: A mon avis, trois membres suffiraient,
bien qu'’il faille peut-étre a I'occasion en ajouter afin de débat-
tre de questions de fond.

Le président: Si le comité comptait cinq membres, nous
aurions suffisamment de marge de manceuvre en I’absence
d’un d’entre eux. Que diriez-vous d’y nommer trois Libéraux et
deux Conservateurs?

Le sénateur Molgat: Cela me semble équitable.

Le président: Je demanderais au vice-président de s’entrete-
nir avec son caucus des membres qui pourraient représenter
son parti.

Le sénateur Muir: Je le ferai.

Le sénateur Adams: Monsieur le président, les membres du
Comité sont-ils tous présents ce matin? Dans la négative, il ne
faudrait pas oublier les absents lorsque nous procéderons aux
nominations.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Le sénateur Hébert est absent.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Il manque aussi le sénateur Spi-
vak.

Le président: Peut-étre devrions-nous suivre les sages con-
seils du sénateur Molgat, puisqu’il n’est pas urgent de nommer
les membres ce matin. Mieux vaut, je crois, s’entretenir avec
les whips et collaborer avec eux.

Nous laisserons donc le point 4 en suspens et passerons 4 la
tenue de réunions en I'absence de quorum et 4 la publication
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rule 70, a committee chairman may be authorized to hold
meetings to receive evidence and to authorize the printing of
evidence when a quorum is not present. It does allow the chair-
man to begin a meeting when the witnesses are present even if
a quorum is not present. There are two options: First, pursuant
to rule 70, the chairman be authorized to hold meetings to
receive evidence and to authorize the printing of evidence
when a quorum is not present; second, pursuant to rule 70, the
chairman be authorized to hold meetings to receive and
authorize the printing of evidence when a quorum is not
present, provided that a member from both the government
and the official opposition is present. Which would you like,
one or two? I am open to motions.

Senator Neiman: Have we decided on a quorum?
The Chairman: Do we need a motion for the quorum?
Senator Neiman: I believe that is in our rules.

The Chairman: [s that correct, Senator Molgat?
Senator Molgat: I don’t have my rules with me.

The Chairman: The committee has powers of its own, so if
you would like a motion to that effect, I will entertain a motion
that the quorum be made up of five with a split of three and
two as between the political parties.

The Clerk of the Committee: The quorum for a standing
committee is usually four, and the committee can meet without
a quorum provided—

The Chairman: Are we talking about the steering commit-
tee?

Senator Neiman: I am referring to the general meeting.

The Clerk of the Committee: In that case, the quorum is
four.

Senator Austin: Why do we not follow the general practice
of standing committees and stay with a quorum of four, and if
we need a motion to that effect, consider it moved.

The Chairman: Are you saying that we do not meet without
a quorum?

Senator Molgat: Mr. Chairman, there is the problem some-
times where witnesses are invited, particularly from long dis-
tances, and for some valid reason you do not have a quorum.
In such cases it is important that you still be able to hear the
witnesses. We do not want to have the expense of the witnesses
travelling all this way and then not hearing them. So I think
we need a motion to hear witnesses without a quorum.

Senator Neiman: When hearing witnesses who have come
from a distance I think it important that there be sufficient
senators here to hear them. With a system in place whereby we
can replace people quite quickly from time to time, I think
there should be no problem in pulling four or five people

[Traduction)

des témoignages. Aux termes de I’article 70 du Réglement, le
président d’'un comité peut étre autorisé a tenir des réunions
pour entendre les témoignages et 4 en autoriser la publication
en I'absence de quorum. Ainsi, le président peut déclarer la
séance ouverte lorsque les témoins sont présents, en I'absence
de quorum. Deux choix s’offrent: que le président soit autorisé
a tenir des réunions pour entendre des témoignages et a en
autoriser la publication en I'absence de quorum; ou que le pré-
sident soit autorisé 4 tenir des réunions pour entendre des
témoignages et 4 en autoriser la publication en ’absence de
quorum, 4 condition que soient présents un membre du parti
au pouvoir et un membre de I'Opposition officielle. Quelle
solution préférez-vous? Je suis prét a recevoir les motions.

Le sénateur Neiman: Nous sommes-nous prononcés au sujet
du quorum?

Le président: Avons-nous besoin de mettre une motion aux
voix 4 cet égard?

Le sénateur Neiman: Je crois que c’est ce que prévoit le
Réglement.

Le président: Est-ce exact, sénateur Molgat?

Le sénateur Molgat: Je n’ai pas mon exemplaire du Régle-
ment.

Le président: Le Comité a des pouvoirs qui lui sont propres,
de sorte que si vous désirez adopter une motion a cet effet, je
recevrai une motion voulant que le quorum soit de cing, c’est-
a-dire trois Libéraux et deux Conservateurs.

Le greffier du Comité: Le quorum d’un comité permanent
est habituellement de quatre, et le Comité peut siéger en
I'absence de quorum & condition—

Le président: Parlons-nous ici du comité de direction?

Le sénateur Neiman: Je parle de séance générale.
Le greffier du Comité: Alors, le quorum est de quatre.

Le sénateur Austin: Pourquoi ne pas suivre la pratique géné-
rale des comités permanents et conserver un quorum de quatre;
si une motion doit étre adoptée a cet effet, j’en fais la proposi-
tion.

Le président: Etes-vous en train de dire que nous ne pouvons
nous réunir sans quorum?

Le sénateur Molgat: Monsieur le président, parfois, il arrive
que des témoins sont invités a comparaitre, qu’ils parcourent
de longues distances et que, pour une quelconque raison vala-
ble, il n’y a pas quorum. Il importe alors de pouvoir quand
méme entendre les témoignages. Il ne faudrait tout de méme
pas causer de tels déplacements coiliteux sans entendre les
témoins. C’est pourquoi j’estime que nous avons besoin d’adop-
ter une motion qui permettrait d’entendre les témoignages sans
quorum.

Le sénateur Neiman: Lorsque nous entendons des témoins
venus de loin, il est essentiel, je crois, que suffisamment de
membres soient présents pour les entendre. Si le Comité se
dote des moyens de remplacer les gens assez rapidement a
’occasion, nous ne devrions pas avoir de difficulté 4 atteindre
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together to form a quorum. I think it only a simple courtesy
that there be sufficient people here to hear witnesses who have
made the effort to appear before us.

Senator Macquarrie: This is a situation which we often face
in life: It is the lesser of two evils. It must be borne in mind
that quite often our committees are in rooms that must be
vacated at a certain time because of other committees sitting.
You may have a witness from out of town who will have to
wait 25 minutes until we can come up with a quorum of four
or five people. Therefore, I believe it would be practical to do
what some committees do, which is to have a listening quorum
with representation from each party and not necessarily wait
until we have four senators present. However, Mr. Chairman, I
would be willing to go along either way.

Senator Adams: I think, Mr. Chairman, we should keep
with having a quorum comprising three senators and the chair-
man. With the present number of senators in the room I do not
think there will be any problem getting four people together.

The Chairman: There seems to be consensus that we keep
with the rules, of meeting with a quorum of four, which is in
the standing order.

Item No. 6 on the agenda deals with the printing of commit-
tee proceedings. What is the usual practice?

The Clerk of the Committee: Usually a committee has about
500 copies of its proceedings printed. We can go with that for
the moment and later, if there is a demand for.the printed pro-
ceedings, we can reconsider the number of copies.

Senator Neiman: Are you talking about 500 copies in each
language? ‘

The Clerk of the Committee: One copy of the proceedings
incorporates both official languages.

Senator Adams: A figure of 500 sounds low, but I agree that
if we require more we can put forward another motion.

I move, Mr. Chairman, that we print 500 copies of the
minutes of the proceedings of these meetings.

The Chairman: Is it agreed, honourable senators?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: The next item on the agend.a deals with the
reimbursement of travelling expenses to witnesses. In the
absence of an approved budget, pursuant to rule 83, the Clerk
of the Senate is authorized to pay a reasonable travelling and
living expense to every witness who is invited or summoned to
appear before the committee. Preferably only one representa-
tive per organization has the expenses relmburseq, bqt a max-
imum number of three representatives per organization could
claim expenses if such is the decision of the committee.

Mr. Fairbairn: Mr. Chairman, I so move.

The Chairman: Is it agreed, honourable senators?

[Traduction)

le quorum. C’est une question de simple courtoisie que d’avoir
présents le nombre suffisant de gens pour entendre les témoins
qui se sont déplacés pour comparaitre.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Comme cela arrive si souvent,
nous devons choisir le moindre de deux maux. Il faut se rappe-
ler que, bien souvent, nos comités siégent dans des salles qui
doivent étre libérées 4 une heure précise parce que d’autres
comités doivent y tenir séance. Il peut arriver qu’un témoin de
I'extérieur doive attendre 25 minutes, jusqu'a ce qu’il y ait
quorum de quatre ou cinq. Par conséquent, il serait pratique de
suivre ’exemple de certains comités qui, pour entendre les
témoignages, exigent comme quorum qu’il y ait représentation
de chaque parti. Cela évite d’avoir a attendre qu’il y ait quatre
sénateurs sur place. Cependant, monsieur le président, je
m’accommoderai d’une solution ou 'autre.

Le sénateur Adams: Je crois, monsieur le président, que
nous devrions nous en tenir au quorum de trois sénateurs et du
président. Etant donné le nombre de sénateurs présents ici
aujourd’hui, je ne crois pas que nous ayons des problémes a en
réunir quatre.

Le président: On semble étre d’accord pour s’en tenir aux
régles, c’est-a-dire 4 un quorum de quatre, tel que dispose le
Reéglement.

La publication des délibérations du Comité figure au point 6
de I'ordre du jour. Quelle est la pratique courante 4 cet égard?

Le greffier du Comité: Habituellement, le Comité fait
imprimer environ 500 exemplaires de ses délibérations. Nous
pouvons nous en tenir la pour l'instant et modifier le nombre
plus tard, selon la demande.

Le sénateur Neiman: S’agit-il de 500 exemplaires dans cha-
que langue?

Le greffier du Comité: Les délibérations sont toujours
publiées dans les deux langues officielles, cdte a cote.

Le sénateur Adams: Cinq cents exemplaires ne semblent pas
beaucoup. Cependant, je suis d’accord que, si nous devons en
publier davantage, nous pouvons adopter une motion en ce
sens.

Monsieur le président, je propose que nous fassions impri-
mer 500 exemplaires des délibérations du Comité.

Le président: Les honorables sénateurs sont-ils d’accord?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Le prochain point 4 I'ordre du jour traite du
remboursement des frais de déplacement des témoins. En
I’absence d’un budget approuvé, l'article 83 du Reéglement
autorise le greffier du Sénat 4 défrayer des frais de déplace-
ment et de subsistance raisonnables pour chaque témoin invité
ou assigné a comparaitre devant le Comité. De préférence, les
dépenses d’un seul représentant de chaque organisme sont
remboursées, mais jusqu’a trois représentants d’un méme orga-
nisme peuvent réclamer des dépenses si le Comité en décide
ainsi.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Monsieur le président, j’en fais la
proposition.

Le président: Les honorables sénateurs y consentent-ils?
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Hon. Senators: Agreed. Des voix: D’accord.

The Chairman: The next item on the agenda deals with sign-
ing authority for certifying accounts. According to guideline
3:05, Appendix 11 of the Rules of the Senate, signing author-
ity for the certifying of accounts payable by the committee
must be established by a recorded motion of the committee.
The authorization may be assigned to one or several members
of the committee or its clerk.

It has been the practice in some of the other committees
that, pursuant to guideline 3:05, Appendix III of the Rules of
the Senate, signing authority certifying accounts for payment
on behalf of the committee be delegated to the chairman of the
committee for amounts of $500 or more and to the clerk of the
committee for amounts less than $500.

Is there any discussion on that item?

Senator Adams: Would only one person be required to sign,
Mr. Chairman?

The Chairman: The clerk and the chairman would have the
authority to sign. For amounts of $500 and less the clerk
would sign, and for amounts over $500 the chairman of the
committee would be required to sign.

Senator Neiman: Would the clerk be required to sign along
with the chairman?

The Chairman: Does it require two signatures?
The Clerk of the Committee: It would require only one.

Senator Neiman: It seems to me that in the committee I
chaired for a while we always required two signatures—the
clerk and the chairman.

Senator Adams: If the chairman is not available can the
deputy chairman substitute?

The Chairman: I think the Rules of the Senate are fairly
clear. What we are trying to establish is the level of authority.
If the amount is $500 or more the chairman must sign and if it
is up to $500 then only the clerk is required to sign. It is an
administrative matter. I am sure many of you have gone
through the frustrating process of having to sign every little
cheque for $5.

Senator Adams: Mr. Chairman, I move the adoption of the
motion.

The Chairman: [s it agreed, honourable senators?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: The next item on the agenda is to deal with
the budget of the committee to March 31, 1990. We have had
some discussion on this. A modest budget is required until the
end of the fiscal year 1989-90 to cover some expenses. A more
comprehensive budget will be prepared for 1990-91, taking
into account a probable order of reference requesting the com-
mittee to conduct business and studies. The application for
budget authorization is attached.

The Clerk of the Committee: It is a budget of $2,500 for the
remainder of the month of February and for the month of
March. I would suggest $1,000 for transportation and com-
munications and $1,500 for other expenses.

Le président: Nous passons maintenant a I'autorisation de
signer pour certifier les comptes. Selon la directive 3:05 de
I’Annexe III du Reéglement du Sénat, I’autorisation de signer
pour certifier les comptes 4 payer d’'un comité doit étre établie
au moyen d’une décision du comité. L’autorisation peut étre
conférée 4 un ou plusieurs membres du comité ou 4 son gref-
fier.

Certains autres comités ont pour pratique, aux termes de
cette directive, de déléguer au président du comité I’autorisa-
tion de signer pour certifier les comptes a4 payer au nom du
comité lorsque les sommes atteignent 500 $ ou plus et au gref-
fier du comité, pour les sommes inférieures a 500 §.

A-t-on des commentaires 4 cet égard?

Le sénateur Adams: Une seule personne aurait besoin de
signer, monsieur le président?

Le président: Le greffier et le président auraient le pouvoir
de signer. Ainsi, pour les factures de moins de 500 $, le greffier
signerait, alors que les autres reléveraient du président du
comité.

Le sénateur Neiman: Faudrait-il que le greffier co-signe
avec le président?

Le président: Faut-il deux signatures?
Le greffier du Comité: Non, une seule suffit.

Le sénateur Neiman: II me semble que, lorsque je présidais
un comité, nous devions toujours produire deux signatures,
celle du greffier et celle du président.

Le sénateur Adams: Si le président ne peut signer, la signa-
ture du vice-président est-elle valable?

Le président: Je crois que le Réglement du Sénat est assez
clair 4 cet égard. Nous essayons de déterminer, en fait, le
champ d’application de ce pouvoir. Si la somme est de 500 $
ou plus, le président doit signer alors que si elle est inférieure a
ce seuil, le greffier peut agir seul. Il s’agit d’'une question admi-
nistrative. Je suis sir que bon nombre d’entre vous ont déja
éprouvé la frustration d’avoir 4 signer chaque petit chéque de

58.

Le sénateur Adams: Monsieur le président, je propose que la
motion soit mise aux voix.

Le président: Les honorables sénateurs sont-ils d’accord?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Point suivant, le budget de notre Comité
jusqu’au 31 mars 1990. Des discussions ont déja eu lieu 4 ce
sujet. Jusqu’a la fin de ’année 1989-1990, nous n’avons besoin
que de crédits modestes pour payer certaines dépenses. Un
budget plus complet devra étre dressé pour 1990-1991, étant
donné que I'on peut s’attendre 4 un ordre de renvoi demandant
au Comité de délibérer et de faire des études. La demande
d’approbation du budget est en annexe.

Le greffier du Comité: Un budget de 2 500 $ est demandé
pour la période allant d’ici 4 la fin de mars. A mon avis,
1000 $ devraient étre inscrits au poste du transport et des
communications et 1 500 $, aux autres frais.
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The Chairman: Honourable senators, this is an amount
which would tide us over until the end of the fiscal year. We
may not spend any of it but it is a contingency amount that
would allow us to function until the end of the fiscal year. If it
sounds reasonable, I would entertain a motion to adopt this.

Senator Watt: Mr. Chairman, before we talk about the
budget, perhaps we should spend a little time and talk first
about the order of business of this committee and then we can
determine exactly what kind of a budget we will need.

The Chairman: I am in your hands. That is fine. I was going
to come to that under “other business”, but perhaps you are
right and we should do that before we discuss the budget,
except that it is so close to the end of the fiscal year that we
were just going to do something that was practical.

Senator Watt: It is entirely up to you, Mr. Chairman as to
how you wish to deal with it. If you want to deal with the
budget first, before the order of business, that is entirely up to
you.

The Chairman: I will hear you on the point you have raised
because it is a perfectly legitimate concern. Perhaps we should
look at other items before we look at the budget. The only
thinking that went into this was that we were so close to the
end of the fiscal year that we did not think it would be practi-
cal for the committee to get much done before the end of the
fiscal year. That just comes from a conversation I had with the
clerk and Gary O’Brien. However, go ahead.

Senator Watt: There are two ways to look at this. Either we
call upon the native leaders to give us some guidance in terms
of where we should be focusing and in terms of the respon-
sibilities of this committee, or we, as a committee, could try to
define what our specific responsibility is going to be. That
would definitely carry us up until March. If you are consider-
ing a very small budget to carry us until the end of March,
then what is proposed might be sufficient if we are just going
to discuss this among ourselves to try to iron out certain things
before we call upon the national native leaders to have them
give us guidelines as to the principal areas we might focus on.
If that is the next step we are going to be taking, then I am in
agreement with what you are proposing for an amount. I think
that might be sufficient to take us up to the end of March.

I think we need to discuss this internally anyway, to try to
iron out a few things among ourselves, because we might all
have different ideas as to what approach we might want to
take. I think we should first put our house in order before we
start calling upon the witnesses.

So, if that is the case, [ am in agreement with the amount
that is put forward, provided that we are not going to run out
of money within the next month or so. We should also build i'n
a flexibility to call upon the supplementary budget in case it is
not enough. So I will move that motion to go ahead.

Senator Fairbairn: Following along with what Senator Watt
said, if we did get into a position where we wanted to hear the
leadership of various organizations very soon, travel expenses
and that kind of thing would be paid through the motion we

38188—2
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Le président: Honorables sénateurs, ce budget nous permet-
trait de nous rendre jusqu’a la fin de I’année budgétaire. I se
peut que nous n’en dépensions pas un sou, mais mieux vaut
prévoir que guérir. S’il vous semble raisonnable, je recevrai
une motion en vue de le faire adopter.

Le sénateur Watt: Monsieur le président, avant d’aborder
cette question, j'aimerais que nous prenions le temps de parler
de 'ordre des travaux du Comité, de sorte que nous puissions
déterminer exactement quel genre de budget il nous faut.

Le président: Libre 4 vous, je n’y vois pas d’objection. Je
pensais aborder cette question dans le cadre des «Autres ques-
tions», mais peut-étre avez-vous raison et devrions-nous agir
ainsi avant de décider du budget. Par contre, la fin de I’année
approche, et j’espérais que nous puissions avoir une approche
pratique.

Le sénateur Watt: A vous d’en décider, monsieur le prési-
dent. Si vous voulez parler budget d’abord, avant ’ordre des
travaux, libre a vous.

Le président: Nous commencerons par discuter du point que
vous avez soulevé puisqu’il est parfaitement légitime. Peut-étre
devrions-nous examiner d’autres points avant de passer au
budget. La seule raison pour laquelle nous I’avons abordé tout
de suite était que nous approchions de la fin de I’année budgé-
taire et que nous n’estimions pas pratique pour le Comité
d’abattre une tache énorme avant la fin de cette année. Tout
cela découle de 'entretien que j’ai eu avec le greffier et avec
M. Gary O’Brien. Cependant, vous pouvez poursuivre.

Le sénateur Watt: Je vois deux fagons de procéder. Soit que
nous demandions conseil auprés des chefs autochtones quant a
I'objet des travaux et aux responsabilités du Comité ou qu’en
tant que comité, nous tentions de définir notre mandat. Cela
nous occuperait certes jusqu’en mars. Si vous envisagez un trés
petit budget afin de nous rendre jusqu’a la fin de mars, alors ce
qui est proposé pourrait bien sufffire, 4 condition de nous en
tenir & des questions internes avant de faire appel aux chefs
autochtones nationaux pour connaitre les problémes a étudier.
Si c’est 1a la prochaine étape, alors je suis d’accord avec ce que
vous proposez comme budget. Je crois que cela devrait suffire
jusqu’a la fin de mars.

De toute fagon, j’estime que nous devrions en discuter entre
nous, essayer de déterminer ensemble ’approche a adopter car
nous pourrions avoir des avis différents. Donc, réglons les ques-
tions internes avant de commencer a entendre des témoins.

Si c’est le cas, alors je suis d’accord avec le montant avancé,
a condition que nous ne soyons pas pris de court avant la fin de
I’année. Nous devrions également prévoir le cas ol nous
aurions besoin d’un budget supplémentaire. Je propose donc
que la motion soit mise aux voix.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Dans la foulée de ce que disait le
sénateur Watt, si nous décidions d’entendre les dirigeants des
divers organismes sous peu, la motion que nous avons adoptée
plus t6t devrait permettre de payer les frais de déplacement et
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made before and would not be part of the budget we are now
discussing. So if we were to call people in, we would not be
running out of money with this budget. The witnesses would be
paid for out of another area, I think. Is that not true? If we
wished to call in the native leaders or leaders of organizations,
and that required the expenditure of some funds for travel, and
so on, they would be paid out of a different stream of budget-
ing rather than what we are discussing now.

The Clerk of the Committee: Yes. I was told that, if we have
witnesses we would have to have an order of reference to pay
for them. There is another option. There could be a motion in
the Senate, for example, asking the committee to examine the
annual report of the Department of Indian Affairs and North-
ern Development.

Senator Fairbairn: There seems to be some concern that this
budget would be sufficient. What I am trying to establish is
whether the travel expenditures for witnesses come out of
another budget or out of what you are proposing for the end of
the fiscal year?

The Chairman: Could I perhaps back up a little bit on that?

Senator Fairbairn: We have just passed a motion about
travel expenses. Does that come from somewhere else or does it
come from this item?

The Chairman: No. We have just passed the authority. Does
that all come out of the budget that we approved for our com-
mittee, or does it come from another pot?

The Clerk of the Committee: It comes from another pot.
The Chairman: So we are okay.

Senator Molgat: Provided we have an order of reference
from the Senate. I think we should ask that the report of the
Indian Affairs Department be referred to us. That leaves us
wide open.

The Chairman: Let me get back on track so that I can per-
haps add a little more to the answer I gave Senator Watt about
why this was put in. Practically we did not really feel that we
could get much done before the beginning of April. If we are
going to start calling some of the groups, we have to give them
a bit of notice. Since the decision to form the committee was
made a few weeks ago in the Senate, I have been talking to
some of the groups already and they are very willing to come
and make a presentation to us, but they need some lead time.
So with all of that considered, just to be sure that we could
cover some expenses, we felt that we should have this minimal
budget; and once we get our order of reference for some busi-
ness for the committee for the next six months, we will come
up with a budget for the next fiscal year that we may think we
need. That is the background, Senator Watt, that went into
this.

Senator Watt: I have just one other point. I do agree that
there has to be some lead time given to possible witnesses. I
think we also have to notify them in advance that the commit-
tee has had discussions and that we feel that these are the fun-
damental issues that we should focus on rather than saying
that we are here as a committee to listen to the groups. The
groups should know the possible approaches we would like

[Traduction)

autres, de sorte qu’ils ne reléveraient pas du budget dont il est
maintenant question. Méme si nous entendons des témoins,
nous ne serons pas 4 court de fonds. Les témoins seraient payés
d’une autre source, je crois. Est-ce exact? Si nous désirions
faire comparaitre les chefs autochtones ou les dirigeants
d’organismes et qu’il fallait pour cela débourser des frais de
déplacement, etc., ces frais reléveraient d’un autre budget?

Le greffier du Comité: Oui. On m’a informé que si nous fai-
sons comparaitre des témoins, nous devrons disposer d’un ordre
de renvoi pour les payer. Il y a cependant une autre solution.
Une motion pourrait étre déposée au Sénat, par exemple, pour
demander au Comité d’examiner le rapport annuel du minis-
tére des Affaires indiennes et du Nord canadien.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: La suffisance des fonds dans ce bud-
get semble susciter certaines préoccupations. Je tente de déter-
miner si les frais de déplacement des témoins viennent d’un
autre budget ou de ce que vous proposez pour nous rendre
jusqu’a la fin de I'année.

Le président: Pourriez-vous reprendre, s’il vous plait?

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Nous venons d’adopter une motion
concernant les frais de déplacement. Les frais de comparution
des témoins viennent-ils d’une autre source ou de ce budget?

Le président: Non, nous n’avons qu’autorisé le paiement.
Jignore si ces frais viennent du budget que nous venons
d’approuver ou d’une autre source.

Le greffier du Comité: D’une autre source.
Le président: Bon, alors tout va.

Le sénateur Molgat: A condition que nous disposions d’un
ordre de renvoi du Sénat. Je crois que nous devrions demander
que le rapport du ministére des Affairs indiennes nous soit ren-
voyé, sans quoi nous risquons de nous briler les doigts.

Le président: Permettez-moi de faire un retour en arriére
afin d’ajouter des explications 4 la réponse que j'ai donnée au
sénateur Watt concernant la raison d’étre de cette motion. En
toute franchise, nous n’estimions pas pouvoir accomplir beau-
coup d’ici le début d’avril. Si nous commengons a entendre cer-
tains groupes, nous devons leur donner un certain préavis.
Comme la décision du Sénat, de former le Comité remonte a
quelques semaines, j’ai pris I'initiative de m’entretenir avec
certains des groupes et ils sont bien disposés a venir nous faire
une présentation, mais ils ont besoin de temps pour se prépa-
rer. Tout bien considéré, juste pour nous assurer que nous
pourrions payer certains frais, nous estimions qu’un budget
minimal suffirait; dés que nous recevrons notre ordre de renvoi
pour les six prochains mois, nous présenterons un autre budget
pour la prochaine année budgétaire. Voild, sénateur Watt,
comment ont été prises les décisions.

Le sénateur Watt: J’aurais une autre petite question. Je con-
viens qu’il faut donner aux témoins le temps de se préparer. Je
crois aussi que nous devons les aviser d’avance que le Comité a
délibéré et qu’il estime qu’il devrait se concentrer sur des ques-
tions de fond plutdt que de leur dire quen tant que comité,
nous sommes préts 4 les entendre. Les groupes devraient con-
naitre les approches éventuelles que nous aimerions voir prises



4-5-1990

Peuples autochtones I 1S

[Text]

them to take into consideration. I, for one, know what the
problems are in the areas of the people I represent, and I
would say the same thing for Senator Adams and Senator
Marchand. We might want to go so far as trying to establish a
priority list. My issues are not necessarily the same issues as
Senator Marchand’s relating to the Indians.

Rather than just saying that we, as a committee, want to
hear all that these groups have to say, I think we will have to
try to take some control of the direction in which we want to
proceed. I think the onus is upon us to try to indicate, as far as
possible, what we want to focus on, rather than just listening to
what the groups want to focus on. The reason I am saying that
is because I have had some experience in the past that indi-
cates that unless we take control, the committee could lose
control of the direction. I do not want to get into that. Other-
wise, we are going to end up spending a lot of time not coming
up with any substantial issues on which to focus. That is one
area.

The other is in respect of the $1,000 travel expense. I do not
think we should be concerned about travelling anywhere at this
point until we put our house in order. Therefore, this provision
of $1,000 for travel purposes should be ruled out completely, in
my opinion. Let us do some in house work first and then begin
to define where we are going from there. If it is agreeable, that
is my recommendation.

Senator Neiman: Mr. Chairman, I have just a couple of
comments. First, I agree with Senator Watt that we should
start by planning our own program before we consider the call-
ing of witnesses. I think it is important to set our own direc-
tion. Normally, at least in the committees I have been on,
when we are planning future business of the committee we
hold one or more in camera sessions so that everyone can toss a
number of ideas around on an informal basis. I would like to
recommend that that be done, not only with this item on the
steering committee but on other items. I think that would be
helpful.

In the meantime, although we probably will not use this
item as such, it does fall under transportation and communica-
tions and that could involve expenditures just to let people
know what we are doing. It is a very modest budget, it is a
temporary budget and I see no objection to approving it as it
is.

The Chairman: Could I have a motion to that effect?

Senator Neiman: Yes. | move that we approve the budget in
its present form.

The Chairman: It is moved by Senator Neiman that we
adopt the budget, which is an interim one of $2,500, until the
end of this fiscal year. Is there any discussion?

Senator Muir: Mr. Chairman, I listened closely to what
Senator Watt had to say and I agree with most of what he has
said. Senator Neiman is also quite correct. I am all in favour
of agreeing to this budget at the moment without going ahead
and saying that I agree with everybody, which is a real politi-
cian’s deal. I do not agree. I think we have galloped right into
this in a hurry, as Senator Watt has said, and, as Senator Nei-

[Traduction]

en considération. Pour ma part, je connais les problémes qui
sévissent dans les régions que je représente et je crois qu'il en
va de méme pour le sénateur Adams et le sénateur Marchand.
Nous pourrions vouloir pousser jusqu’a établir une liste de
priorités. Les questions qui sont pour moi prioritaires ne le sont
pas forcément pour le sénateur Marchand.

Plutdt que d’affirmer que nous, en tant que comité, désirons
entendre tout ce que ces groupes ont a dire, je crois que nous
aurions avantage a orienter un peu les témoignages. Je crois
qu’il nous incombe de faire ressortir le plus possible les sujets
qui nous intéressent plutdt que de simplement entendre les
questions d’intérét de ces groupes. La raison pour laquelle je
dis cela, c’est que j'ai appris d’expérience qu’a moins d’indi-
quer la voie, le Comité risque de ne pouvoir diriger les inter-
ventions. Je préfére ne pas m’'attarder a cette question. Autre-
ment, nous allons y consacrer beaucoup de temps sans toucher
aux questions de fond dont nous voulons traiter. Voild un
point.

L’autre concerne les frais de déplacement de 1 000 $. Je ne
pense pas que nous ayons a nous inquicter de voyages i ce
stade, jusqu’a ce que nous ayons planifié nos travaux. Par con-
séquent, cette provision de 1000 § est inutile, selon moi. Fai-
sons de la régie interne, puis définissons I’ordre de nos travaux.
Si cela convient aux autres, voila ma recommandation.

Le sénateur Neiman: Monsieur le président, j’aurais quel-
ques commentaires & faire. Tout d’abord, je suis d’accord avec
le sénateur Watt que nous devrions commencer par planifier
nos propres travaux avant d’envisager la comparution de
témoins. Je crois qu’il incombe de nous établir une voie 4 sui-
vre. Habituellement, du moins au sein des comités dont j’ai fait
partie, lorsqu’il établit 'ordre futur de ses travaux, le comité
siége une ou deux fois a huis clos de sorte que les idées peuvent
fuser librement. J'aimerais recommander qu’on le fasse, non
seulement au sujet du comité de direction mais 4 propos
d’autres questions également. Je crois que cela nous serait
utile.

Entre-temps, bien que nous n’ayons probablement pas grand
recours 4 ce poste, il releve effectivement du transport et des
communications et nous pourrions avoir 4 engager des dépen-
ses pour communiquer ce que nous faisons. Le budget est trés
modeste, il est temporaire, de sorte que je ne vois pas pourquoi
on s’y opposerait.

Le président: Me présenterez-vous une motion a cet effet?

Le sénateur Neiman: Je propose que nous approuvions le
budget dans sa forme actuelle.

Le président: Le sénateur Neiman propose que nous adop-
tions le budget provisoire de 2 500 $ qui nous ménera jusqu’a
la fin de I'année budgétaire. A-t-on des commentaires?

Le sénateur Muir: Monsieur le président, j’ai écouté attenti-
vement ce que le sénateur Watt avait 4 dire et je suis d’accord
avec lui en grande partie. Le sénateur Neiman aussi a parfaite-
ment raison. Fidele 4 I'image que I'on se fait du politicien, je
suis tout disposé a approuver le budget tout de suite, sans pour
autant étre d'accord avec tout le monde. Je ne suis pas
d’accord. Je crois, comme I'a dit le sénateur Watt, que nous
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man has said, we should have however many meetings are
necessary to see what we are going to do, what we will think
about and what our plans might be. I think we are putting the
cart before the horse, to use an old cliché, at this point.

The Chairman: As [ said earlier, this is just an interim
budget. I would like to come back to it in the future to zero in
on what Senator Watt has said. For the moment I will ask
whether senators agree to adopt the motion made by Senator
Neiman that we accept the budget. All those in favour?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: All those against? I declare the motion car-
ried.

We have one other housekeeping item, a time slot for regu-
lar meetings. Consultations have been held with the two whips
and the Committees Branch as to the most convenient time
slot for regular meetings of the committee, given numerous
constraints. The consensus was that the regular meeting should
be held on Tuesday mornings from 8 a.m. to 11 a.m. in room
356-S.

Senator Neiman: Three hours?
The Chairman: This is what we got from the whips.

Senator Austin: I have two other committees meeting in that
block, Social Affairs at 9:30 and Banking at 11:00.

The Chairman: All of that has been taken into account by
the whips.

Senator Watt: I would like to make another point, which is
in conjunction with what I was saying earlier. Realizing that
members of the committee have other responsibilities from
time to time, I am going to ask a question. I might be out of
line here, and if I am I would like to be told.

Is there flexibility within the rules and procedures of the
Senate such that we do not necessarily have to come up with
an exact format in terms of the way we normally conduct our
business? If somehow we can be clear on the issues we are
dealing with, we can schedule meetings in such a way that we
will not have to be bogged down on a daily or weekly basis to
deal with those specific issues. If we could schedule the com-
mittee in such a way that we do not have to meet on a regular
basis, that would be the best thing to do, in my opinion. Our
resource people know what they are doing. They know the
issues and can compile the information to develop the concepts
and bring those concepts to the committee from time to time.

I think we can learn to appreciate a lot more in terms of
wanting to be productive. What I am asking is: Why do we
have to meet on a weekly basis? I am not necessarily in agree-
ment with meeting on a weekly basis. Often when people meet
on a daily or weekly basis they end up wasting a lot of time
because they pass over the issues repetitively. That is usually
because they do not have adequate resource people who know
what they are doing.

I just wanted to caution senators at this point that we might
want to expand on this a little before we come to decisions on

[Traduction)

avons sauté pieds joints dans cette question et, comme I'a dit le
sénateur Neiman, que nous devrions tenir toutes les réunions
nécessaires pour définir notre ordre des travaux, notre appro-
che et nos plans. Je crois que nous mettons la charrue devant
les beeufs, pour ainsi dire.

Le président: Comme je I'ai dit plus tdt, ce budget est provi-
soire. J'aimerais y revenir plus tard afin de délibérer de ce qu’a
dit le sénateur Watt. Pour I'instant, je demanderais aux séna-
teurs s’il leur plait d’adopter la motion présentée par le séna-
teur Neiman, c’est-d-dire que nous approuvions le budget.
Ceux qui sont en faveur?

Des voix: D’accord.
Le président: Contre? Je déclare la motion adoptée.

Autre point de régie interne, nous devons nous fixer une
période pour tenir nos réunions. Des consultations ont eu lieu
avec les deux whips en chef et avec la Direction des comités
quant au moment le plus propice pour siéger, étant donné les
nombreuses contraintes. Tous s’entendent pour fixer les séan-
ces aux jeudis matin, de 8 heures 4 11 heures, dans la salle
356-S.

Le sénateur Neiman: Trois heures?
Le président: C’est ce que nous conseillent les whips.

Le sénateur Austin: Je participe a deux autres comités sié-
geant dans cet immeuble, celui des affaires sociales a 9 h 30 et
celui des banques a 11 heures.

Le président: Les whips en ont tenu compte.

Le sénateur Watt: J'aimerais également faire valoir un
autre point qui est relié 4 ce que je disais plus tot. Conscient
que les membres du Comité ont d’autres responsabilités a
I'occasion, je poserai une question. Peut-étre que j’enfreins le

réglement et, le cas échéant, j’aimerais qu’on me le dise.

Le Réglement du Sénat est-il assez souple pour nous per-
mettre de ne pas forcément avoir 4 couler dans le béton la
fagon dont se déroulent nos travaux? Si, d’une quelconque
fagon, nous pouvons nous entendre sur les questions dont nous
traiterons, nous pouvons échelonner les réunions de fagon a ne
pas avoir 4 traiter chaque jour ou chaque semaine de ces ques-
tions précises. Le mieux, 4 mon avis, serait que le Comité
puisse se réunir de fagon irréguliére. Nos personnes-ressources
savent ce qu’elles font. Elles connaissent les grandes questions
et peuvent réunir I'information nécessaire pour cerner les ques-
tions et les soumettre au Comité & 1’occasion.

Je crois que nous pourrions chercher a étre plus productifs.
Jaimerais savoir pourquoi nous devons nous réunir toutes les
semaines. Je ne suis pas forcément d’accord avec ce principe.
Bien souvent, lorsque les gens se réunissent chaque jour ou
chaque semaine, ils perdent beaucoup de temps parce qu'ils
passent constamment en revue les mémes questions. Habituel-
lement, cela se produit lorsque les personnes-ressources n’ont
pas la compétence voulue.

Je désirais simplement signaler aux sénateurs que nous
pourrions peut-étre approfondir cette question avant de pren-
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the timing of the meeting. We have to begin to look at the sub-
stance of things. Right now, all we are doing is scheduling
things without attaching substance.

The Chairman: I tried to characterize this, Senator Watt, as
a housekeeping matter. We will work this out as we go along,
certainly. The clerk has had a discussion with the whips and
they say this is the slot they want us to have. Senators all know
that there is some flexibility in the Senate. When other com-
mittees are not meeting at certain time slots, of course, we can
move into those. If we want to plan our business as a commit-
tee such that we will meet all day Friday or all day Monday,
we can also do that.

This is just a protective mechanism the whips are using for
themselves, 1 suppose, when they say that we can have that
time slot.

Senator Watt: May I raise another point? Is there flexibility
within the rules and procedures of the Senate such that we can
meet once every two weeks or is it mandatory that we meet
every week?

Senator Austin: No, a committee can meet at the call of the
chair.

Senator Fairbairn: Nothing is mandatory in that regard.

The Chairman: Nothing is mandatory. We can make a lot of
rules ourselves in a sense.

Senator Macquarrie: One of my favourite committees has
not met for five years.

Senator Muir: If Senator Watt will excuse me, with regard
to our party—I have seen the Whips arranging it, and I w1_sh
Senator Phillips was here—it is nice to be assigned to commit-
tees, but you are supposed to be at three committees at 11
o’clock on Monday morning. That is well planned.

Senator Watt: Another thought that comes to mind just lis-
tening to this discussion is that maybe once every two weeks is
too much. Mr. Chairman, you can take this into consideration.
I understand it is up to the chairman how we proceed, but I
would like to make a recommendation for you to take into con-
sideration. I think the onus is upon the chairman to come up
with some meaningful scheduling of the committee, but I do
not want to meet every day because we are not going to get
anywhere. I would rather focus on a piece of work and meet
later on when I am ready, at which time I will be able to dive
into the issues, as I am sure will other members of the commit-
tee. So we are going to need some time to do the work outside
of meetings.

Senator Neiman: Mr. Chairman, one of the problems of try-
ing to arrange the time for a committee is trying to mesh the
hours of the various other committees so that there will be suf-
ficient staff available. It sounds as if Tuesday morning,
although the whips will know better than I, might prove dif-
ficult with respect to the availability of members of the staff
such as the stenographers. They usually have to cover three or

[Traduction)

dre des décisions quant a I’heure et au lieu des réunions. Nous
devons commencer & examiner le fond des questions. Pour
’instant, nous ne faisons qu’établir des calendriers sans sub-
stance.

Le président: J'ai tenté de qualifier ceci, sénateur Watt, de
questions de régie interne. Certes, nous réglerons toutes ces
questions 2 mesure que nous progressons. Le greffier s’est
entretenu avec les whips qui ont décidé du moment auquel ils
voulaient que nous nous réunissions. Les sénateurs savent tous
que le Sénat comporte une certaine marge de souplesse. Lors-
que d’autres comités ne siégent pas a certains moments, bien
siir, nous pouvons utiliser ces heures. Si nous désirons planifier
les travaux de notre comité de sorte que nous siégerons toute la
journée le vendredi ou toute la journée le lundi, nous pouvons
également le faire.

Il s’agit tout simplement d’une forme de protection que se
donnent les whips, je suppose, lorsqu’ils disent que nous avons
a notre disposition cette période de la journée.

Le sénateur Watt: Puis-je poser une autre question? Le
Réglement du Sénat permet-il de ne siéger qu’une fois toutes
les deux semaines, ou la réunion hebdomadaire est-elle obliga-
toire?

Le sénateur Austin: Non, un comité peut siéger a la convo-
cation du président.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Rien n’est obligatoire 4 cet égard.

Le président: Rien n’est obligatoire. En un certain sens, nous
pouvons composer nos propres réegles.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Un de mes comités favoris n’a pas
siégé depuis cinq ans.

Le sénateur Muir: Si le sénateur Watt veut bien me le per-
mettre, en ce qui concerne notre parti, j’ai vu comment les
whips se consultent, et je souhaiterais que le sénateur Phillips
soit ici—c’est fort bien d’étre assigné a un comité, mais quand
vous devez assister 4 trois réunions qui se tiennent toutes 4 11
heures le lundi matin, ¢a, c’est ce que j’appelle de la planifica-
tion.

Le sénateur Watt: Autre chose, en vous écoutant, je me
demande si une réunion toutes les deux semaines ne serait pas
trop. Monsieur le président, vous pouvez prendre cela en consi-
dération. Je comprends qu’il appartient au président de décider
de la fagon de procéder, mais j’aimerais vous demander d’envi-
sager la possibilité. C’est a vous qu’il appartient de fixer un
calendrier utile pour le Comité. Cependant, je ne voudrais pas
de réunions quotidiennes car cela ne nous ménerait nulle part.
Je préférerais me concentrer sur une question en particulier et
en délibérer lorsque je suis prét, auquel moment je pourrai
vraiment m’y consacrer, tout comme d’autres membres du
Comité, j’en suis sir. Nous aurons donc besoin de temps pour
abattre le travail, une fois les réunions terminées.

Le sénateur Neiman: Monsieur le président, 'une des diffi-
cultés que comporte le choix des réunions d’un comité est la
conciliation avec les heures des divers autres comités, de sorte
que nous disposions du personnel voulu. Il me semble, bien que
les whips le sachent mieux que moi, que I’on pourrait avoir de
la difficulté a trouver du personnel le mardi matin, les sténo-
graphes par exemple. Habituellement, ils doivent assurer le
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four committees, and I think it is up to the chairman and vice
chairman at this point perhaps to apply a little pressure. |
think you are going to find that the whips are not going to let
us choose times or meet whenever we feel like it because that is
far too difficult. They have to plan their staff requirement
some way.

I have two suggestions. One is to consider sitting Tuesday
night, if that is agreeable to members of the committee, when
we need staff with us. I am specifically referring to the steno-
graphic and translation services. Perhaps we should think of a
Tuesday night meeting because it seems to me that there are
far too many committees overlapping on Tuesday morning.
Second, for the next couple of meetings I do not think we need
those services, because I think we should have in camera meet-
ings in order to get ourselves organized with respect to some of
this background material that Senator Watt was talking about.
After that we could consider whether it would be feasible to
meet every other Tuesday night or Tuesday at 5 or 6 o’clock. I
do not care. I am flexible on those times, but it seems to me
that Tuesday morning is one of the worst times that you could
choose from the point of view of duplication of other commit-
tees.

I would suggest that the Chairman, vice chairman and clerk
try to negotiate further with the whips and the clerk who
arranges the schedule for the future, but I do not think that for
the next couple of weeks we will need any services. We need in
camera meetings to decide when we should meet.

The Chairman: Thank you, Senator Neiman. We do not
need to dwell upon this. There are three other committees
meeting on Tuesday evening, and we have covered them. I do
not want to spend a lot of time on this now. We will talk to the
Whips and see if we can get something better than the 8
o’clock slot. We may have to go to it.

Senator Macquarrie: Long before I was born, David Lloyd
George said that you cannot wage war with the Sanhedrin and
he set up a small war cabinet. Many of these things that are
being discussed could be taken up with the steering committee,
which will then report back. When you get a whole group dis-
cussing what is the best night, it becomes very confusing. I
heard Senator Phillips—who is quite capable of saying no, by
the way—receiving a petition to change a certain committee,
and he said you can have any time on Monday or Friday that
you want.

Senator Watt: | have a suggestion, Mr. Chairman. I, for
one, would be more in favour of Tuesday morning. I am trying
to balance what you said about Tuesday night, because I think
better in the morning. I am ready to go to bed at night. I think
Tuesday morning would be more fruitful, even though I have
to travel all the way from Montreal, provided it is not too
early—for example, around 10 o’clock.

The Chairman: We will do our best.

Senator Fairbairn: I have one point, and I will not belabour
it. For people who have worked on this whole idea of having

[Traduction]

service pour trois ou quatre comités, et je crois qu’il incombe
au président et au vice-président d’exercer peut-étre des pres-
sions. Vous allez découvrir que les whips ne nous laisseront pas
libres de fixer le jour ni de nous réunir lorsque nous I’estimons
nécessaire parce que c’est beaucoup trop difficile. Ils doivent
planifier les besoins de personnel.

Jaurais deux suggestions. Peut-étre serait-il possible de se
réunir le mardi soir, si cela convient aux membres du Comité,
lorsque nous avons besoin de personnel. Je pense notamment
aux services de sténographie et de traduction. Peut-étre
devrions-nous envisager la possibilité de nous réunir le mardi
soir car il me semble y avoir beaucoup trop de comités qui sié-
gent en méme temps le mardi matin. Par ailleurs, pour les
quelques prochaines réunions, je ne crois pas que nous ayons
besoin de ces services, car j'estime que nous devrions délibérer
4 huis clos afin de réunir la documentation dont parlait le
sénateur Watt, aprés quoi nous pourrions voir s’il est possible
de se réunir tous les deuxiémes mardi soir, ou les mardis 4 17
ou 4 18 heures. Peu m’importe. L’un ou I'autre me convien-
drait. Il me semble tout de méme que le mardi matin est I’'un
des pires moments pour se réunir étant donné tous les autres
comités qui siégent.

Je suggérerais au président, au vice-président et au greffier
d’essayer de négocier davantage avec les whips et avec le gref-
fier qui établit le calendrier, mais je ne crois pas que nous
ayons besoin de services durant les quelques prochaines semai-
nes. Nous avons besoin de nous réunir & huis clos pour décider
du calendrier de nos réunions.

Le président: Je vous remercie, sénateur Neiman. Je ne crois
pas qu'il soit utile de s’attarder 4 cette question. Trois autres
comités se réunissent mardi soir, et nous en avons parlé. Je n’ai
pas besoin de consacrer beaucoup de temps a cette question
pour 'instant. Nous parlerons aux whips afin d’essayer d’obte-
nir une meilleure heure que 8 heures. Pourtant, nous pourrions
avoir a nous y conformer.’

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Bien avant que je sois de ce
monde, David Lloyd George a dit qu’on ne peut s’insurger con-
tre le Sanhédrin, et il a établi un petit conseil de guerre. Bon
nombre des questions débattues en ce moment pourraient étre
étudiées par le comité de direction qui nous en ferait ensuite
rapport. Quand tout un groupe se met a discuter du meilleur
soir pour tenir une réunion, la confusion s’installe. J’ai entendu
le sénateur Phillips, qui soit dit en passant est fort capable de
dire non, dise en recevant une requéte visant a déplacer les réu-
nions d’un certain comité: «Vous pouvez vous réunir a
n’importe quelle heure, le lundi ou le vendredi, a votre gré.»

Le sénateur Watt: Monsieur le président, j’aurais une sug-
gestion. Personnellement, je serais plus en faveur du mardi
matin. J'essaie de faire contrepoids & ce que vous avez dit 4
propos du mardi soir, car je crois que le matin serait préféra-
ble. Le soir, je suis prét & me coucher. Je crois que le mardi
matin serait plus productif, méme si je dois revenir de Mont-
réal ce matin-13, 4 condition que ce ne soit pas trop tot, par
exemple, a 10 heures.

Le président: Nous ferons de notre mieux.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: J’aurais un point a faire valoir et je
ne m'y attarderai pas trop longtemps. Il n’est pas facile au sein
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this committee for a considerable period of time, it is not an
easy thing in the Senate, as we have discovered, to establish a
standing committee. I think the people who have been pushing
it have done so because they felt the issue of the committee
was so important that it required this kind of recognition.

Throughout this discussion we have been aware that there
are only so many hours in the regular Senate working week,
and it may not be possible for this committee to meet during
those regular hours, which are full to the brim with other com-
mittees. All of us will have to give some thought to whether or
not we can accommodate this problem by looking at days like
Mondays and Fridays when the Senate is not sitting.

The Chairman: Thank you, Senator Fairbairn. We will leave
that, and I will have a steering committee meeting at which we
will discuss it further. Before we adjourn, I would like to
receive some direction about future business of the committee.
Senator Watt covered some items, but, as your chairman, I
would like some direction as to what we should be covering in
our future business. I am sorry. We are not ready for that yet.
We must discuss research staff. The Research Branch of the
Library of Parliament has already agreed to provide for two
research officers, Mrs. Wendy Moss and Mrs. Patricia Bégin,
who is a sociologist. The two researchers have prepared back-
ground material for the committee, which we will distribute.

Ms. Wendy Moss, Researcher: We have prepared very gen-
eral briefing materials on some of the major subject areas you
may encounter. There is a small revision to the French version
that is necessary. Therefore, we would like to hold it back a
day or two, and we will send it directly to your offices. If you
wish, I could run through the contents of the briefing docu-
ments.

The Chairman: There are other meetings at 11 o’clock this
morning.

Ms. Moss: There is one other problem. Depending on which
day you pick, Ms. Bégin may or may not be available. There-
fore, you would have to consider using other people.

The Chairman: We have been doing some presuming, so we
asked that this kind of background work be done.

I need a motion that the committee request the services of
the Research Branch of the Library of Parliament to conduct
research on behalf of the committee, that the chairman, on
behalf of the committee, direct the research staff on the prepa-
ration of studies, analyses and summaries.

Senator Fairbairn: I so move.

Senator Watt: I should like to ask a question, Mr. Chair-
man. Does the motion that has been put forward immediately
include the resource people? Without naming the people, does
that mean that we will be utilizing the resource people from
the Senate? May I have a clarification on that?

[Traduction)

du Sénat, comme nous en avons fait la découverte, de créer un
comité permanent. Je pense d ceux qui ont tant travaillé a
créer ce comité pendant si longtemps. Je crois que les gens qui
en ont defendu Iidée 'ont fait parce qu’ils estimaient la ques-
tion suffisamment importante pour avoir droit 4 ce genre de
reconnaissance.

Tout au long de ces délibérations, nous sommes conscients
que la semaine de travail ordinaire au Sénat ne comporte que
tant d’heures et qu’il n’est peut-étre pas possible pour notre
Comité de se réunir durant ces heures, déja remplies par les
réunions d’autres comités. Nous devrions réfléchir pour voir si
nous ne pourrions résoudre le probléme en nous réunissant des
jours comme les lundis et les vendredis, lorsque le Sénat ne
siege pas.

Le président: Sénateur Fairbairn, je vous remercie. Laissons
la question de coté. Le comité de direction en délibérera.
Avant d’ajourner, j'aimerais connaitre votre avis au sujet de
Iordre futur des travaux du Comité. Le sénateur Watt a men-
tionné certains points mais, en tant que président, j'aimerais
savoir de quoi vous voudrez traiter. Je m’excuse, le moment
n’est pas venu. Nous devons d’abord nous prononcer au sujet
du personnel de recherche. Le Service de recherche de la
Bibliothéque du Parlement a déja promis de nous fournir deux
agents de recherche, M™ Wendy Moss et M™ Patricia Bégin,
sociologue. Les deux recherchistes nous ont préparé de la docu-
mentation qui sera distribuée.

Mme Wendy Moss, recherchiste: Nous vous avons préparé
des documents de nature assez générale concernant certaines
grandes questions dont vous aurez peut-Etre a traiter. La ver-
sion francaise exige de légéres retouches. Par conséquent, nous
aimerions la conserver pour un ou deux jours de plus, aprés
quoi elle sera envoyée directement a vos bureaux. Si vous le
désirez, je pourrais passer briévement en revue le contenu des
documents.

Le président: D’autres réunions sont prévues a 11 heures, ce
matin.

Mme Moss: Je dois également signaler un autre probléme.
Selon le jour que vous choisirez, M™ Bégin ne sera peut-étre
pas disponible. Il vous faudrait alors avoir recours a d’autres
personnes.

Le président: Nous avons fait certaines suppositions, c’est
pourquoi nous avons demandé que ce genre de documentation
soit réunie.

11 faudrait que nous adoptions une motion établissant que le
Comité demande les services de recherche de la Bibliothéque
du Parlement pour effectuer des études en son nom, que le pré-
sident, au nom du Comité, dirige le personnel de recherche
concernant la préparation des études, des analyses et des résu-
més.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Je fais une proposition en ce sens.

Le sénateur Watt: J’aimerais poser une question, monsieur
le président. La motion mise de I'avant inclut-elle les person-
nes-ressources? Sans nommer qui que ce soit, faut-il entendre
que nous utiliserons les personnes-ressources du Sénat? Puis-je
avoir des éclaircissements a cet égard?
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The Chairman: These are the two people who will be
assigned from the Library of Parliament. We will have a
budget, and there will be an opportunity to hire outside
researchers.

When we present a budget for the committee, we will dis-
cuss the amount that we want for researchers. We will, as a
committee, hire outside researchers, depending on the subject
and on the area of expertise that we require.

Senator Watt: Mr. Chairman, I have an objection. I have
written a letter to the Senate, which is outlined in the brief I
have tabled. From the reply I received from the Clerk, I had
the impression that he knows what he is doing and we should
forget it. I do not believe that we have looked.at the résumés of
the research people. What does a sociologist have to do with
aboriginal issues?

Our people have been tremedously dampered and affected
by those kinds of people in the past. If we are going to have
resource people who are going to take the missionary
approach, I do not want to have any part of this committee. I
am serious about this, because it could destroy the direction of
where we want to go. These people normally have 101 reasons
why they cannot accept the approach we might want to take.

There are three kinds of so-called professional people that I
would rather not associate with. I do not want to offend any-
one, but I am just laying it out on the line. This is how I feel.

Senator Neiman: Mr. Chairman, with great respect to Sena-
tor Watt, we may be getting ahead of ourselves here. It is
important that we take whatever kind of help we can get.
There is no question that we are looking to the native people to
give us advice on the problems they are facing. They are our
first and primary source.

However, as Senator Watt has mentioned, we are going to
need background work prepared from time to time. We have a
very dedicated research staff in the Library of Parliament who
are there at no cost to this committee. Therefore, we can use
whatever additional funds we can secure for bringing in these
other people, as we need them from time to time. That should
be our objective. There is no question that we will want to hear
from the native people. That, of course, is the whole of point of
setting up this committee. I may also say that there is a great
deal of useful work that can be done for this committee to pre-
pare background material of different kinds.

The first thing we have to do is determine the direction of
this committee. Our real problem is that there are so many
problems in different areas that we will have a challenge trying
to focus ourselves. We should set up immediately our next
meeting in camera to look at the programming of this commit-
tee. The only thing we can usefully accomplish today is to pass
a motion to refer to this committee the report of the Depart-
ment of Indian and Northern Affairs and any other depart-
mental reports, such as from Health and Welfare that bear
directly on native concerns.

[Traduction]

Le président: Ces deux personnes seront affectées & notre
service par la Bibliothéque du Parlement. Nous disposons d’un
budget de sorte que nous pourrons, si I'occasion s’en présente,
engager des recherchistes de I'extérieur.

Lorsque nous présenterons le budget du Comité, nous abor-
derons la question des sommes & prévoir pour des recherchis-
tes. En tant que comité, nous engagerons des personnes de
I’extérieur, selon le théme et le champ de compétence voulus.

Le sénateur Watt: Monsieur le président, je m’y oppose. J'ai
adressé une lettre au Sénat, brievement exposée dans le
mémoire que j'ai déposé. D’aprés la réponse que j’ai regue du
greffier, j'avais I'impression qu’il savait ce qu’il faisait et que
nous n’avions pas a nous en inquiéter. Je ne crois pas que nous
ayons examiné les curriculum vitae des recherchistes. Quel lien
y a-t-il entre une sociologue et les questions autochtones?

Ce genre de personne a par le passé causé beaucoup de tort
a nos peuples. Si nos personnes-ressources sont du genre mis-
sionnaire, alors je ne veux rien avoir a faire avec ce comité. Je
suis trés sérieux, car ce seul point pourrait enlever toute valeur
a lorientation que nous prenons. Ce genre de personne peut
invoquer mille et une raisons pour faire opposition a I'approche
que nous désirons adopter.

Il existe trois genres de professionnels auxquels je préfére-
rais ne pas m’associer. Il n’est pas question d’offusquer qui que
ce soit, mais j'aime mieux étre franc et livrer le fond de ma
pensée.

Le sénateur Neiman: Monsieur le président, avec tout le res-
pect que je dois au sénateur Watt, nous allons peut-étre au
devant des coups. Il importe que nous dispositions de toute
I'aide que nous pouvons obtenir. Nous comptons indubitable-
ment sur les autochtones pour nous conseiller quant aux pro-
blémes qu’ils affrontent. Ils sont notre source premicre de ren-
seignements.

Cependant, comme I’a mentionné le sénateur Watt, nous
avons besoin de faire préparer de la documentation a I'occa-
sion. Le personnel de recherche fourni par la Bibliothéque du
Parlement est trés dévoué, et ses services ne nous coitent rien,
de sorte que nous pourrons affecter les fonds que nous aurons
obtenus a4 I’embauche d’autres experts, 4 mesure que nous en
aurons besoin. Ne perdons pas cet objectif de vue. Nous vou-
drons certainement entendre ’avis des autochtones. C’est bien
sir toute la raison d’étre de ce comité. J’aimerais également
ajouter qu’il y a une multitude de travaux utiles qui peuvent
étre faits pour le Comité afin de préparer de la documentation
de différents genres.

La premiére chose a faire, c’est de nous fixer une orienta-
tion. Il existe tant de problémes dans des domaines différents
que nous aurons de la difficulté a4 nous concentrer. Nous
devrions immédiatement prévoir de tenir la prochaine réunion
a huis clos afin d’étudier le programme du Comité. La seule
chose utile que nous puissons conclure aujourd’hui est d’adop-
ter une motion qui renvoie & notre Comité le rapport du minis-
tére des Affaires indiennes et du Nord canadien et tout autre
rapport ministériel, par exemple celui de Santé nationale et
Bien-étre social, qui influe directement sur les préoccupations
autochtones.
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We should decide today when we should have our next
meeting in camera in order to deal with the program that we
wish to follow.

Senator Watt: I believe we should delay making the decision
regarding the resource people we are going to attach to this
committee.

The Chairman: We do not need to pass the motion today.
We can circulate the CVs and then discuss it at a later date.

Senator Watt: I do not mind passing the motion, so long as
we do not mention the type of people we are going to be
accessing from the Senate library. If we are talking about the
concept, that is fine. However, if we are talking about the peo-
ple, then I will have to object to that.

Senator Neiman is right. Let us find out first what we are
going to focus on. I know what I want to focus on. She does
not know what she wants to focus on. Therefore, let us deal
with it, and then we will determine what kind of resource peo-
ple we need.

The Chairman: We do not need to pass that motion. We can
discuss it. Senator Watt has raised some rather gut-felt issues
that the people in our communities have expressed very sin-
cerely. I understand what he is saying. We can discuss this in
camera, as Senator Neiman has indicated. We have until 11
o’clock. I should like to move on to future business of the com-
mittee. We have heard about some of the things that we can
touch on from Senator Watt, Senator Neiman and others. I
should like to have some direction as to what our future busi-
ness should be. I should like to hear more discussion about how
we will proceed.

Senator Fairbairn: The discussion to date has already
indicated that we should set aside some time after the recess
for our first substantive in camera meeting to talk about the
areas that we might want to have as priorities for discussion. It
is probably essential that we do that before we get into who,
what, where and when we will hear from different people.

Part of the success of this committee will be the open rela-
tionship back and forth that we have with the aboriginal com-
munity. I should think that early in the game, after we have
decided among ourselves on the direction we think we should
take, we should hear from aboriginal leaders or the spokesmen
for major organizations about what they think our priorities
might be. That input from them is important before we launch
off in any firm direction of activity.

Senator Adams: I agree with Senator Fairbairn that it is
hard to make a decision as to what the future business of the
committee will be. You were elected chairman of the commit-
tee only about one hour ago. You cannot settle everything in
45 minutes or one hour. We need to spread the word about the
committee to some of the organizations, because a lot of them
may not understand that we have set up this committee today.
It takes a while for people to know about our existence and our
future plans.

[ Traduction]

Nous devrions décider aujourd’hui si nous tiendrons notre
prochaine séance huis clos afin de traiter du programme 2 sui-
vre.

Le sénateur Watt: J'estime que nous devrions retarder la
décision concernant les personnes-ressources qui seront affec-
tées A ce comité.

Le président: Nous n’avons pas besoin d’adopter la motion
aujourd’hui. Nous pouvons faire circuler les CV et en discuter
ultérieurement.

Le sénateur Watt: J'adopterai volontiers la motion, du
moment que nous ne précisons pas les personnes des services de
la Bibliothéque du Sénat que nous utiliserons. S’il est seule-
ment question de principe, alors votons. Cependant, si nous
parlons des personnes mémes, alors je m’y opposerai.

Le sénateur Neiman a raison. Décidons d’abord de ce sur
quoi nous voulons nous concentrer. Je sais ce qui me tient a
cceur. Elle ne le sait pas. Par conséquent, réglons ce point, puis
nous pourrons déterminer quel genre de personnes-ressources il
nous faut.

Le président: Nous n’avons pas besoin d'adopter cette
motion. Nous pouvons en délibérer. Le sénateur Watt a fait
ressortir quelques questions plutdt viscérales que nos commu-
nautés ont exprimées avec beaucoup de sincérité. Je comprends
ce qu’il dit. Comme I'a fait observer le sénateur Neiman, nous
pouvons en délibérer 4 huis clos. Nous avons jusqu’a 11 heures.
Jaimerais passer aux futurs travaux du Comité. Le sénateur
Watt, le sénateur Neiman et d’autres nous ont parlé de cer-
tains sujets que nous pourrons aborder. J'aimerais avoir une
idée de ce que seront nos futurs travaux. J'aimerais que nous
discutions davantage de la ligne de conduite que nous adopte-
rons.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Les discussions que nous avons eues
jusqu’a maintenant indiquent que nous devrions réserver un
certain temps, apres la période de relache, & notre premiére
réunion importante a huis clos, pour discuter des sujets que
nous souhaiterons aborder en priorité. Il est sans doute essen-
tiel que nous réglions cette question avant de décider qui nous
entendrons 4 nos audiences, ce que nous examinerons, ou et
quand nous réunirons.

Le Comité devra son succés en partie & Iouverture dont il
fera preuve dans ses rapports avec les collectivités autochtones.
Je pense qu'au départ, aprés avoir décidé de I'orientation de
nos travaux, nous devrions demander aux dirigeants autochto-
nes ou aux porte-parole des grandes organisations de nous dire
quels sont les sujets que nous devrions aborder en priorité. Il
est important de connaitre leurs points de vue avant d’arréter
notre ligne de conduite.

Le sénateur Adams: Je crois, comme le sénateur Fairbairn,
qu’il est difficile de décider de la teneur des futurs travaux du
Comité. Vous avez été élu a la présidence du Comité il y a une
heure a peine. Vous ne pouvez pas tout régler en 45 minutes. Il
faudra informer certaines organisations de I’existence du
Comité, car beaucoup d’entre elles ne savent peut-étre pas que
nous avons constitué le Comité aujourd’hui. Il faut un certain

temps pour que les gens puissent prendre connaissance de
notre existence et de nos projets.
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We now have a committee set up. We should send letters to
some of the organizations in various communities to let them
know about the existence of this committee. There are no other
bills in the Senate at the present time that deal with aboriginal
people. However, there may be some in the future. As Senator
Fairbairn says, after the steering committee is set up we can
meet again as a committee to deal with the future business of
the committee.

Senator Watt: | am referring now to the text that I put for-
ward. This is something that I think you may want to look at.
You should allow yourselves time to go through it thoroughly.

Basically I outlined three areas that I felt should be taken
care of. We have basically dealt with some of them. First is the
role and possible functions of the committee; secondly, the
requirement for specialties of the research staff; and, thirdly,
the approach to the constitutional amendment on the aborigi-
nal rights self-government concept.

Looking at the way the system presently exists, and what
has been said by the aboriginal people over a number of years,
we have a problem at the administrative level. We also have a
problem at the legislative level. In addition to that, we also
have a problem with regard to the Constitution. Those are the
three lines of authority that we should come to grips with by
stating that those are the areas that we will focus on: the
administrative level, the legislative level and the constitutional
level. From there we can state that those are the fundamental
principles that we will focus on.

I am stating here what you will hear from the other native
leaders, because I am one of them. I happen to sit as a senator
and I also deal with the life of native people on a daily basis.
Those are the three lines of the authorities that we should be
focusing on. That is only in a broad sense. We can then begin
to analyze each of those areas and make a list of certain funda-
mental principles that fall under each of those three categories.
That is how we should proceed, keeping in mind that as a com-
mittee that is also the role of the Senate. It is the role of the
committee to come up with recommendations from time to
time to be presented either to the Senate as a whole or to the
House of Commons.

Whatever we do here as a committee, we should try not to
pace ourselves so that we do nothing but research, because it
will be never ending. We should try to come up with an even
balance of doing research and trying to put ourselves in a posi-
tion where we will take some action from time to time. That
means that we will try to look at this committee in two stages.
The first is early research and the other is more active because
certain things occur in everyone’s life on a daily basis that
require immediate action.

I do not know whether or not I am making myself clear. I
have three specific proposals. One is at the constitutional level,
one is at the legislative level and one is at the administrative
level.

In order to allow the aboriginal people to participate fully at
the administrative level, the mechanisms do not exist within
the present system. We already know that. That is a big part
of the problem. That can only come about be utilizing a legis-

[Traduction]

Nous avons constitué un comité. Il faudrait maintenant
écrire 4 des organisations de diverses collectivités pour les
informer de notre existence. Le Sénat n’est actuellement saisi
d’aucun projet de loi qui traite des autochtones, mais il pour-
rait y en avoir dans I’avenir. Comme le dit le sénateur Fair-
bairn, une fois le comité de direction constitué, nous pourrons
nous réunir de nouveau en comité pour aborder nos futurs tra-
vaux.

Le sénateur Watt: Je me reporte maintenant au texte que
j’ai déposé. Je suis certain qu'il vous intéressera. Vous devriez
prendre le temps de I'examiner en détail.

J’ai essentiellement abordé succinctement trois domaines sur
lesquels nous devrions nous pencher. Nous avons déja pour
I’essentiel traité certains d’entre eux. Le premier est le role et
les fonctions possibles du Comité; le deuxiéme concerne les
spécialisations du personnel de recherche; et le troisiéme,
I'approche de 'amendement constitutionnel touchant le con-
cept de I'autonomie politique des autochtones.

Compte tenu de la fagon dont le systéme actuel fonctionne,
et de ce qu'ont fait valoir les autochtones depuis un certain
nombre d’années, il existe un probléme en matiére d’adminis-
tration, mais aussi aux plans législatif, et constitutionnel. Voila
les trois sujets d’étude que nous devrions traiter, en indiquant
que ce sont les trois domaines sur lesquels nous mettrons
’accent. Partant de 14, nous pourrons affirmer que ce sont les
trois principes fondamentaux sur lesquels portera notre atten-
tion.

Je vous répéte ici ce que vous entendrez de la part des diri-
geants autochtones, puisque je suis I'un d’entre eux. Je suis
sénateur, mais je m’occupe aussi des autochtones tous les jours.
Ce sont 14 les trois points sur lesquels nous devrions mettre
I'accent; il ne s’agit 13 cependant que de I'approche générale.
Nous pourrons ensuite analyser chaque domaine et établir une
liste de principes fondamentaux qui correspondent a chacune.
Je propose d’adopter cette ligne de conduite, tout en nous rap-
pelant que le role du Comité est aussi celui du Sénat. Il
incombe au Comité de formuler des recommandations qui, de
temps 4 autre, seront présentées au Sénat en assemblée plé-
ni¢re ou 4 la Chambre des communes.

Quoi que nous fassions en tant que comité, nous devrions
essayer d’éviter de nous limiter uniquement aux travaux de
recherche, car nous n’en finirons pas. Nous devrons effectuer
des recherches, mais aussi, 4 part égale, prendre des mesures
de temps 4 autre. Autrement dit, nous nous attaquerons a la
tiche en deux étapes. La premiére sera constitutée de recher-
ches préliminaires, la seconde aura un caractére plus actif car,
comme dans la vie de tous les jours, certaines situations requié-
rent des mesures immédiates.

Je me demande si je me fais bien comprendre. Je propose
une ligne de conduite en trois volets. Le premier concerne le
niveau constitutionnel, le deuxiéme le législatif, et le troisiéme
’administratif.

Les mécanismes propres 4 permettre aux autochtones de
participer pleinement au niveau administratif n’existent pas
dans notre systéme actuel. Nous le savons déja, et le probléme
tient en partie a cette lacune. La seule solution est la voie 1égis-
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lative avenue. You can then take another step up the ladder
towards the top level—that is, at the constitutional level—and
ask: What is the fundamental foundation of it? Why do you
have to have participation at the administrative level? Why do
you have to have input at the legislative level? It is not that
complicated.

Senator Austin: I agree with Senator Watt in the direction
that he wants to go. In my own talks with people in the native
community four issues constantly come up as being areas of
concern. One is the self-government issue. That issue is prob-
ably at the top of the list in the more advanced communities. It
is directly linked, as Senator Watt said, to the question of the
constitutional agenda. In that respect, I would be very con-
cerned with the cutback in the funding of the work that needs
to be done by the communities to prepare themselves for those
talks, whenever they should resume. As a committee we should
deal with that question of funding specifically some time in the

spring.

The second issue relates to land claims and the environmen-
tal impact of certain megaprojects that are proposed by vari-
ous governments in the country. Part of that is land claims and
the economic issues of native communities gaining a livelihood
from activities such as fishing and forestry. That is particularly
the case in my province, where the question of the salmon fish-
ery within the rivers, the freshwater and the sea-water contin-
ues to be a difficult one.

Finally, there is a question that constantly comes up,
namely, the social condition of natives in the urban centres of
Canada. You and I, Mr. Chairman, have had a long associa-
tion with the Friendship Centre in Vancouver and know some-
thing of the attempts to deal with that social condition. There-
fore there is a long list of issues that we could tackle.

Another issue, of course, is the division of responsibilities
between the federal and the provincial governments for certain
kinds of programs, particularly with respect to education and
health care. As I say, Mr. Chairman, the list is infinite, and I
can see why we call this is a standing committee, although you
should let us sit down from time to time!

The main problem is with prioritizing the work that we do.
As Senator Fairbairn has said, we should have an in camera
discussion amongst ourselves as to where to begin the work. As
members of the committee, I agree that we should all consider
what the priorities of the committee should be. We have had a
specific recommendation from Senator Watt that would cer-
tainly be acceptable to me. Perhaps at the next meeting, when
we meet in camera, we could have a frank discussion on what
we want to do and the kinds of support people we will need to
do that kind of work.

Senator Muir: Senator Watt, you can correct me if I am
wrong, but, as I understand your suggestion, rather than hav-
ing a committee that will meet and meet, hour after hour,
month after month with no recommendations until that great
report being written after one or two years, your suggestion is

[Traduction]

lative. Nous pourrons ensuite passer & I’étape suivante et der-
niére, cest-a-dire le niveau constitutionnel, ce qui ameéne la
question suivante: quel est le fondement de cette démarche?
Pourquoi faut-il obtenir la participation des autochtones au
niveau administratif? Pourquoi au niveau législatif? Ce n’est
pas tellement compliqué.

Le sénateur Austin: J’approuve le sénateur Watt en ce qui
concerne la ligne de conduite qu’il propose. Au cours des dis-
cussions que j’ai moi-méme eues avec des représentants de la
collectivité autochtone, quatre sujets de préoccupation revien-
nent constamment. La premiére est ’autonomie politique.
Cette question figure sans doute en téte de liste parmi les
préoccupations des collectivités les plus avancées. Le sujet est
directement lié, comme le disait le sénateur Watt, a la question
de l'ordre du jour constitutionnel. A cet égard, je serais trés
préoccupé par la réduction du financement des travaux que
devront effectuer les collectivités autochtones pour se préparer
A ces discussions lorsqu’elles reprendront. Le Comité devrait
aborder la question du financement au printemps.

La deuxiéme question concerne les revendications territoria-
les et les répercussions écologiques de certains mégaprogets
proposés par divers gouvernements au pays. Le probléme con-
cerne en partie les revendications territoriales et les questions
économiques touchant les collectivités autochtones pour les-
quelles la péche et I'exploitation forestiere représentent un
gagne-pain. C’est le cas en particulier dans ma province, ou la
question de la péche au saumon dans les riviéres, en eau douce
et en eau salée, constitue toujours une question épineuse.

Enfin, une autre question revient constamment, il s’agit de
la situation sociale des autochtones dans les centres urbains au
Canada. Monsieur le président, vous et moi sommes depuis
longtemps associés au Friendship Centre de Vancouver et nous
connaissons bien les tentatives qui ont été faites pour régler ce
probléme. Il existe donc une longue liste de questions a
laquelle nous pourrons nous attaquer.

Une autre question concerne évidemment la répartition des
compétences entre les gouvernements fédéral et provinciaux
pour certains types de programmes, en particulier I’éducation
et les soins de santé. Comme je le disais, monsieur le président,
la liste s’allonge a I'infini et je comprends pourquoi nous som-
mes un comité permanent, mais j'espére que vous nous laisse-
rez le temps de souffler!

Le principal probléme concerne I’établissement des priorités
du Comité. Comme disait le sénateur Fairbairn, le Comité
devrait se réunir a huis clos pour décider par ou commencer. Je
reconnais qu’il incombe a tous les membres du Comité de défi-
nir ses priorités. La recommandation qu’a faite le sénateur
Watt me semble assurément acceptable. Nous pourrions peut-
étre, pendant la prochaine séance a huis clos, discuter ouverte-
ment de ce que nous entendons faire et du type de personnel de
soutien dont nous aurons besoin.

Le sénateur Muir: Sénateur Watt, corrigez-moi si je me
trompe, mais si je comprends bien votre suggestion, vous pro-
posez qu’au lieu de tenir séance sur séance, mois aprés mois,
sans produire aucune recommandation et ce jusqua ce que le
rapport soit produit, le Comité prenne plutét périodiquement
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that every once in a while this committee would make a firm
decision and therefore a recommendation that could be carried
forward. If that is what you had in mind, I think that is a good
idea. Perhaps you would like to enlarge upon that.

Senator Watt: Yes, senator, that is precisely what I am sug-
gesting. Some of us in this committee are not new to these
issues. Senator Austin is certainly not new to these issues, hav-
ing dealt with them at three separate levels, namely the
administrative policy level, the legislative level and the consti-
tutional level. Therefore, with all of these issues we can decide
what the problem area is and what category it comes into, such
as the constitutional area, or whatever.

With some of the other fundamental issues that Senator
Austin was talking about, some of them will fit only into the
legislative level; some of them will fit only into the administra-
tive policy level. In fact, everything that Senator Austin was
talking about can fit into those three areas of authority. I
agree that this is the way in which we ought to proceed. These
are the three levels of order at which matters should be
focused, rather than focusing on problems; problems to which
we will never be able to come up with solutions.

I think it is important, in focusing on the issues we have to
deal with, to know in advance where we want to go, so that we
can begin to start plugging some of those issues into where
they should fit, knowing that although there are problems
there are possible solutions.

Therefore, as I said earlier, I am not in agreement with the
committee meeting on a regular basis unless we are moving
ahead. We have to agree among ourselves on the lines of
approach to the different areas that we have to deal with.

For example, with respect to the social problems, how do we
begin to deal with the social problems that exist? First of all,
why is there a social problem? Perhaps there is a lack of fun-
damental foundation that could be affecting the people in a
psychological way. For example, if people cannot say to them-
selves: “Who am I? Do I belong to this country? What are the
systems that I can utilize in order to advance myself so that I
can continue to be proud of who I am?” without reassuring
answers, then that alone can have an effect on the social life,
as well as the economic life, of the people. That is only one
example in one area.

Therefore I do agree, Mr. Chairman, that we should have an
in camera session and begin to start listing those items with
which we wish to deal. I do not know whether I have answered
your question, Senator Muir.

The Chairman: We have about five minutes before we have
to vacate this room for the next committee.

Senator Bielish: Mr. Chairman, the last half of this meeting
has been a wonderful revelation to me in that perhaps the
order of Senate committees is about to change. I am looking
forward to this new innovation whereby we sit down, first of
all, and decide what items we have to tackle and why and what
are the problems. The best part of it is that this suggestion is
coming from a native person.

[Traduction)

une décision ferme et fasse une recommandation qui pourra
étre reportée. Si c’est ce 4 quoi vous pensez, c’est une bonne
idée. Vous voudrez peut-étre expliciter la chose.

Le sénateur Watt: Oui, sénateur, c’est exactement ce que je
propose. Certains membres de ce comité connaissent déja bien
ces questions. C’est certainement le cas du sénateur Austin,
qui a traité ces questions dans trois domaines distincts, soit les
domaines administratif, législatif et constitutionnel. Aussi, en
abordant les questions sur ces trois plans, nous serons en
mesure de définir le champ d’une question et I'optique dans
laquelle il faut I’aborder, 4 savoir I'optique constitutionnelle,
ou autre.

En ce qui concerne certaines autres questions fondamentales
dont parlait le sénateur Austin, certaines ne pourront étre
abordées qu’au plan législatif, d’autres au plan administratif.
De fait, tous les sujets dont a parlé le sénateur Austin s’inscri-
vent dans ces trois catégories. Je reconnais que nous devrions
adopter cette ligne de conduite. Ce sont 1a les trois plans sur
lesquels il faut aborder les questions, plutdt que de concentrer
notre attention sur les problémes, auxquels nous ne pourrons
d’ailleurs jamais trouver de solutions.

Je pense qu’il est important, avant d’aborder les sujets
d’étude, de savoir 4 I'avance ol nous voulons en venir, de
maniére que nous puissions aborder les questions dans le cadre
qui leur convient, et tout en sachant que méme si des proble-
mes existent, il existe aussi des solutions.

Aussi, comme je le disais, je ne suis pas d’accord pour que le
Comité se réunisse réguliérement, & moins que nous ne pro-
gressions. Il faut nous entendre sur le type d’approche que
nous appliquons aux divers sujets d’étude.

En ce qui concerne les problémes sociaux par exemple, com-
ment les aborderons-nous? Tout d’abord, pourquoi ces probleé-
mes existent-ils? Il existe peut-étre une lacune fondamentale
qui affecte les gens sur le plan psychologique. Par exemple, les
gens n’ont peut-étre pas la possibilité de se demander qui ils
sont, s’ils appartiennent 4 ce pays, quels sont les systémes qu’ils
peuvent utiliser pour continuer de progresser et étre fiers
d’eux. S’ils ne trouvent pas de réponse rassurante, leur vie
sociale et économique peut en étre affectée. Ce n’est 12 qu’un
exemple dans un domaine.

Je suis donc d’accord, monsieur le président, pour que nous
tenions une séance 4 huis clos au cours de laquelle nous dresse-
rons la liste des questions que nous voulons aborder. Je ne sais
pas si j’ai répondu 4 votre questions, sénateur Muir.

Le président: Il nous reste cinq minutes, aprés quoi nous
devrons laisser la place au prochain comité.

Le sénateur Bielish: Monsieur le président, la seconde moi-
tié de la séance a été pour moi une trés belle révélation, dans la
mesure ol il m’apparait que le mandat des comité sénatoriaux
est sur le point de changer. J'ai hite que nous appliquions cette
innovation qui consiste 4 décider des sujets que nous aborde-
rons, déterminer les raisons pour lesquelles nous le ferons, et
cerner les problémes. Le plus beau, c’est que la suggestion
vient d’un autochtone.
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The Chairman: Thank you. Honourable senators, we are
rapidly running out of time, so I think I have a pretty clear
direction as to what we need to do.

Senator Neiman, I should say, in passing, that we looked at
using the annual report of the Department of Indian Affairs as
a reference. However, that report does not make reference to
the Métis people, therefore we cannot use it. What we intend
to do is put our heads together and come up with a reference
that would meet the request of the group within this commit-
tee.

Senator Neiman: Mr. Chairman, I had contemplated going
beyond just that one report. That is why I mentioned the
report of the Department of Health and Welfare or any other
report of any other department.

The Chairman: It is not as easy as it seems. If we could just
have one report to refer to, it would be much simpler.

In any event, I think we have received the message loud and
clear. We will now get to work and call a subcommittee meet-
ing as soon as possible, once the whips have assigned the mem-
bers to the subcommittee. After that, we will call an in camera
meeting of the whole committee in order to develop a plan for
the future business of the committee and as to how we should
proceed.

Thank you, honourable senators. The meeting is adjourned.

The committee adjourned.

Ottawa, Friday, May 4, 1990

The Standing Senate Committee on Aboriginal People§ met
this day at 9 a.m. to study relations between the Aboriginal
peoples and the Government of Canada, including the critical
issues facing Aboriginal Canadians. g

Senator Len Marchand (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: This is the first meeting to hear witnesses
since the Senate established the Standing Senate Committee
on Aboriginal peoples. Our first witness is Mr. John Amagoa-
lik. Many of us remember him from his Aappearances at the
constitutional conferences. Mr. Amagoalik is an articulate,
respected leader of the Inuit people.

Apropos of our conversation, Mr. Amagoalik, we are looking
forward to what you have to say. At this stage in our proce-
dure, we are really looking for direcnpn. We are commencing
our hearings by hearing from the major organizations. Thank
you for coming. Perhaps you would proceed with your
remarks.

Mr. John Amagoalik, Inuit Tapirisat: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I do not have anything prepared on paper so, if you
will bear with me, I will just ramble on for a little while.

First, I would like to talk about the concerns that we have in
the area of the environment. As all of you know by now, the
Canadian Arctic is not immune to pollution. We are all aware
that, recently, scientists have discovered that there are toxic
pollutants to be found in the whole ecosystem of the Arctic: in

[Traduction)

Le président: Merci. Honorables sénateurs, le temps file
rapidement et quant & moi je sais ce que nous avons 4 faire.

Sénateur Neiman, je souligne en passant que nous avons
songé a utiliser le rapport annuel du ministére des Affaires
indiennes comme source de référence, mais comme il ne fait
pas état des Métis, nous ne pourrons pas 'utiliser. Nous enten-
dons plutdt nous mettre ensemble et définir collectivement un
mandat qui corresponde aux attentes du groupe.

Le sénateur Neiman: Monsieur le président, J'envisageais la
possibilité de nous fonder sur plus qu’un seul rapport. C’est
pourquoi j’ai mentionné le rapport du ministére de la Santé et
du Bien-étre social, ou tout autre rapport ministériel.

Le président: Les choses ne sont pas aussi simples qu’elles le
semblent. Si nous n’utilisions qu’un seul rapport comme source
de référence, ce serait beaucoup plus aisé.

Quoi qu’il en soit, le message est clair. Mettons-nous au tra-
vail dés maintenant et convoquons une séance de sous-comité
le plus tot possible, dés que les whips en auront désigné les
membres. Aprés quoi, le comité plénier se réunira a huis clos
pour définir un plan d’action touchant ses futurs travaux et la
ligne de conduite a adopter.

Merci, honorables sénateurs. Je léve la séance.
La séance est levée.

Ottawa, le vendredi 4 mai 1990

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des peuples autochtones se
réunit aujourd’hui & 9 heures pour étudier les relations entre
les peuples autochtones et le gouvernement du Canada, ainsi
que les questions cruciales auxquelles font face les autochtones
du Canada.

Le sénateur Len Marchand (président) occupe le fauteuil.

Le président: Il s’agit de la premiére réunion ayant pour
objet d’entendre des témoins depuis que le Sénat a créé le
Comité sénatorial permanent des peuples autochtones. Notre
premier témoin est M. John Amagoalik. Plusieurs d’entre nous
se souviennent de lui: il avait comparu plusieurs fois lors des
conférences constitutionnelles. M. Amagoalik est, chez le peu-
ple Inuit, un membre respecté et doué d’une grande logique.

Pour en venir au sujet qui nous préoccupe, M. Amagoalik,
nous avons hite d’entendre ce que vous avez & dire. A cette
étape de notre procédure, nous ne cherchons vraiment qu’une
orientation. Nous commengons nos audiences en écoutant les
principaux organismes. Nous vous remercions d’étre venu et
vous invitons a nous faire part de vos observations.

M. John Amagoalik, Inuit Tapirisat: Merci, monsieur le
président. Je n’ai préparé aucun document. Donc, si vous
m’accordez un peu de patience, je parlerez d’une fagon un peu
décousue, pendant un petit moment.

D’abord, je tiens a vous faire part de nos préoccupations
concernant I’environnement. Comme vous le savez tous main-
tenant, I’Arctique canadien n’est pas a I'abri de la pollution.
Nous savons tous que récemment des scientifiques ont décou-
vert I'existence de polluants toxiques dans tout ’écosystéme de
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the snow, in the waters and in the animals. They are now
working their way into the Inuit diet. We are very anxious that
international agreements be worked out, and we have been
encouraged by recent efforts to have discussions on the inter-
national level to try to work towards some sort of treaties to
deal with these pollutants that are being found in our home-
land.

Of course, we are very alarmed by the ozone depletion. The
Inuit would be the first to be affected because, in our under-
standing, the depletion of the ozone is happening in the south-
ern and northern regions of the globe.

We are also very concerned about James Bay II. I think
everyone understands now that James Bay I has caused much
more pollution than was first predicted, and James Bay II
raises a lot of concerns among our people.

We are also concerned about tanker traffic through Arctic
waters. We oppose year-round traffic, based on environmental
concerns. We are concerned that year-round traffic would
have unpredictable effects on the environment. It would affect
animal movement between islands. As you know, the Arctic,
especially the high Arctic, is classified as a desert and is an
extremely sensitive environment. Year-round traffic would
have unpredictable effects on it.

Let me just move on to military activities. Our first concern
is regarding the forward bases for the CF-18s. We do not
oppose them outright but we are still concerned that they be
carefully managed and monitored. The forward bases, of
course, do provide some benefits to some of our communities,
such as lengthening and paving runways, which we, of course,
appreciate. However, we repeat that these activities must be
carefully managed and monitored and that such things as tim-
ing must be worked out between the military and people living
in our communities.

We are all aware, of course, that the Inuit oppose low level
flights, not just in Labrador but right through the Arctic. We
were very concerned when we heard that low level flights were
also being planned for the Mackenzie Valley. We just do not
see any practical purposes for this sort of activity at this time.
We are on record as opposing cruise missile testing and we, of
course, hope that these activities will cease very shortly. We
just do not see any useful purpose in this sort of activity.

Perhaps I may turn now to the question of self-government.
In the Northwest Territories our desire to create self-governing
units is moving along very slowly. This past Monday, the TFN
signed an agreement in principle with the Government of
Canada for a land claim settlement. That will help our efforts
to create Nunavuk in the central and eastern Arctic and, of

[Traduction)

I’Arctique: dans la neige, les eaux et les animaux. Ces pol-
luants arrivent graduellement dans le Régime alimentaire des
Inuit. Nous attendons avec impatience la conclusion d’accords
internationaux et nous sommes encouragés par les efforts
déployés depuis peu pour tenir des discussions a ’échelle inter-
nationale afin d’arriver a des traités permettant de faire face a
ces polluants qui se retrouvent actuellement dans nos territoi-
res ancestraux.

Bien siir, nous sommes trés alarmés par la diminution de la
couche d’ozone. Les Inuit seraient les premiers 4 étre touchés
car, si nous comprenons bien, la diminution de la couche
d’ozone se produit dans les régions australes et septentrionales
du globe.

Nous sommes également trés préoccupés par le projet «Baie
James Il». Je pense que tout le monde comprend maintenant
que Baie James I a causé beaucoup plus de pollution que
prévu, et nos peuples se posent beaucoup de questions sur Baie
James II.

Nous nous inquiétons aussi du trafic des pétroliers dans les
eaux de I’Arctique. Nous nous opposons au trafic de ces pétro-
liers pendant toute I’année, parce que nous nous soucions de
I'environnement. Nous nous demandons si le trafic pendant
toute I’année n’aurait pas des effets imprévisibles sur I’environ-
nement. Il nuirait peut-étre aux migrations des animaux entre
les iles. Comme vous le savez, I’Arctique, particuliérement
I’Extréme-Arctique, est classé comme un désert et est un envi-
ronnement extrémement sensible. Le trafic de pétroliers pen-
dant toute I’année aurait des effets imprévisibles sur cette
région.

Passons maintenant aux activités militaires. En premier lieu,
nous nous soucions des bases militaires avancées que ’on veut
construire pour les CF-18. Nous ne nous y opposons pas caté-
goriquement, mais nous nous demandons si elles vont étre étu-
diées avec soin et suivies de prés. Bien siir, les bases militaires
avancées procureront certains avantages a quelques-unes de
nos collectivités, par exemple le prolongement et le revétement
des pistes d’atterrissage que nous apprécierons certainement.
Toutefois, nous répétons que ces activités doivent étre étudiées
avec soin et suivies de prés. En outre, elles doivent étre effec-
tuées moyennant une certaine coordination entre les militaires
et les gens qui vivent dans les collectivités touchées.

Nous savons tous que les Inuit s’opposent aux vols a basse
altitude, non pas seulement au-dessus du Labrador, mais au-
dessus de tout I’Arctique. Nous sommes trés préoccupés par les
rumeurs de vols 4 basse altitude qu’on prévoyait effectuer au-
dessus de la Vallée du Mackenzie. Nous ne voyons aucune uti-
lité pratique a ce genre d’activité en ce moment. C’est un fait
établi que nous nous opposons aux tests de missiles de croisiére
et nous espérons que I'on mettra fin sous peu 4 de telles activi-
tés. Nous ne voyons aucune utilité a ce genre d’activité.

Passons maintenant 4 la question d’autonomie administra-
tive. Dans les Territoires du Nord-Ouest, I'idée que nous avons
de créer des unités autonomes fait son chemin trés lentement.
Lundi dernier, la FTN a signé une entente de principe avec le
gouvernement du Canada en ce qui concerne le réglement de
revendications de terres. Cette mesure nous aidera dans nos
efforts visant a créer le Nunavut dans les régions du centre et
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course, if that is to happen, another self-governing unit is to be
created in the Mackenzie Valley.

Our main obstacle at this time is the identification of a
boundary. We hope that this will be worked out over the next
six months or so, and once that is worked out I think work
towards self-government will be well on its way.

We have been disappointed over the years with the Govern-
ment of Canada since it has been, in a way, inactive in that
area in that it has not become involved in trying to move things
along. Our main obstacle, as I said, has been the identification
of a boundary, and negotiations with the Dene-Métis have
been very difficult. At the moment those negotiations are
stalled, but hopefully the signing of an agreement in principle
for land claims in the central and eastern Arctic, and also a
land claims settlement for the Mackenzie Valley, will help
move things along.

Respecting self-government in northern Quebec—or what
we call Nunavik—at the moment the people living there are
involved in internal discussions on how to proceed. I am sure
Charlie Watt is better qualified to talk about this matter.
Unfortunately, I do not see him here.

The Chairman: Senator Watt has to attend the annual meet-
ing of Makivik Corporation and is unable to attend this meet-
ing.

Mr. Amagoalik: We are hoping that self-government will be
worked out in Labrador some time down the road when they
work out their land claim settlement, which at present is being
negotiated. 4

Perhaps 1 might just touch on the subject of Meech Lake
because it is of major concern to all of us. Of course, we are
not satisfied with the way things are right now. We are very
concerned that the country will not continue to be the way we
have known it if things do not go right. Of course, we recog-
nize Quebec as a distinct society. How that is to be expressed
constitutionally is something we want to discuss. We are con-
cerned that Meech Lake creates an imbalance, and if Quebec
is to be recognized constitutionally as a distinct soc?ety we, the
Inuit, having been here long before Europeans arrived on our
shores, feel that we deserve at least the same treatment.

We are concerned that Meech Lake will prevent the Territo-
ries from ever evolving politically. As we see it, it will be virtu-
ally impossible to create new provinces if Meech Lake is
passed the way it is. We, of course, are concerned that the Ter-
ritories also will not have a means of participating in our fed-
eral institutions, such as the Senate and the Supreme Court of
Canada. We think that these things need to be dealt with
before Meech Lake can be passed.

We are convinced that Meech Lake needs to be fixed, and
assurances of “pass it now and fix it later” we do not trust. We
have no reason to believe that once Meech Lake is passed all

[Traduction)

de I'est de I'Arctique et, bien entendu, si ce projet se réalise,
nous travaillerons a la création d’une autre unité autonome
dans la Vallée du Mackenzie.

A T’heure actuelle, notre principal obstacle réside dans la
délimitation des frontiéres. Nous espérons que ce travail sera
terminé environ dans les six prochains mois, et une fois ce cap
franchi, je pense que les travaux vers I’autonomie administra-
tive seront bien engageés.

Pendant des années, le gouvernement du Canada nous a
dégus, en ce sens qu’il a été, en quelque sorte, inactif dans ce
dossier et n’a rien fait pour faire bouger les choses. Notre prin-
cipal obstacle, comme je le disais, consistais 4 délimiter les
frontiéres, et 4 ce chapitre les négociations avec les Métis de la
nation denée ont été trés difficiles. Pour I'instant, les négocia-
tions sont au point mort, mais heureusement la signature d’un
accord de principe concernant des revendicaitons fonciéres
dans le centre et I'est de I’Arctique ainsi qu’un réglement de
revendications dans la Vallée du Mackenzie aideront 4 faire
avancer les choses.

En ce qui concerne 'autonomie administrative dans le Nord
du Québec—la région que nous appelons Nunavik—les gens
qui y habitent participent actuellement a des discussions inter-
nes sur la fagon de procéder. Et je suis sir que Charlie Watt
est mieux placé que moi pour en parler. Malheureusement, je
ne le vois pas ici.

Le président: Le sénateur Watt est absent parce qu’il doit
assister 4 la réunion annuelle de la Makivik Corporation.

M. Amagoalik: Nous espérons que le projet d’autonomie
administrative se réalisera dans le Labrador lorsque seront
réglées les revendications fonciéres actuellement en cours de
négociation.

Je vais parler juste un peu de ’Accord du lac Meech, car il
s’agit d’un probléme qui nous préoccupe tous. Nous ne sommes
certes pas satisfaits de la fagon dont les choses se présentent
actuellement. Nous sommes grandement préoccupés du fait
que le pays ne continuera plus a étre tel que nous I’avons
connu, si le probléme ne se régle pas. Bien entendu, nous
reconnaissons le Québec comme société distincte. Mais nous
voulons discuter de la fagon dont ce concept doit étre exprimé
sur le plan constitutionnel. Nous avons peur que I’accord du
lac Meech ne crée un déséquilibre. Si le Québec doit &tre
reconnu constitutionnellement comme société distincte, nous
les Inuit, qui étions ici bien avant le débarquement des Euro-,
péens, nous pensons que nous méritons au moins un traitement
analogue.

Nous nous demandons si I’Accord du lac Meech n’empgé-
chera pas les Territoires d’évoluer sur le plan politique. A notre
avis, il sera pratiquement impossible de créer de nouvelles pro-
vinces si I’Accord du lac Meech est adopté tel qu’il est. Nous
nous demandons également si les Territoires pourront [;artici-
per a nos institutions fédérales, le Sénat et la Cour supréme du
Canada par exemple. Nous pensons que ces questions doivent
étre réglées avant I'adoption de I'Accord du lac Meech.

Nous sommes convaincus que I’Accord du lac Meech doit
étre remanié, et nous n'avons pas confiance aux assurances que
I'on nous donne pour qu’il soit «adopté maintenant et remanié
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provinces will eagerly come to the table and start negotiating
aboriginal affairs.

That is all I have listed this for morning. However, I can
speak in more detail when responding to questions.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Amagoalik. I am sure sena-
tors will have some questions. Senator Macquarrie will lead off
the questioning.

Senator Macquarrie: I am interested in all of your remarks.
I noticed you ended with Meech Lake, so I will start there.

What is your reaction to the present exercise of the House of
Commons committee that has as its centrepiece the ideas of
Premier McKenna? Do you think that there is anything in that
initiative of the Premier of New Brunswick which in any way
sets at ease your attitude towards Meech Lake as it now
exists?

Mr. Amagoalik: I appreciate Mr. McKenna’s efforts. I sup-
port most of his proposals. It is important to understand that
we can talk about many good things in a companion resolution,
but unless there is linkage to Meech Lake, as far as we are
concerned whatever we discuss does not mean anything
because, as I said earlier, we do not agree with the attitude of
passing it now and fixing it later. We support Mr. McKenna’s
efforts, but we want linkage. We want the companion resolu-
tion to be legally enforceable. If there is no linkage, then we
are concerned that certain items will not be fixed. There needs
to be linkage between a companion resolution and Meech
Lake.

Senator Macquarrie: Does that linkage mean the reopening
of Meech Lake, or does it mean that the aspects of the
McKenna plan will be adopted at a meeting of all the
premiers, followed by legislative action? Could all of that be
done before June 23?

Mr. Amagoalik: I do not know if it is possible to have that
completed before June 23. I think it would be very tragic if
these efforts failed because of a deadline. The Prime Minister
should call the premiers together and extend that deadline. I
do not see why that could not be done. Also, I think the posi-
tion that some politicians have taken that Canada has no
option but to sign Meech Lake as it is is irresponsible and
destructive. Compromises must be made, and they must come
from the Prime Minister and the Premier of Québec. That is
very clear.

Senator Macquarrie: Would a declaration by the premiers
and the Prime Minister give you the assurance of that being an
ironclad article of faith?

Mr. Amagoalik: If the Prime Minister were to call a meet-
ing with all of the premiers and make such a declaration, it

[Traduction)

plus tard». Nous n’avons aucune raison de croire qu’une fois
I’Accord du lac Meech adopté, les provinces reviendront avec
empressement 4 la table de négociation pour régler les proble-
mes des Autochtones.

C’est tout ce que j'avais a dire pour ce matin. Toutefois, je
donnerai plus de détails lorsque je répondrai aux questions.

Le président: Merci, monsieur Amagoalik, je suis siir que les
sénateurs poseront des questions. Le sénateur Macquarrie
entamera la période des questions.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Toutes vos observations m’intéres-
sent. Mais, je commencerai par la ol vous avez terminé, c’est-
a-dire par I’Accord du lac Meech.

Que pensez-vous du travail qu’effectue actuellement le
comité de la Chambre des communes, qui s’appuie essentielle-
ment sur les idées du Premier ministre McKenna? Pensez-vous
que [Dinitiative du Premier ministre du Nouveau-Brunswick
comporte certains éléments de nature a infléchir votre attitude
envers I’Accord du lac Meech, tel qu'il existe actuellement?

M. Amagoalik: J'apprécie les efforts de M. McKenna.
Jappuie la plupart de ses propositions. Il est important de
comprendre que nous pouvons parler de bien des choses dans
une résolution d’accompagnement, mais si celle-ci n’est pas
reliée 4 I’Accord du lac Meech, elle ne revét a nos yeux aucune
importance, quels que soient les sujets qui y sont abordés. Car,
comme je I’ai dit plus tot, nous ne sommes pas d’accord avec
ceux qui préconisent I'adoption immédiate de I’Accord en vue
d’un remaniement ultérieur. Nous appuyons les efforts de M.
McKenna, mais nous voulons relier la résolution et I'Accord.
Nous voulons que la résolution d’accompagnement puisse étre
légalement appliquée. S’il n’y a pas de lien entre les deux, nous
nous demandons donc si certaines questions seront jamais
réglées. 11 faut absolument un lien entre la résolution d’accom-
pagnement et I’Accord du lac Meech.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Ce lien signifie-t-il la réouverture
de I’Accord du lac Meech, ou bien I’adoption de tous les élé-
ments du plan McKenna lors d’une réunion de tous les pre-
miers ministres, 4 la suite de quoi viendraient des mesures
législatives complétes? Tout cela peut-il se faire avant le 23
juin?

M. Amagoalik: Je ne sais pas si c’est possible, de tout termi-
ner avant le 23 juin. Je pense qu’il serait tragique de voir
échouer tous ces efforts, 4 cause d’une question de délai. Le
Premier ministre devrait convoquer une réunion de tous les
premiers ministres provinciaux afin de prolonger le délai. Je ne
vois pas pourquoi cela ne pourrait pas se faire. Je crois en
outre, que certains politiciens adoptent une attitude irresponsa-
ble et destructrice en déclarant que le Canada n’a d’autre chox
que de signer I’Accord du lac Meech tel quel. Des compromis
doivent étre faits et ils doivent venir du Premier ministre du
Canada et du Premier ministre du Québec. C’est trés clair.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Est-ce qu’une déclaration de la
part des premiers ministres et du Premier ministre du Canada
vous rassurerait, tel un article de foi?

M. Amagoalik: Si le Premier ministre convoquait une réu-
nion de tous les premiers ministres provinciaux dans le but de
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would certainly be better than nothing. Yes, it would give us
some assurance.

Senator Macquarrie: Would it give you enough of an assur-
ance?

Mr. Amagoalik: I am not a constitutional lawyer so I cannot
answer that question “yes” or “no” outright.

Senator Macquarrie: Having been in the north a couple of
years ago, I think I know the feeling of northern Canadians on
this subject. They are not the only ones who are looking for
some tangible reassurance. When I hear people talk about the
McKenna plan, I feel we are not much further ahead than we
were a couple of years ago when people decided to fix it later.
There were also cominion provincial conferences from which
certain premiers walked away a few weeks later. So you would
not be totally confident unless the whole issue were reopened?

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes.

Senator Macquarrie: Did your group appear before the
House of Commons committee?

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes. Georges Erasmus, myself and the
Native Council of Canada made a joint presentation before the
committee three weeks ago. The committee is well aware of
our concerns. I think Meech Lake is a dying goose because it
does not reflect the reality of Canada. The two founding
nations is a myth. The fact that aboriginal people were here
before the Europeans arrived, and the fact that Canada is a
bilingual, multicultural nation needs to be reflected. It is not
reflected in Meech Lake; and that is why it is failing. It does
not reflect Canadian reality.

Senator Macquarrie: Perhaps we can speak further about
Meech Lake this morning.

Senator Adams: Mr. Chairman, as you mentioned, Senator
Watt was not able to be here this morning. He is a member of
this committee but had a prior meeting that could not be can-
celled. He would have been helpful today as he and Mr.
Amagoalik had worked together on the 1982 Constitution. I
hope he will be present for our next meeting

I also hope that this will not be the last time that Mr.
Amagoalik appears before this committee. I want to congratu-
late him on being our first witness before this committee. I
think we are just beginning to hear from your people and your
concerns about aboriginal rights.

My questions concern the polluting in the south by the big
manufacturers, the effects of which are often felt even in the
Northwest Territories. Now we are finding out that many
things in the environment have been affected. You mentioned
the pollution in the snow, the water and the land. How do you
feel we might be able to correct that situation in the future?
We are concerned about the pollution affecting the animals
and the people, especially those mothers who breastfeed their

[Traduction]

faire une telle déclaration, ce serait bien siir mieux que rien.
Oui, cela nous rassurerait un peu.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Cela vous rassurerait-il suffisam-
ment?

M. Amagoalik: Je ne suis pas avocat en droit constitution-
nel, je ne puis donc répondre & cette question par un «oui» ou
par un «non» catégorique.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Pour avoir été dans le Nord, il y a
quelques années, je pense que je sais les sentiments des Cana-
diens du Nord & ce sujet. Ils ne sont pas les seuls qui soient en
quéte d’une preuve concréte de nature a les rassurer. Lorsque
j'entends les gens parler du plan McKenna, j’ai I'impression
que nous ne sommes pas plus avancés que nous I’avons été, il y
a quelques années, lorsqu’a été prise la décision de remanier
’Accord plus tard. En outre, il y a déja eu des conférences
fédérales provinciales dont certains premiers ministres se sont
dissociés quelques semaines aprés y avoir adhéré. Ainsi donc,
vgous n’auriez une confiance totale en I’accord que si ce der-
nier était réouvert?

M. Amagoalik: Oui.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Votre groupe a-t-il comparu
devant le Comité de la Chambre des communes?

M. Amagoalik: Oui. Georges Erasmus, le Conseil national
des Autochtones du Canada et moi-méme avons présenté un
exposé conjoint devant le Comité il y a trois semaines. Le
Comité est bien au courant de nos préoccupations. Je pense
que I’Accord du lac Meech est 4 I’agonie parce qu’il ne refléte
pas la réalité du Canada. La question des deux peuples fonda-
teurs est un mythe. Le fait que les Autochtones se trouvaient
ici avant 'arrivée des européens, et le fait que le Canada est
une nation bilingue, multiculturelle, doit se refléter dans
’Accord. Cest précisément a cause de cette omission que
I’Accord se meurt. Il ne refléte pas la réalité canadienne.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Nous parlerons peut-étre davan-
tage de I’Accord du lac Meech au cours de la matinée.

Le sénateur Adams: Monsieur le président, comme vous
I'avez mentionné, le sénateur Watt n’a pas pu étre ici ce matin.
Il est certes membre du présent comité, m ais il avait une réu-
nion importante qui ne pouvait pas étre annulée. Il aurait été
utile aujourd’hui étant donné qu’il a travaillé, de concert avec
M. Amagoalik, a la constitution de 1982. Jespére qu’il sera
présent a notre prochaine réunion.

Jespére également que ce ne sera pas la derniére comparu-
tion de M. Amagoalik devant ce comité. Je tiens 4 le féliciter
d’étre le premier témoin 4 comparaitre devant ce comité. Je
pense que nous commengons A peine a entendre parler de votre
peuple et de vos préoccupations au sujet des droits des Autoch-
tones.

Mes questions portent sur les grandes usines de fabrication
du Sud qui causent de la pollution dont les effets se font sou-
vent sentir jusque dans les Territoires du Nord-Ouest. Nous
découvrons maintenant que de nombreuses facettes de ’envi-
ronnement en sont touchées. Vous avez mentionné la pollution
de la neige, de I'eau et de la terre. Comment, 4 votre avis,
pourrions-nous corriger cette situation a I’avenir? Nous somes
préoccupés par la pollution qui nuit aux animaux et aux gens,
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babies. Also, many aboriginal peoples still get their food from
the animals that live around them. How do you think we can
correct that situation, especially when the time comes when we
will have to tell people that they cannot eat their usual kinds of
food?

Mr. Amagoalik: I do not have any answer as to how this
complex problem can be dealt with. One thing I do know is
that the Inuit will not change their lifestyle and diet. When
they were told that some of the animal species that they
depend on could be extinct in a few years’ time, that panicked
a lot of people. Part of the panic, though, was due to the out-
landish statements made by irresponsible bureaucrats to the
press. ]

As 1 indicated at the beginning of my remarks, we are
anxious that international treaties be worked out as quickly as
possible. We are encouraged that countries such as Canada,
the Soviet Union, Finland and other Arctic countries have
begun discussions towards this end. We hope that Canada will
be a strong force in trying to convince other nations that only
international efforts can be effective in this area. We hope that
the Canadian government will spend a good part of its
resources to this end.

Senator Adams: You mentioned the military and were say-
ing that maybe that would create jobs in some of the com-
munities from Inuvik to Yellowknife and up to Rankin Inlet
and so on. How do you see this developing in the future?
Sometimes it is very difficult to get a good job in some of the
communities. Especially in Iqaluit, because of the education
system, sometimes it is hard to get a job with the government.
Our education system is still behind that of the rest of Canada.
Are you concerned about this?

I thought I heard you say you would be glad to see better
airstrips put into these communities. What do you see for the
future? Do you see, perhaps as a result of free trade between
Canada and the United States, the American military becom-
ing more involved in the Arctic? Are you concerned about
that?

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes, we are very concerned about the mili-
tarization of the Arctic. The Inuit have not had very good
experience with the military. The military had a heavy pres-
ence in the Arctic in the 1940s and 1950s and when it left, it
left an ungodly mess. Some effort is now being made to clean
up some of that mess, but that clean-up is nowhere near done.

The Inuit organizations, of course, all have a policy that the
Arctic should be used only for peaceful purposes. We want the
Arctic to be a nuclear-free zone. We do not want submarines
of any kind. As I indicated earlier, we oppose tanker traffic.
We do not want year-round traffic.

Our understanding is that the military is expected to spend
anywhere from $700 million to $800 million in the Canadian
Arctic over these next few years. We think that this money

[Traduction)

notamment les méres qui allaitent leurs bébés. En outre, de
nombreux Autochtones tirent leurs aliments des animaux qui
vivent autour d’eux. Comment, 4 votre avis, pourrions-nous
corriger cette situation, particuliérement quand viendra le
moment ot il nous faudra dire aux gens qu’ils ne pourront plus
manger leurs aliments habituels.?

M. Amagoalik: Je n’ai aucune réponse 4 donner sur la fagon
dont ce probleme complexe peut étre réglé. Ce que je sais c’est
que les Inuit ne changeront pas leur style de vie ni leur régime
alimentaire. Quand on leur a dit que certaines espéces anima-
les, dont dépend leur vie, pourraient disparaitre dans quelques
années, un grand nombre d’entre eux ont été saisis de panique.
Cette panique a été cependant causée en partie par les déclara-
tions bizarres faites par des bureaucrates irresponsables a la
presse.

Comme je I'ai dit au début de mes observations, nous atten-
dons avec impatience que des traités internationaux soient
signés aussi vite que possible. Il est encourageant de constater
que des pays tels que le Canada, I'Union Soviétique, la Fin-
lande et d’autres pays de I’Arctique ont entamé des discussions
a cette fin. Nous espérons que le Canada se posera comme une
force pour essayer de convaincre les autres nations que seuls
les efforts internationaux peuvent étre efficaces dans ce
domaine. Nous espérons que le gouvernement du Canada
affectera une grande partie de ses ressources a cette fin.

Le sénateur Adams: Vous avez parlé de bases militaires et
avez dit que peut-étre elles créeraient des emplois dans quel-
ques-unes des collectivités allant de Inuvik a Yellowknife, a
Rankin Inlet, etc. Comment envisagez-vous tout cela? Parfois,
il est trés difficile d’obtenir un bon emploi dans quelques-unes
des collectivités. Particuliérement a4 Iqaluit, en raison du sys-
téme d’éducation, il est parfois difficile d’obtenir un emploi
dans la fonction publique. Notre syst¢éme d’éducation est
encore en retard par rapport 4 celui du reste du Canada. Etes-
vous préoccupé par ce fait?

J’ai cru vous avoir entendu affirmer que vous seriez content
de voir la construction de meilleures pistes d’atterrissage dans
ces collectivités. Comment entrevoyez-vous I'avenir? Pensez-
vous que, a la suite peut-étre du Libre-échange entre le
Canada et les Etats-Unis, les militaires américains pourraient
affirmer davantage leur présence dans I'Arctique. Etes-vous
préoccupé a ce sujet?

M. Amagoalik: Oui, la militarisation de I’Arctique nous
préoccupe beaucoup. Les Inuit n’ont pas eu de trés bonnes
expériences avec les militaires. Ceux-ci avaient une présence
tres marquée dans I’Arctique dans les années 40 et 50 et
lorsqu’ils sont partis, ils ont laissé un gédchis, mais c’est loin
d’étre fini.

Bien siir les organisations Inuit demandent toutes de n’utili-
ser I’Arctique qu’a des fins pacifiques. Nous voulons que I’Arc-
tique soit une zone dénucléarisée. Nous ne voulons voir ici
aucune sorte de sous-marins. Comme je I’ai indiqué plutét,
nous sommes opposés au trafic des pétroliers. Nous ne voulons
pas de trafic de pétroliers a longueur d’année.

Si nous comprenons bien, les militaires vont dépenser entre
700 millions de dollars et 800 millions de dollars dans I’Arcti-
que canadien au cours des prochaines années. Nous pensons
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could be better used. Many of our communities in the Arctic
are in third-world conditions. Housing is terrible. We have a
suicide rate that is three or four times that of the national
average. To spend $700 million to $800 million on military
hardware and activities is, in our view, a waste of money. We
believe that money could be better used.

Senator Hébert: You mentioned at the outset, Mr. Amagoa-
lik, a lot of your important concerns on the environment. In
what way have you been listened to? What is your plot to
influence the government or governments in those matters? It
seems that more numerous communities have a lot of trouble
trying to convince their governments, be they federal or pro-
vincial, to do something more than study and make speeches.
In what way do you hope to be able to influence governments
on such an important matter for the future of the north?

Mr. Amagoalik: We are hoping to be involved in the discus-
sions that have already begun. There was a meeting in Yellow-
knife two weeks ago, I believe, which involved five or six Arctic
nations. The Inuit Circumpolar Conference has observer status
at those discussions. My understanding is that Mary Simon,
the President of the ICC, would like more than observer status
at such meetings.

The reason why we feel that we have to be more intimately
involved is because our people must understand what is going
on. When the news about toxic pollutants in the Arctic first
broke, we heard about it through the news media. As we all
know, the media are not always very responsible. Therefore,
we want to be involved at all levels of discussions and we want
the ability to communicate to our people.

As 1 said, our people have to understand this process
because they are really what is being discussed. Unfortunately,
through funding cutbacks on the part of government, we lost
some of our ability to communicate with our people. We are
hoping that this funding will be restored to the level which will
allow us to regain the ability to communicate that we lost over
the past couple of years.

Senator Hébert: Could you elaborate on the real effects of
these cuts to your funding for communication purposes? What
does it mean in practice? What have you really lost?

Mr. Amagoalik: The cuts over the past two years have been
especially hard on us. We have had to cut our staff down to the
bare minimum. We do not travel unless it is absolutely neces-
sary. I have been stuck here in Ottawa for the past year, for
example, because I cannot afford to travel and I cannot afford
to hire staff. It is unfortunate, because this is a very critical
time in our country. We want to be involved in discussions on
such things as Meech Lake, and it restricts our ability to do

that.

[Traduction)

que cet argent pourrait étre mieux utilisé. Bon nombre de nos
collectivités dans I’Arctique vivent dans des conditions analo-
gues a celles des habitants du Tiers-Monde. Le logement est
affreux. Nous avons un taux de suicide de trois & quatre fois
supérieur a la moyenne nationale. Consacrer entre 700 millions
de dollars et 800 millions de dollars & I’équipement et a des
activités militaires est, 4 notre avis, un gaspillage d’argent.
Nous pensons que cet argent pourrait étre mieux utilisé.

Le sénateur Hébert: M. Amagoalik, vous avez mentionné au
début des tas de préoccupations importantes que vous avez au
sujet de ’environnement. De quelle facon vous a-t-on écouté?
Quel est votre plan pour influencer le ou les gouvernements 4
ce sujet? Il semble que de plus en plus de collectivités ont de la
difficulté a convaincre les gouvernements, que ce soit sur le
plan fédéral ou provincial, a faire un peu plus que des études
ou des discours. De quelle fagon espérez-vous pouvoir influen-
cer les gouvernements sur une question si importante pour
I’avenir du Nord?

M. Amagoalik: Nous espérons participer aux discussions
déja entamées. On a tenu, il y a deux semaines, & Yellowknife
une réunion a laquelle, je pense, ont participé cing ou six
nations de I’Arctique. La Conférence inuit du Cercle polaire
(CICP) a un statut d’observateur dans ces discussions. D’aprés
ce que je sais, Mary Simon, la présidente de la CICP, voudrait
avoir plus qu’un statut d’observateur a ces réunions.

Nous pensons que nous devons avoir une part plus active a
ces discussions, parce que nos peuples doivent comprendre ce
qui se passe. Lorsqu’on a publi¢ pour la premiére fois les nou-
velles au sujet des polluants toxiques de I'Arctique, nous
'avons appris par les médias. Comme vous le savez tous, les
médias n’ont pas toujours une attitude trés responsable. Par
conséquent, nous voulons participer a tous les niveaux de dis-
cussion et avoir la capacité de communiquer avec notre peuple.

Comme je I'ai dit, notre peuple doit comprendre ce proces-
sus parce qu’il se trouve réellement au cceur des discussions.
Malheureusement, en raison des réductions financiéres prati-
quées par le gouvernement, nous avons perdu en partie les
moyens qui nous permettaient de communiquer avec notre
peuple. Nous espérons que ces fonds seront rétablis 4 leur
niveau antérieur afin que nous puissions récupérer tous les
moyens de communications que nous avons perdus au cours
des derniéres années. <

Le sénateur Hébert: Pourriez-vous donner plus de détails
sur les effets réels de ces réductions sur le financement de vos
objectifs de communication? Qu’'est-ce que cela signifie en
fait? Qu’avez-vous réellement perdu?

M. Amagoalik: Au cours des deux derniéres années, les
réductions nous ont particuliérement durement touchés. Nous
avons dii réduire notre personnel au strict minimum. Nous ne
voyageons qu'en cas de nécessité absolue. Par exemple, jai
moi-méme été coincé ici 2 Ottawa I'année derniére, parce que
je n’ai pas les moyens de voyager ni les moyens de recruter des
employés. C’est malheureux, parce que notre pays traverse une
période cruciale. Nous voulons participer aux discussions
comme celles sur ’Accord du lac Meech, et ces réductions
financiéres nous empéchent de le faire.
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Senator Hébert: What would be the total amount of these
cuts per year?

Mr. Amagoalik: Since 1984, in dollar terms we have lost
approximately 70 per cent of our annual budget. This year’s
cuts in dollar terms amounted to approximately $100,000.

Senator Hébert: Do these cuts affect other types of organi-
zations that deal with the Inuit or other aboriginal groups?

Mr. Amagoalik: The cuts were right across the board. The
budgets for the regional affiliates were cut by 15 per cent.

Senator Hébert: Can you tell me what sort of services are
cut? Are they office services or radio services?

Mr. Amagoalik: Our national organization and our regional
affiliates were cut by 15 per cent. The Inuit Broadcasting Cor-
poration lost 25 per cent of their budget. The one Inuit paper
that I know of that was cut was from the Inuvialuit region. My
understanding is that that paper is to be shut down unless they
get some kind of reprieve.

Senator Hébert: Is that important to your survival and to
the defence of your causes?

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes, it is. If you are not able to communi-
cate with the people in your constituency, then you are not
doing your job.

Senator Hébert: You mentioned the self-government con-
cept. I am speaking for myself but also for many people who
are not well informed about this concept. Could you define
what the aboriginal peoples mean when they speak of self-gov-
ernment? For some people that has a connotation of superi-
ority. Could you explain to these ignorant white people what
you are talking about?

Mr. Amagoalik: Self-government in the Northwest Territo-
ries would mean the division of the existing Northwest Territo-
ries into two parts, creating two new territories. These territo-
ries would not be new because Canadians are familiar with
territorial forms of government, and these would be no differ-
ent. We are not talking about immediate provincial status.
That is some years down the road. When we are ready for that,
we will start discussions. At the same time, we do not want the
possibility of provincial status to be closed. As I have men-
tioned, Meech Lake would effectively close the door.

In the Canadian Arctic, our form of self-government would
not be anything new to Canadians. It would be well within our
federal traditions and the Canadian Constitution.

Senator Hébert: You say that it will be according to your
own tradition, which will mean that the government may not
be of the British model.

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Hébert: Quel serait le montant total de ces
réductions par année?

M. Amagoalik: Depuis 1984, nous avons perdu, en termes de
dollars, environ 70 p. 100 de notre budget annuel. Cette année,
les réductions s’élévent a environ 100 000 $.

Le sénateur Hébert: Ces réductions touchent-elles d’autres
types d’organisations qui traitent avec les Inuit ou d’autres
groupes autochtones?

M. Amagoalik: Les réductions ont été faites de fagon tout a
fait systématique. Les budgets des groupes régionaux affiliés
ont été réduits de 15 p. 100.

Le sénateur Hébert: Pouvez-vous me dire quels genre de ser-
vices ont été réduits? Sont-ce des services administratifs ou des
services de radio?

M. Amagoalik: Notre organisation nationale et les groupes
régionaux affiliés ont subi des réductions de 15p. 100. La
Société inuit de télédiffusion a perdu 25 p. 100 de son budget.
Le seul journal inuit qui, 4 ce que je sache, a été frappé par les
réductions, est celui de la région d’Inuvialuit. D’aprés ce que je
sais, ce journal cessera de paraitre, s’il ne bénéficie pas d’une
sorte de sursis.

Le sénateur Hébert: Est-ce que ce journal est important
pour votre survie et pour la défense de vos causes?

M. Amagoalik: Oui, il I’est. Si vous ne pouvez pas communi-
quer avec les gens de votre circonscription, vous ne remplissez
donc pas vos fonctions.

Le sénateur Hébert: Vous avez parlé du concept d’autono-
mie administrative. Je parle pour moi-méme mais aussi pour
les nombreuses personnes qui ne sont pas bien informées de ce
concept. Pourriez-vous définir pour nous ce que les peuples
autochtones veulent dire lorsqu’ils parlent d’autonomie admi-
nistrative? Pour certains, ce concept a une connotation de
supériorité. Pourriez-vous expliquer 4 ces blancs ignorants ce
dont vous parlez?

M. Amagoalik: L’autonomie administrative, dans les Terri-
toires du Nord-Ouest, signifierait la division des Territoires du
Nord-Ouest actuels en deux parties, créant ainsi deux nou-
veaux territoires. Ces territoires ne seraient pas nouveaux,
étant donné que les Canadiens sont familiers avec les formes
de gouvernement de territorial; et ces deux territoires ne
seraient pas différents. Nous ne parlons pas de I'octroi du sta-
tut de province dans I'immédiat. Cela ne viendrait que quel-
ques années plus tard; une fois préts pour cela, nous entame-
rons les discussions nécessaires. Par contre, nous ne voulons
pas que soit fermée la possibilité d’accession au statut de pro-
vince. Comme je I’ai mentionné, I’Accord du lac Meech ferme-
rait effectivement cette porte.

Dans I'Arctique canadien, notre forme d’autonomie admi-
nistrative ne serait rien de nouveau pour les Canadiens. Elle
s’inscrirait bien dans nos traditions fédérales et dans la consti-
tution canadienne.

Le sénateur Hébert: Vous dites que ce sera, selon vos pro-
pres traditions, ce qui pourrait signifier qu'un tel gouverne-
ment peut ne pas étre inspiré du modéle britannique.
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Mr. Amagoalik: I do not know what you mean by British
model.

Senator Hébert: Do you have in mind a type of parliamen-
tary system?

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes. It will be no different than what exists
at the present time. The only difference would be that 85 per
cent of the residents living in Nunavut would be Inuit. Because
the Inuit have a majority, they would effectively be in charge.

Senator Hébert: If the Northwest Territories were divided
into two parts, does that mean that the majority of one part
would be populated by Inuit?

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes.

Senator Hébert: What is the majority population of the
other part?

Mr. Amagoalik: Dene-Métis.

Senator Hébert: Would they look for the same type of gov-
ernment also?

Mr. Amagoalik: [ would think so, yes.

Senator Hébert: Without this division, the Inuit and the
Dene-Métis form the majority in the Northwest Territories, is
that right?

Mr. Amagoalik: Are they the majority in the Assembly?

Senator Hébert: Yes, that is my question.

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes, they are. One of the main reasons that
we want to divide the Northwest Territories into two regions is
that it is too large. It consists of more than one-third of the
land mass of Canada. Living in Baffin Island and having your
capital in Yellowknife is the same as living in Montreal and
having your capital in Regina. It is ridiculous.

Senator Hébert: What is the progress at the present time
toward this self-government concept?

Mr. Amagoalik: The next step is to come to terms on a
boundary. That has been a stumbling block. We have been

working on that for the past eight years.

A plebiscite took place in the Northwest Territories in 1982
on the issue of division. We won that plebiscite by a margin of
50 per cent to 48 per cent. There was a 90 per cent turnout in
the Inuit communities, and they voted 75 or 80 per cent for
division. There was a lower turnout in the Mackenzie Valley
and the vote was split. Since that time we have been attempt-
ing to work out an agreement on a boundary. We are very
close to coming to an agreement. We started out with a large
difference and we have worked it down to a very small area. I
have reason to believe that this could be worked out in the next

few months.

Senator Hébert: 1 agree that the Meech Lake Accord is
probably a dead goose, but if it did pass it would obviously
make it almost impossible for the Northwest Territories or the
Yukon to become provinces. Would it make it equally impos-

[Traduction)

M. Amagoalik: Je ne sais pas ce que vous entendez par
modele britannique.

Le sénateur Hébert: Avez-vous 4 I’esprit un type de systéme
parlementaire?

M. Amagoalik: Oui, ce ne sera rien de différent de ce qui
existe actuellement. La seule différence serait que 85p. 100 des
habitants de Nunavut seraient des Inuit et puisque les Inuit
forment la majorité, ils assumeraient effectivement la direction
d’un tel gouvernement.

Le sénateur Hébert: Si les Territoires du Nord-Ouest se
scindaient en deux parties, cela signifie-il que les habitants de
I'une des parties seraient en majorité des Inuit?

M. Amagoalik: Oui.

Le sénateur Hébert: Quelle est la population majoritaire de
l'autre partie?

M. Amagoalik: Les Métis de la nation dénée.

Le sénateur Hébert: Envisageraient-ils eux aussi de créer le
méme type de gouvernement?

M. Amagoalik: Je pense que oui.

Le sénateur Hébert: Sans cette division, les Inuit et les
Meétis de la nation dénée forment la majorité de la population
des Territoires du Nord-Ouest?

M. Amagoalik: Est-ce qu’ils sont majoritaires au sein de
’Assemblée?

Le sénateur Hébert: Oui, c’est bien ce que Jje demande.

M. Amagoalik: Oui, il le sont. L’une des principales raisons
pour lesquelles nous voulons diviser les Territoires du Nord-
Ouest en deux régions réside dans le fait qu’ils sont trop vastes.
Ces territoires représentent plus du tiers de la superficie du
Canada. Habiter dans I’Ile de Baffin et avoir sa capitale 4 Yel-
lowknife revient au méme qu’habiter 4 Montréal et avoir sa
capitale a Regina. Cest ridicule.

Le sénateur Hébert: Ol en étes-vous actuellement dans
votre démarche vers ce concept d’autonomie administrative?

M. Amagoalik: La prochaine étape consiste a arriver d un
accord sur la définition des frontiéres. Cette question s’est
révélée une pierre d’achoppement. Nous y travaillons depuis
les huit derniéres années.

“En 1982, on a tenu dans les Territoires du Nord-Ouest un
plébiscite sur la question de la division. Nous avons gagné ce
plébiscite par une marge de 50 p. 100 contre 48 p-100. Il ya
eu un taux de participation de 90 p. 100 dans les collectivités
inuit, et elles ont voté entre 75 4 80 p. 100 en faveur de la divi-
sion. La participation a été plus faible dans la Vallée du Mac-
Kenzie et le vote s’est divisé. Depuis, nous avons essayé de par-
venir & une entente sur les frontiéres. Nous en sommes tout
prés. Nous avons commencé avec une différence importante et
nous I’avons réduite & trés peu de chose. J’aj de bonnes raisons
de croire que cette entente pourrait se conclure dans les pro-
chains mois.

Le sénateur Hébert: Je suis d’accord avec le fait que
’Entente du lac Meech est probablement I'agonie, mais si
Jjamais elle était adoptée, elle anéantirait certainement presque
toute possibilité pour les Territoires du Nord-Ouest et le
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sible for your immediate purpose? That is to say, would the
division of the Northwest Territories into two new territories
need unanimity also?

Mr. Amagoalik: No.

Senator Hébert: That could be done even with the Meech
Lake Accord in place?

Mr. Amagoalik: That is right.

Senator Hébert: However, it would mean that provincial
status would have to be forgotten.

Mr. Amagoalik: That is right.

Senator Hébert: Why would you like your territory to be a
province? Why would you think that would be important for
you?

Mr. Amagoalik: It is important that all citizens of Canada
have the same rights. As it now stands, we do not. One of the
issues that we face is sovereignty in the Arctic. Sovereignty in
the Arctic is not only about submarines or ice-breakers. It
means giving the citizens of that part of Canada the same
rights and responsibilities as other Canadians. It is important
that the residents in the Territories be made to feel that they
have the same rights as other Canadians.

Senator Hébert: Could you give us an example of those
rights that I have and that you do not have?

Mr. Amagoalik: For one thing, when you live in a province
your provincial government has the right to the resources in
that province. As it is now, constitutionally the resources in the
Territories are controlled by the federal government. That is
an important difference.

Senator Hébert: Are there others that come to your mind?

Mr. Amagoalik: We have no ability to appoint judges to the
Supreme Court; we have no ability to appoint senators. That is
all done by Ottawa.

Senator Hébert: That is a serious matter.
Mr. Amagoalik: Yes.

Senator Hébert: I will have more questions later, but I have
talked long enough at this point in time.

Senator Fairbairn: Welcome, Mr. Amagoalik. I should like
to start by following on Senator Macquarrie and Senator Héb-
ert’s questions and comments about the Constitution.

As I listened to you this morning, I could not help but
reflect, over a great many years, that if people in the aborigi-
nal community have difficulty in accepting a trust factor in
terms of changes or additions that might be made after Meech
Lake is passed, I can understand that.

Going back to the early eighties is as good an example as
any of what might have contributed to those feelings. Here I

[Traduction)

Yukon d’accéder au statut de province. Son adoption sonne-
rait-elle également le glas de vos objectifs immédiats? Par
exemple, la division des Territoires du Nord-Ouest en deux
nouveaux territoires nécessiterait-elle 'unanimité également?

M. Amagoalik: Non.

Le sénateur Hébert: Cette division pourrait-elle avoir lieu
méme avec I’adoption de I’Accord du lac Meech?

M. Amagoalik: C’est ¢a.

Le sénateur Hébert: Mais cela veut dire qu’il faudrait écar-
ter I'idée de devenir une province.

M. Amagoalik: C’est exact.

Le sénateur Hébert: Pourquoi aimeriez-vous que votre terri-
toire soit une province? Pourquoi, 4 votre avis, serait-ce si
important pour vous?

M. Amagoalik: Il est important que tous les citoyens du
Canada aient les mémes droits. Hors, vu I’état actuel des cho-
ses, nous n’avons pas les mémes droits. L’'une des questions
auxquelles nous faisons face est la souveraineté dans 1’Arcti-
que. Hors la souveraineté dans I’Arctique ne porte pas seule-
ment sur les sous-marins ou les brise-glace. Elle revient 4 don-
ner aux citoyens de cette partie du Canada les mémes droits et
les mémes responsabilités que les autres Canadiens. Il est
important que les habitants des Territoires puissent sentir
qu’ils ont les mémes droits que les autres Canadiens.

Le sénateur Hébert: Pourriez-vous nous donner un exemple
de ces droits que j’ai et que vous n’avez pas?

M. Amagoalik: A titre d’exemple, quand vous vivez dans
une province, votre gouvernement provincial a le droit de dis-
poser des ressources de cette province. Hors, dans I’état actuel
des choses, selon la constitution, les ressources des Territoires
sont contrdlées par le gouvernement fédéral. 1l s’agit d’une dif-
férence importante.

Le sénateur Hébert: Avez-vous d’autres exemples présents a
’esprit?

M. Amagoalik: Nous n’avons pas la capacité de nommer des
juges a la Cour supréme, nous n’avons pas la capacité de nom-
mer des sénateurs. Ce sont 1a des décisions qui sont prises par
Ottawa.

Le sénateur Hébert: I1 s’agit d’'une question importante.
M. Amagoalik: Oui.

Le sénateur Hébert: Je poserai d’autres questions un peu
plus tard, mais pour I'instant j’ai parlé assez longtemps.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: M. Amagoalik, je vous souhaite la
bienvenue. J’aimerais commencer en continuant avec les ques-
tions et les commentaires du sénateur Macquarrie et du séna-
teur Hébert sur la constitution.

En vous écoutant parler ce matin, je n’ai pu m’empécher de
réfléchir sur un grand nombre d’années d’histoire. Cette réflec-
tion m’a amené 4 comprendre pourquoi les gens des collectivi-
tés autochtones avaient de la difficulté & accepter comme un
article de foi toute proposition visant a4 apporter des modifica-
tions ou des ajouts a I’accord du lac Meech aprés son adoption.

En remontant au débat des années 80, j’ai trouvé un bon

exemple des erreurs qui ont contribué a ce sentiment de
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refer to the constitutional changes that were negotiated at that
time. Aboriginal concerns were initially excluded. However,
you were not the sole group. You shared that spotlight with
women as well.

Changes were made; in fact, the first change that was made
after the agreements in the early eighties was to try to rectify
the situation concerning aboriginal people. That was when the
constitutional process was brought into play that would enable
all the aboriginal groups to begin their own constitutional dis-
cussions. Unfortunately, however, they had a time limit; and as
we know all too well, as soon as that time limit was reached
the process was ended.

I mention those points because you said at the beginning of
your remarks that our constitutional discussions, controversy
and tension at the moment is based on two founding peoples,
which you noted was a myth. I agree with you. This is some-
thing that those of us, who travelled north two or three years
ago holding public hearings on Meech Lake, realized. If we
had had any doubts in our minds about founding peoples, our
travels to the north certainly educated senators on the fact that
there are certainly not just two founding peoples in this coun-
try. The aboriginal people are distinctive and basic to the way
this country has evolved.

Because of the situation I have just outlined of past exclu-
sions, when we are asked to think about passing Meech Lake
with the idea that changes would be made in the future—and
you do not agree with that, nor do I—what would be a mini-
mum that one would expect in a reasonable climate of goodwill
that the aboriginal people might achieve through reasonable
changes to Meech before it is passed? When I say
“reasonable” 1 do not mean “outrageous”; I mean
“reasonable.”

For example, we have almost forgotten that in Meech itself
there is an agenda that is set forth for the future. On that
agenda, the priority considerations are Senate reform and fish.
Would a minimum requirement be an inclusion on that agenda
of the aboriginal constitutional process and without a deadline
as that item had in the early eighties? The deadline became
the reality rather than a target and a gqal. In othe!' words, .it
became a cutoff. Would that be a minimum requirement in
your minds?

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes, that would be our minimum.

Senator Fairbairn: In terms of the north, and prior to the
passage of Meech, would another be the question of province-
hood and the extension of boundaries? We have heard it said
often that, “We will deal with that matter in the next round.”
The fact of the matter is that at least one provincial premier—
and I am sure that privately more did also—hailed that curb

[Traduction]

méfiance. Je parle ici des négociations qui étaient engagées a
ce moment afin d’apporter des modifications a la constitution.
Au départ, on avait mis de c6té les préoccupations des Autoch-
tones. Vous n’avez pas été cependant le seul groupe a étre
écarté. Vous partagiez ce triste privilége avec les femmes.

Les modifications ont été apportées;—en fait, la premiére
modification apportée aprés I’accord constitutionnel au début
des années 80, visait a essayer de redresser le tort fait aux peu-
ples autochtones. Ce ne fut quaprés la mise en ceuvre du pro-
cessus constitutionnel que tous les groupes autochtones ont pu
entamer leurs propres discussions constitutionnelles. Malheu-
reusement cependant, il y avait un délai; et comme nous le
savons tous trop bien, dés que le délai a expiré, on a mis fin
aux négociations.

Je mentionne ces points parce que vous avez dit au début de
vos observations que les discussions, les controverses et les ten-
sions que nous avons en ce moment sur la constitution se fon-
dent sur la question des deux peuples fondateurs, ce qui est un
mythe, avez-vous fait remarquer. Je suis d’accord avec vous.
C’est un constat qu’ont fait ceux d’entre nous qui ont voyagé
dans le Nord, il y a deux ou trois ans, pour tenir des audiences
publiques sur I’Accord du lac Meech. Si nous avions eu des
doutes dans notre esprit au sujet des peuples fondateurs, nos
voyages dans le Nord ont certainement éclairé des sénateurs
sur le fait qu’il n’y a certainement pas que deux peuples fonda-
teurs dans ce pays. Les autochtones sont distincts et essentiels
a I’évolution de ce pays.

C’est précisément a cause des exclusions que je viens de
mentionner que je refuse d’accepter—tout comme vous d’ail-
leurs—Ila proposition consistant a faire adopter tout de suite
I’Accord du lac Meech pour y apporter ensuite des modifica-
tions. Maintenant, supposons que I'on veuille apporter des
modifications raisonnables & I’Accord du lac Meech avant son
adoption, quel serait alors le minimum que pourraient obtenir
les peuples autochtones dans un climat raisonnable de bonne
volonté? Quand je dis «des changements raisonnables» je
n’entends point par ld «des changements impossibles», mais
bien «raisonnables».

Par exemple, nous avons presque oublié que I’Accord du lac
Meech comporte en soi un calendrier des questions 4 régler
plus tard. Dans ce calendrier, la réforme du Sénat et la péche
sont les questions prioritaires. Ne pourrait-on pas inclure dans
ce calendrier, a titre d’exigence minimale, les discussions cons-
titutionnelles avec les Autochtones, et cela sans fixer un délaj
comme ce fut le cas au début des années 80?7 Ce délaj était
devenu I'essentiel plut6t qu’un objectif et un but i atteindre.
En d’autres termes, ce délai est devenu la date de I’arrété des
discussions. Cette solution constituerait-elle i vos yeux une
exigence minimale?

M. Amagoalik: Oui, ce serait notre exigence minimale.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Toujours avant 'adoption de
I’Accord du lac Meech, est-ce que la question de I’accession au
statut de province et celle du recul des frontiéres ne constitue-
raient-elles pas pour le Nord des exigences fondamentales?
Nous avons souvent entendu dire que «nous réglerons cette
question dans la prochaine ronde de négociations.» Le fait est
que au moins un des premiers ministres provinciaux a
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on potential provincehood or negotiation therefore as an
achievement, obviously thinking to the future.

I am asking this question because it was something that pro-
foundly affected those of us who travelled north. We perhaps
did not realize that, from a northern perspective, the idea of
the extension of boundaries and provincehood had been a lively
consideration in the minds of some premiers in the west and in
Quebec for a period of time. I do not think that that is thor-
oughly appreciated by southerners. Therefore, is that one fun-
damental commitment that one would want before taking on
blind faith that it might be dealt with in a second round?

Mr. Amagoalik: That is right. We are concerned about it.
When we saw that provision giving the provinces the ability to
extend their boundaries, a red flag went up right away,
because we know that Alberta has ambitions to extend their
boundary northward. They want to take over the Mackenzie
Valley. We have heard that for years. We know that
Manitoba, Ontario and Quebec are looking at Hudson’s Bay.
They want to divide up Hudson’s Bay. We have also heard talk
that Quebec has ambitions to extend its territory northward; so
that provision is not there by accident.

Senator Fairbairn: I think that happened back in the early
1980s. We are not really looking at an intrusion on the part of
the federal government here, but at a kind of future vision of
provinces.

Mr. Amagoalik: That’s right.

Senator Fairbairn: Ultimately the aboriginal population of
Canada must look to the federal government as their protector
in these kinds of negotiations. On two occasions in the early
1980s—and I say this because I belong to the party that was
then involved—the protectors somehow managed not to carry
the day. I suppose that is why I am making an issue of it. I
know, for instance, that right after the Meech Lake Agree-
ment was reached in 1987, the Premier of Quebec was speak-
ing to a legislative committee of the National Assembly, and
he noted, with some pride or satisfaction, that a provision had
been included in the Meech Lake Accord which left the door
open to future northward movement or James Bay or Hudson
Bay movement for the Province of Quebec. I wanted to get
that on record today because it is not widely understood or
appreciated in Southern Canada.

Mr. Amagoalik: That is right. There is quite a bit of offload-
ing of responsibility going on. I am sure you have all heard
about the devolution from Ottawa to Yellowknife. That is
offloading. The federal government is offloading its respon-
sibilities to the provinces and the territories. I am sure that
some of the provinces are aware, but some may not know. It is
very important for Canadians to understand that this offload-

[Traduction]

acclamé—car je suis sir que dans leur for intérieur plusieurs
autres |’ont fait—ce coup de frein appliqué aux négociations en
vue de l'accession au statut de province, comme objectif a
atteindre 4 plus ou moins long terme.

Je pose cette question parce que ce point avait profondément
marqué ceux d’entre nous qui avaient effectué le voyage dans
le Nord. Nous n’avions peut-étre pas compris que, en ce qui
concerne le Nord, I'idée du recul des frontiéres et de ’octroi du
statut de province aux Territoires a été sérieusement envisagée
par certains premiers ministres de I'Ouest et du Québec pen-
dant un certain temps. Je ne pense pas que les Canadiens du
Sud aient examiné cette question sous tous ses angles. Vou-
driez-vous donc un engagement sérieux avant de croire aveu-
glément au réglement de cette question au cours d’une seconde
ronde de négociations?

M. Amagoalik: C’est exact. Nous sommes préoccupés a ce
sujet. Lorsque nous avons constaté qu’une disposition accordait
aux provinces le droit d’étendre leurs frontiéres, nous avons
tout de suite brandi le drapeau rouge, parce que nous savons
que la province de I’Alberta a des visées expansionnistes vers le
nord. Elle veut annexer la Vallée du MacKenzie. Nous en
entendons parler depuis des années. Nous savons que le Mani-
toba, I'Ontario et le Québec ont les yeux rivés sur la Baie
d’Hudson. Ils veulent la diviser. En outre, nous avons entendu
dire que le Québec désire ardemment agrandir son territoire
vers le nord; donc on voit que cette disposition ne figure pas
dans I’Accord de fagon accidentelle.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Je pense que cela remonte au début
des années 80. Nous ne cherchons vraiment pas a voir s’il y a
intrusion de la part du gouvernement fédéral dans ce domaine,
mais plutdt nous sommes en quéte d’une vision future des pro-
vinces.

M. Amagoalik: C’est exact.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Mais enfin, les populations autoch-
tones du Canada doivent considérer le gouvernement fédéral
comme leur protecteur dans ce genre de négociation. A deux
reprises au début des années 80—je le signale parce que
j’adhére encore au parti qui y était alors concerné—Iles protec-
teurs se sont un peu arrangés pour ne pas gagner la partie. Je
suppose que c’est pourquoi j'en fais un sujet de controverse.
Par exemple, je sais que, immédiatement aprés la conclusion
de I’Accord du lac Meech en 1987, le Premier ministre du
Québec a, dans un discours 4 un comité législatif de I’Assem-
blée nationale, souligné, avec fierté et satisfaction, que
I’Accord du lac Meech comportait une clause qui laissait 4 la
province du Québec la porte ouverte 4 une expansion vers le
Nord, c’est-a-dire vers la Baie James ou la Baie d’Hudson. Jai
voulu en parler publiquement aujourd’hui parce que cette
question n’est pas bien comprise ni bien évaluée par le Sud du
Canada.

M. Amagoalik: C’est exact. Les parties intéressées a ce sujet
se renvoient toujours la balle. Je suis sir que vous avez tous
entendu parler de la délégation de pouvoir d’Ottawa a Yel-
lowknife. 1l s’agit en fait d’'une fagon pour le gouvernement
fédéral de se décharger de ses responsabilités sur les provinces
et les territoires. Je suis siir que certaines provinces s’en aper-
goivent mais d’autres peut-étre ne remarquent rien. Il importe
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ing is going on and that constitutionally the Government of
Canada is responsible to the aboriginal peoples.

Senator Fairbairn: In the discussion on Meech Lake that
has raged across Southern Canada in recent months, we are
hearing each day, now that the deadline is approaching, about
statements, efforts, contradictions and so on, particularly in
the media. Unfortunately your group and other aboriginal
groups have not had the wherewithal in this discussion to do
what you started to do a decade or so ago—that is, form effec-
tive groups, such as the Inuit Tapirisat, to deal with the mat-
ter. What is the general level of knowledge in Northern
Canada among the Inuit people on this debate that is very
much alive in the south, given the problems of distance, lan-
guage and the fact that groups like yours—and I understand
this—are stuck here in Ottawa and unable to get the message
out?

Mr. Amagoalik: The understanding among our people is
very limited. They know that the country is in trouble and that
the debate is over Quebec, but that is about all they know. I do
not know whether the average Canadian has a good under-
standing of what is going on, but I do know that in the north
our people have very little understanding of what is going on.

Senator Fairbairn: Without the access that we have in
Southern Canada to communications systems, the traditional
and sometimes the only way of disseminating information is
personally and orally.

Mr. Amagoalik: Face to face, yes.

Senator Fairbairn: Are you saying that that 4s not being
done?

Mr. Amagoalik: Not at this time.

Senator Fairbairn: Certainly Southern Canadians are not
disseminating that information. At least, they are not flocking
north to tell the people about what is going on, and it is not
being done by groups such as yours, simply because you do not
have the wherewithal to do it.

Mr. Amagoalik: That is right.

Senator Fairbairn: Earlier you mentioned the environment,
which in the Arctic is incredibly fragile, and you talked about
tanker traffic and the fact that you oppose year-round tanker
traffic. Would you give us an indication of the traffic flow in
the Arctic that now exists? How extensive is it? Where does it
come from? What do these tankers carry? The word “tanker”
almost implies the threat of a spill. Has there been any oil
spills, even small ones, through tanker traffic in the Arctic?

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes, but I do not know the exact number of
accidents that have occurred. I do know of two or three acci-
dents. A number of years ago a ship at Hall Beach ran into an
iceberg spilling thousands of gallons into the water. This past

[Traduction]

au plus haut point que les Canadiens sachent que le gouverne-
ment fédéral se décharge de ses responsabilités et que, consti-
tutionnellement c’est lui qui a la responsabilité des peuples
autochtones.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Dans la discussion sur I’Accord du
lac Meech qui fait rage dans tout le Sud du Canada au cours
des derniers mois, nous entendons chaque jour, vu que le délai
approche, des déclarations, des efforts, des contradictions, etc.,
particuli¢rement dans les médias. Malheureusement, votre
groupe ainsi que les autres groupes autochtones n’ont pas eu,
dans cette discussion, les moyens nécessaires de poursuivre ce
que vous aviez commencé il y a plus ou moins une décennie—
C'est-a-dire, constituer des groupes efficaces, par exemple celui
des Inuit Tapirisat, pour régler la question. Que savent, d’une
facon générale, les peuples inuit du Nord du Canada, du débat
qui fait rage dans le Sud du pays, vu les problémes de distance,
de langues et le fait que des groupes comme le vtre—et je
comprends la raison—sont coincés ici @ Ottawa incapables de
livrer le message?

M. Amagoalik: Nos peuples ont une connaissance trés pau-
vre de ce débat. Ils savent que le pays est en difficulté et que le
débat porte sur le Québec, c’est  peu prés tout ce qu’ils savent.
Je ne sais pas si le Canadien moyen comprend bien ce qui se
passe, mais je sais que dans le Nord nos peuples sont trés peu
au courant.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Sans I’accés au systéme de commu-
nication dont nous disposons dans le Sud du Canada, le moyen
traditionnel, et parfois le seul, de disséminer I'information est
de personne a personne et de vive Voix.

M. Amagoalik: Oui, face 4 face.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Etes-vous en train de dire qu’actuel-
lement vous ne le faites pas?

M. Amagoalik: Non, pas en ce moment.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Certainement les Canadiens du Sud
du pays ne répandent pas cette information. Tout au moins, ils
ne vont pas en masse vers le Nord pour dire aux gens ce qui se
passe, et les groupes, tel le votre, ne le font pas, tout simple-
ment parce qu’ils ne disposent pas des ressources nécessaires
pour cela.

.M. Amagoalik: C’est exact.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Vous avez parlé plutot de I’environ-
nement qui, selon vous, est extrémement fragile dans I'Arcti-
que, et vous avez également parlé du trafic des pétroliers ainsi
que de votre opposition a 'ouverture de cette région & ce genre
de trafic pendant toute I'année. Pourriez-vous nous donner une
idée de 'intensité du trafic qui a lieu actuellement dans I’Arc-
tique? Est-ce que ce trafic est étendu a toute la région? D’ou
viennent les pétroliers? Que transportent-ils? Le mot «pétro-
lier» implique toujours la menace d’un déversement. Y a-t-il eu
des déversements de pétrole, méme en petites quantités, causé
par le trafic des pétroliers dans I’Arctique? :

M. Amagoalik: Oui, mais je ne sais pas le nombre exact
d’accidents qui se sont produits. Je sais qu’il y a eu deux ou
trois accidents. Il y a quelques années, & Hall Beach, un bateau
a déversé des milliers de gallons de pétrole dans I’eau, aprés
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January the military was transferring some fuel from a tanker
to a storage tank in Cape Dyer on the East Coast of Baffin
Island when a pipe broke and more than 100,000 litres were
spilled into the ground before they realized what was happen-
ing. I am aware of another spill that occurred in Northern
Labrador. So there have been accidents. At the moment there
is not year-round traffic. Most of the traffic is during the sum-
mer from July to about October. Most of the traffic is supply
ships. There are icebreakers to escort these supply ships. That
is about the extent of the traffic at this time. We think that
year-round traffic would have an unpredictable effect on the
Arctic and, for that reason, we oppose it especially in the High
Arctic. In the High Arctic the pearyi caribou migrate between
islands. When they run out of food on one island they have to
move to another and it takes years for the food supply to
regenerate. Year-round traffic would have an effect on that.
We also have to consider the fact that the seal reproduces on
the ice. The babies are born on the ice and year-round traffic,
we think, would have an effect on that as well.

Senator Fairbairn: Is there an imminent threat? Is there a
movement somewhere and, if so, where, to institute procedures
whereby there could be year-round traffic?

Mr. Amagoalik: I do not think there are immediate plans to
have year-round traffic at this time. It was the federal deficit
that saved us from the nuclear submarines and the icebreakers.
There were plans to have Arctic icebreakers up there year
round, but fortunately or unfortunately the deficit prevented
that. There is no immediate threat on the horizon in that
respect.

Senator Fairbairn: I should like to turn your attention to
major oil spills and particularly to the big spill off the coast of
Alaska. That was a populated area. The difficulty encoun-
tered, in terms of being able to quickly put in place a system to
control or contain that spill, was very evident and, I suppose, in
some cases ecologically tragic. Are there any systems in the
Arctic along these waterways that can readily be called into
play in the case of a spill? What would happen?

Mr. Amagoalik: No one really knows what would happen if
an accident of that scale were to happen. If it were to happen
in the High Arctic it would be 10 times as bad as the Valdez
spill. No one really knows how they would deal with it. I
recently read an article about Gulf Canada doing some drilling
in the Beaufort Sea and it was evident that they really do not
know how they would deal with a blowout that would unleash
10 times the amount of oil spilled from the tanker in the Alas-
kan incident. The industry does not really know how they

[Traduction)

avoir heurté un iceberg. En janvier dernier, pendant que les
militaires transbordaient du combustible d’un pétrolier & un
réservoir d’entreposage a Cape Dyer sur le cote est de I'lle de
Baffin, un tuyau s’est cassé et plus de 100 mille litres se sont
infiltrés dans le sol avant qu’ils se fussent rendu compte de
I'accident. Je sais qu’il y a eu un autre déversement dans le
nord du Labrador. Donc, il s’est produit des accidents. A
I’heure actuelle, le trafic des pétroliers ne se fait pas pendant
toute 'année. La plupart du trafic se fait en été, de juillet a
octobre environ. Il s’agit surtout de navires d’approvisionne-
ment. Il y a des brise-glace qui escortent ces navires d’approvi-
sionnement. C’est 4 peu prés tout ce que je sais au sujet de
I'importance du trafic 4 I’heure actuelle. Nous pensons que le
trafic 4 longueur d’année aurait des effets imprévisibles sur
I’Arctique et, pour cette raison, nous nous y opposons, notam-
ment dans ’Extréme-Arctique. Dans cette région, les caribous
de Peary migrent entre les iles. Lorsqu’ils ont épuisé la nourri-
ture sur une ile donnée, ils sont contraints de se rendre sur une
autre. La regénération des réserves alimentairs prend des
années. Le trafic pendant toute I'année aurait une influence
sur ce processus. Nous devons également tenir compte du fait
que les phoques se reproduisent sur la glace. Les bébés naissent
sur la glace, donc, le trafic de pétroliers pendant toute ’année,
aurait selon nous, des effets sur la reproduction des phoques.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Y a-t-il un danger imminent? Y a-t-
il un mouvement quelque part en ce sens et, dans I'affirmative,
dites-nous ot se dessine ce mouvement afin que nous enta-
mions les procédures nécessaires contre I'installation du trafic
de pétroliers 4 longueur d’année dans I'Arctique?

M. Amagoalik: Je ne pense pas qu'on prévoie instaurer
immédiatement le trafic de pétroliers a longueur d’année &
I’heure actuelle. C’est le déficit fédéral qui nous a épargnés des
sous-marins nucléaires et des brise-glace. On prévoyait des
brise-glace qui sillonneraient I’Arctique a longueur d’année,
mais heureusement ou malheureusement, le déficit nous a
épargnés de ce projet. Il n’y a pas de danger immédiat a I’hori-
zon 4 cet égard.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: J’aimerais attirer votre attention sur
d’importants déversements de pétrole et, notamment le grand
déversement qui s’est produit prés des cdtes de I’Alaska. I
s’agissait d’une région habitée. On a bien vu qu’on a eu toutes
sortes de difficultés 4 mettre rapidement en place un systéme
pour contrdler ou contenir ce déversement. Je suppose qu’a
certains égards cette lacune s’est révélée une tragédie sur le
plan écologique. Existe-t-il dans I’Arctique, le long de ces voies
maritimes, des systémes auxquels on peut facilement avoir
recours en cas de déversemnt? Qu’arriverait-il?

M. Amagoalik: Personne ne sait ce qui arriverait si un acci-
dent de cette envergure se produisait. Si cela devait arriver
dans le Haut Arctique, ce serait dix fois pire que le déverse-
ment de Valdez. Personne ne sait vraiment comment ’on s’y
prendrait. Récemment, j'ai lu un article sur des travaux de
forage que Gulf Canada effectuait dans la mer de Beaufort; il
était évident que la compagnie ne sait vraiment pas comment
elle s’y prendrait si, 4 la suite d’une explosion, il se déversait
une quantité de pétrole dix fois supérieure a celle répandue par
le pétrolier lors de I'accident survenu en Alaska. L’industrie ne
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would deal with it. There is nothing in place that could deal
with a major catastrophe of that scale.

Senator Fairbairn: If there were to be increased traffic
through the Arctic, is there any balancing factor for the people
of the Arctic in terms of economic development that would
flow from increased traffic through the Arctic, or would the
Arctic just be a kind of conduit? If there were icebreakers to
open the ice year round for more traffic, would there be any
economic spinoffs that would assist the communities in the
Arctic?

Mr. Amagoalik: I think they would just flow through. At the
moment I cannot foresee any benefits that would accrue to our
communities. They would just pick up oil and go down south.

Senator Bielish: I have lived very close to aboriginal peoples
all of my life and I grew up knowing about their problems. I
would apologize to the witness for arriving after he was well
into his presentation.

What do you see as the most important thing for your asso-
ciation at this time? I, like others, feel overwhelmed when hav-
ing to consider so many issues, and I feel that we may be going
in all directions at once and that we may not accomplish any
one single thing.

Mr. Amagoalik: From the beginning our first priority has
always been the integrity of our environment. That continues
to be our number one priority. We can talk of land claims or
self-government, but these things do not mean anything if we
are 60 feet under water or being fried by the sun. The environ-
ment is very important to us.

Our second priority is to try to establish ourselves in Canada
because, at the moment, we are being excluded. We are not
being recognized as an integral part of Canada. We want to
establish in the minds of Canadians that abo_riginal people are
a fundamental, integral part of Canadian society.

Senator Bielish: In what way is the rest of Canada not serv-
ing our aboriginal peoples? I certainly recognize that there are
people who were here before we arrived on the scene.

Mr. Amagoalik: The Constitution of Canada does recognize
the existence of aboriginal people—Inuit, Indians and Métis—
but, at the same time, our right to self-government has not
been recognized.

Senator Bielish: The Dene have now achieved some measure
of that through the negotiation of Jand claims. Does that make
you a little more hopeful about the situation?

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes. The settlement of land claims is very
important but that is only one part of our effort. Land claims
deal with some of our immediate economic problems, but our

[Traduction]

sait réellement pas comment s’y prendre. Il n’y a aucun sys-
téme en place pour combattre une catastrophe de cette enver-
gure.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Si le trafic des pétroliers devait aug-
menter dans I’Arctique, y aurait-il, pour les peuples habitant
cette région, une compensation qui se traduirait par un déve-
loppement économique que générerait 'augmentation du trafic
maritime dans la région, ou bien I’Arctique ne serait-il qu’une
voie d’écoulement du trafic. S’il y avait des brise-glace pour
ouvrir la glace 4 longueur d’année en vue d’augmenter le tra-
fic, y aurait-il des retombées économiques qui pourraient aider
les collectivités de I’Arctique?

M. Amagoalik: Je pense que les navires ne feraient que pas-
ser dans I’Arctique. Pour le moment, je ne peux prévoir aucun
avantage dont pourraient bénéficier nos collectivités. Ces navi-
res ne feraient que pomper le pétrole et descendre vers le sud.

Le sénateur Bielish: J’ai vécu trés preés des peuples autochto-
nes durant toute ma vie, et tout en grandissant, j’ai compris les
problémes avec lesquels ils étaient aux prises. Je tiens a
m’excuser auprés du témoin d’étre arrivé longtemps aprés le
début de son exposé.

Quel est, a votre avis, la chose la plus importante pour votre
association a I’heure actuelle? A TDinstar des autres, j’ai
I'impression d’étre débordé par tant de problémes 4 étudier et
je pense que nous allons peut-étre dans toutes les directions a
la fois, sans rien accomplir.

M. Amagoalik: Notre priorité essentielle a toujours été des
le début lintégrité de notre environnement. Et cette priorité
demeure inchangée. Nous pouvons parler de revendications
fonciéres ou d’autonomie administrative, mais ces questions ne
revétent aucun sens si nous sommes engloutis sous 60 pieds
d’eau ou si nous nous faisons cuire au soleil. L’environnement
revét une trés grande importance pour nous.

Essayer d’occuper la place qui nous revient au Canada,
figure au deuxi¢éme rang sur la liste de nos priorités, étant
donné qu’actuellement nous en sommes exclus. Nous ne som-
mes pas reconnus comme faisant partie intégrante du Canada.
Nous voulons faire entrer dans la téte des Canadiens que les
peuples autochtones constituent une partie essentielle et inté-
grale de la société canadienne.

. Le sénateur Bielish: De quelle facon le reste du Canada est-
il contre les peuples autochtones? Je reconnais certainement
qu’il existe des peuples qui étaient ici avant notre arrivée sur
les lieux.

M. Amagoalik: La Constitution du Canada reconnait bien
stir ’existence des peuples autochtones: Inuit, Indiens et Métis:
mais il n’en demeure pas moins que I’on ne reconnait pas notre
droit 4 'autonomie administrative.

Le sénateur Bielish: Les Métis de la nation dénée sont par-
venus dans une certaine mesure a atteindre cet objectif par le
truchement de négociations relatives aux revendications de ter-
res. Cette réussite vous donne-t-elle un peu d’espoir quant au
réglement de la situation?

M. Amagoalik: Oui. Le réglement des revendications de ter-
res est trés important mais il ne s’agit que d’une partie de nos
efforts. Les revendications de terres répond a quelques-uns de
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long-term objective is to create self-governing units which we
would control. However, our long-term objective is to create
self-governing units that we control, because land claims, as I
said, look after some of our short-term economic needs. Our
ability to have self-governing units is our long-term objective.

Senator Bielish: I am concerned for the Aboriginal people,
and [ am also concerned about the way we are perceived as
people who do not care and who have done nothing about the
situation. It sometimes seems, in the news media, as though
nothing happens. Now, why is it not happening? When you
talked about self-government and the units, you mentioned
something about the section that you would like to designate
and then you talked about the part of Quebec where your peo-
ple live particularly. Have you actually designated this area
and made presentations?

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes, we have. The average Canadian is con-
cerned and does understand the problems that Aboriginal peo-
ples in Canada have. The average Canadian wants to be help-
ful. Unfortunately the politicians do not always reflect public
opinion. Just before the 1987 FMC, the one that failed, we
commissioned a poll and found that approximately 73 per cent
of Canadians supported the concept of self-government for
Aboriginal peoples, but, as I say, unfortunately the politicians
do not always reflect that opinion. The politicians are usually
behind public opinion in this area.

Senator Bielish: Thank you.

The Chairman: Just for clarification, when you talked about
the division of the Territories, I understood from what you said
that there would be an interim step before provincehood.
Would you want another capital established or would you still
have Yellowknife as the capital for all of the Territories, even
if they were split?

Mr. Amagoalik: If the Territories are split, there would have
to be two capitals. A new capital would have to be created in
the central and eastern Arctic. I do not know if the Mackenzie
Valley people would want Yellowknife to remain their capital,
but I assume they would.

The Chairman: Thank you. Perhaps we could take a five-
minute break before the second round.

(Short recess)

The committee resumed.

The Chairman: Senator Macquarrie will start off the ques-
tioning.

Senator Macquarrie: Being first will go to my head, if I do
not watch out.

I have been following with interest the questions of my col-
leagues. You and Senator Fairbairn got into the question of

[Traduction)

nos problémes économiques immédiats, mais notre objectif &
long terme est de créer des unités autonomes dont nous assure-
rions le contrdle. Toutefois, notre objectif 4 long terme est de
créer des unités autonomes que nous contrdlerons, parce que
les revendications de terres, comme je I'ai dit, ne répondent
qu’a une partie de nos besoins économiques a court terme.
Notre capacité d’avoir des unités autonomes reste notre objec-
tif 4 long terme.

Le sénateur Bielish: Je me fais du souci pour les peuples
autochtones, et je suis également préoccupé du fait que nous
sommes pergus comme un peuple qui ne se soucie guére de la
situation ni ne fait rien pour y porter reméde. Si on en croit les
médias, il semble que rien ne se passe. Pourquoi donc ne se
passe-t-il rien? Lorsque vous avez parlé d’autonomie adminis-
trative et d’unités, vous avez mentionné quelque chose au sujet
de la section que vous aimeriez désigner, puis vous avez parlé
de la partie du Québec ou vit votre peuple en particulier. Avez-
vous en fait désigné cette région et avez-vous fait des présenta-
tions 4 ce sujet?

M. Amagoalik: Oui, nous I’avons fait. Le Canadien moyen
se fait du souci et montre une certaine compréhension en ce
qui concerne les problémes que vivent les peuples autochtones
du Canada. Le Canadien moyen veut étre utile. Malheureuse-
ment les politiciens ne reflétent pas toujours I'opinion publi-
que. Juste avant la Conférence constitutionnelle des premiéres
nations (CCPN) de 1987, la seule qui ait échouée, nous avions
commandé un sondage d’opinions qui a révélé qu’environ 73 p.
100 des Canadiens appuyaient le concept d’autonomie admi-
nistrative des peuples autochtones. Mais, comme je le dis, mal-
heureusement les politiciens ne reflétent pas toujours cette opi-
nion. Les politiciens sont habituellement en retard de phase sur
’opinion publique 2 ce chapitre.

Le sénateur Bielish: Merci.

Le président: Je veux juste éclairer un point. Lorsque vous
parliez de la division de territoires, j’ai compris, d’aprés ce que
vous disiez, qu’il y aurait une étape provisoire avant I'accession
au statut de province. Voudriez-vous fonder une autre capitale
ou garderiez-vous toujours Yellowknife comme la capitale de
I’ensemble des territoires, méme s’ils étaient séparés.

M. Amagoalik: Si les Territoires se séparent, il faudrait
donc avoir deux capitales. Une nouvelle capitale serait créée
pour le centre et I’est de I’Arctique. Je ne sais pas si les gens de
la Vallée du MacKenzie voudrait que Yellowknife demeure
leur capitale, mais je présume que oui.

Le président: Je vous remercie. Nous pourrions peut-étre
prendre une pause de cinq minutes avant d’entamer la
deuxiéme partie des délibérations.

(Pause)

Le Comité reprend ses délibérations.

Le président: Le sénateur Macquarrie commencera la
période de questions.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Etre le premier 4 commencer me
montera 4 la téte si je ne fais pas attention.

Jai suivi avec intérét les questions de mes collégues. Le
sénateur Fairbairn et vous, avez abordé la question des visées
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possible territorial expansion by some existing provinces. I
remember some years ago the then Premier of British
Columbia had his eyes on the Yukon.

With things as they are now—in other words pre-Meech
Lake—it would be possible, I take it, for British Columbia to
work out a deal with the federal government that might end up
with the Yukon becoming part of British Columbia.

Mr. Amagoalik: I suppose that is possible, yes.

Senator Macquarrie: That could not be done if Meech Lake
were in effect.

Mr. Amagoalik: That is true.

Senator Macquarrie: Is that not an area in _which Meech
Lake would possibly be a security to the Territories?

Mr. Amagoalik: In that respect it could. It is possible for
British Columbia and the Government of Canada to come
together and agree between themselves to extend British
Columbia’s boundaries to the north and gobble up the Yukon;
but they would not dare try, would they?

Senator Macquarrie: Something must have stopped them
from doing that all of these years, but under Meech Lake,
Prince Edward Island would stop them.

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes.

Senator Macquarrie: That is one thing that no Maritime
province would accept, because we are the only area since
Confederation that has never increased its boundaries. They
are exactly the same as they were in 1867. So that would not
happen.

I followed your discussion with Senator Hébert. I noticed
that your organization has people living in the Territories, in
Quebec and Labrador. In Labrador and Quebec they would be
living as citizens of a province, Quebec and Newfoundland and
Labrador.

What differences are there for those Inuit living ir} provinces
and those Inuit living in the Territories? I am looking for the
values of provincehood, since we have some living in provinces
and some living in the Territories.

Mr. Amagoalik: The Inuit of Quebec and Labrador, even
though they live in provinces, really have no effective way to
influence what happens to them because of the small popula-
tion and because of the remoteness of the communities.

They could never elect their representatives to the legisla-
ture because they just do not have the numbers. The ridings
are arranged in such a way that they go north-south. One city
in southern Quebec can outvote all of the people in northern
Quebec. So they have no effective way of influencing govern-
ment policy.

[Traduction)

expansionnistes éventuelles de certaines provinces. Je me rap-
pelle qu’il y a quelques années le Premier ministre de la
Colombie-Britannique, 4 1’époque, avait les yeux rivés sur le
Yukon.

La situation étant ce qu’elle est maintenant—en d’autres
termes avant I’adoption de I’Accord du lac Meech—il serait
possible, je suppose, que la Colobmie-Britannique conclue avec
le gouvernement fédéral une entente en vue de I’annexion du
Yukon.

M. Amagoalik: Je suppose que c’est possible, oui.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Cela ne pourrait pas se faire si
I’Accord du lac Meech était en vigueur.

M. Amagoalik: C’est vrai.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: N’est-ce pas un point de I’Accord
du lac Meech, qui pourrait éventuellement constituer une
garantie pour les Territoires?

M. Amagoalik: A cet égard il pourrait I’étre. La Colombie-
Britannique et le gouvernement du Canada pourraient arriver
a un accord en vue d’élargir les frontiéres de la Colombie-Bri-
tannique vers le nord et englober ainsi le Yukon; mais il n’ose-
rait pas essayer, n’est-ce pas?

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Quelque chose a di les empécher
de le faire pendant toutes ces années; mais dans le cadre de
I’Accord du lac Meech, I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard les en empé-
cherait.

M. Amagoalik: Oui.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: C’est une chose qu'aucune pro-
vince maritime n’accepterait, étant donné que nous sommes les
seules provinces dont les limites n’ont pas été modifiées depuis
la Confédération. Elles sont exactement les mémes qu’en 1867.
Une telle chose ne saurait donc se produire.

J’ai suivi votre discussion avec le sénateur Hébert. Jai
remarqué que votre organisation a des gens qui vivent dans les
Territoires, au Québec et au Labrador. Au Labrador et au
Québec ils vivraient comme des citoyens d’une province, c’est-
a-dire du Québec ou de Terre-Neuve et Labrador.

Y a-t-il une différence pour les Inuit qui habitent dans les
provinces et ceux qui vivent dans les Territoires? Je suis 4 la
recherche des avantages que pourraient procurer I’accession au
statut de province, étant donné que nous avons certains habi-
tants qui vivent dans les provinces et d’autres qui vivent dans
les territoires.

M. Amagoalik: Les Inuit du Québec et du Labrador, méme
s'ils vivent dans les provinces, n'ont en réalité aucun moyen
d’influencer ce qui leur arrive, en raison du nombre restreint
de leur population et de I’éloignement des collectivités.

Ils ne pourraient jamais élire leurs représentants i la législa-
ture parce qu'ils n’ont pas le nombre d’habitants nécessaire.
Les circonscriptions sont découpées du nord au sud. Une ville
du Sud du Québec peut 4 elle seule mettre en minorité toute la
population du Nord du Québec. Donc les habitants du Nord de
la Province n’ont vraiment aucune fagon d’influencer la politi-
que du gouvernement.
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Senator Macquarrie: Is there no constituency in the
National Assembly of Quebec or the House of Assembly in
Newfoundland where the native vote would be decisive?

Mr. Amagoalik: No.

Senator Macquarrie: So, in a sense, one of the advances in
the development of two new territories is electoral redistribu-
tion.

Mr. Amagoalik: That is right.

Senator Macquarrie: | had not thought of that before. That
is very helpful.

I also noted your informational problems and the loss of
grants. | am sorry about that, but there is no reason why you
should think for a moment that it is your people who are not
too well informed about Meech Lake. That can be said about a
great number of people.

I noticed some weeks ago great headlines and newspaper
reports to the effect that the federal government was going to
make a deal with the worried western provinces to make sure
that the discussion of Senate reform was taken up. As Senator
Fairbairn pointed out, that bloody thing has been on the menu
for years. It could not be a sweeping gesture, you see, but that
is the way it was sold to our people. They would come up with
something new as a quid pro quo. It is a very stale idea, but I
am sure that is the way it was greeted. Even if some political
scientist came up with a perfect Senate, future generations
would still have to have it on their agenda.

Also, you seem more optimistic about cruise testings but you
are not optimistic about the increasing emphasis on military
matters. Is the diminution of cruise testing because they have
learned enough or is it in any way related to the warming up of
the cold war between east and west on the world scene?

Mr. Amagoalik: I suspect it has to do with the ending of the
cold war. The military is still looking at increased activities in
the north. Because they have nothing else to do in Europe now,
they are shifting their sights somewhere else, that being the
Arctic.

Senator Macquarrie: | would make a poor military man, but
I think that if the Soviet Union, which was supposed to be our
transpolar target, was crumbling, then the last place the mili-
tary would want to emphasize activity would be in our north.
You think the aim is to put them to work somewhere?

Mr. Amagoalik: That is right. They are looking for some-
thing to do.

Senator Macquarrie: I know there are people in the world
who are upset about the fact that peace might be upon us. I
notice you used the expression “off-loading”, which I know
about being a maritimer. You sense that the federal jurisdic-
tion is turning over more responsibilities to the provinces.

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Macquarrie: N'y a-t-il pas de circonscriptions a
I’Assemblée nationale du Québec ou 4 la Chambre d’assemblée
de Terre-Neuve ou le vote autochtone pourrait étre décisif?

M. Amagoalik: Non.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Donc, en un sens, I'un des avanta-
ges de la formation de deux nouveaux territoires serait un
remaniement des circonscriptions électorales?

M. Amagoalik: C’est exact.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Je n’y avais pas pensé avant. C’est
trés utile.

J’ai également relevé les problémes que vous avez en matiére
d’information et les pertes de subventions que vous avez subies.
J’en suis navré, mais il n’y a aucune raison de croire un seul
instant que c’est seulement vous autres qui n’étes pas bien
informés au sujet de I’Accord du lac Meech. Cette remarque
peut s’appliquer 4 un grand nombre de gens.

Jai remarqué, il y a quelques semaines, de gros titres et des
articles de journaux annongant que le gouvernement fédéral
allait conclure un accord avec les provinces inquiétes de
I’Ouest pour que les discussions sur la réforme du Sénat soient
engagées. Comme le sénateur Fairbairn I'a fait remarquer,
cette sacrée question figure au programme depuis des années.
Il ne pouvait donc s’agir d’un élan de générosité, comme vous
le voyez, pourtant c’est de cette fagon qu’elle a été vendue &
notre peuple. Ils proposeraient quelque chose de nouveau
comme une compensation. C’est une trés vieille idée, mais je
suis sfir que c’est de cette fagon dont elle est saluée. Méme si
un scientifique dans le domaine politique proposait un Sénat
parfait, les générations futures inscriraient toujours cette ques-
tion & leur ordre du jour.

En outre, vous semblez étre plus optimiste au sujet des tests
de missiles de croisiére, que vous ne I’étes a propos de la recru-
descence des activités miltaires. Est-ce qu’ils diminuent les
tests des missiles de croisiére parce qu'ils en ont appris assez a
leur sujet ou est-ce que cette diminution est reliée d’une fagon
ou d’une autre 4 aux exercices d’échauffement en préparation
de la guerre froide entre ’est et 'ouest sur la scéne mondiale?

M. Amagoalik: Je soupgonne que cela a quelque chose a voir
avec la fin de la guerre froide. Les militaires cherchent tou-
jours a accroitre leurs activités dans le Nord. Etant donné
qu’ils n’ont plus rien 4 faire en Europe, ils tournent leur regard

ailleurs, c’est-a-dire vers I’Arctique.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Je ferais un mauvais militaire,
mais je pense que si I'Union Soviétique, qui était censée étre
notre objectif transpolaire, s’effondrait, alors la derniére place
ou les militaires voudraient augmenter leurs activités serait le
Nord. Vous pensez que le but consiste a les faire travailler
quelque part?

M. Amagoalik: C’est exact: ils cherchent quelque chose &
faire.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Je sais qu’il y a des gens au monde
qui sont vexés du fait que la paix pourrait dépendre de nous. Je
remarque que vous utilisez I’expression «déchargé», que je sais
étre une expression maritime. Vous sentez que la juridiction
fédérale se décharge de plus en plus de ses responsabilités sur
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Some people welcome that because they want more powerful
provinces and a weaker federal structure. I do not think that is
a good priority, but I am in a minority on that issue, as I am
on a lot of things. Is it your feeling that the dealings you have
had with provincial bureaucrats are worse than, better than or
the same as those with the federal officials?

Mr. Amagoalik: We would much prefer to deal with the
Government of Canada on most issues. Our experience with
the Province of Newfoundland and the Province of Québec has
not been good. Mr. Bourassa treats the aboriginal people of
Québec with some degree of contempt.

Senator Hébert: That does not only apply to the aboriginal
people.

Senator Macquarrie: I did not want to say that, not being
from Québec.

Mr. Amagoalik: The relationship between the Inuit of
Labrador and the Province of Newfoundland has not been
good either. The Government of Canada is limited in its ability
to spend the necessary money in Labrador because, for some
constitutional reason, anything it does in Labrador has to go
through the provincial government. The provincial government
of Newfoundland has not always been helpful in our dealings.
If the Government of Canada had the ability to spend money
directly in Labrador, without having to go through the prov-
ince, things would happen a lot faster and the Province of
Newfoundland would not be taking its cut of the federal
money.

Senator Macquarrie: God help us. It is terrible. Would you
say that your preference for dealing with the federal govern-
ment stems from the fact that, however imperfectly it may
operate, the federal government works on the. recognized
premise that it has a responsibility that the provinces do not
have?

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes, it does. The federal government under-
stands us much better than do the provincial governments,
mainly because it has been dealing with us much longer and it
understands our problems more clearly.

Senator Adams: Mr. Amagoalik, you mentioned the second
phase of James Bay, and we have been working on that subject
in the Energy and Natural Resources Committee in the Senate
also. We have heard from Cree witnesses from the James Bay
area who are concerned about that second phase. Mr. Bou-
rassa does not feel he needs environmental hearipgs on the
second phase because he felt that the first phase did not have
any bad effects on the environment.

In the meantime, the Inuit and Cree who live in that area
have been seeing a lot of things happening, such as some of the
mammals and fish becoming contaminated as a result of the
first James Bay development. If they go ahead with James Bay
11, one will see many more effects on the land as a result of it.

[Traduction)

les provinces. Certaines gens accueillent chaleureusement cette
mesure parce qu’ils veulent des provinces plus puissantes et
une structure fédérale plus faible. Je ne pense pas qu’il s’agisse
d’une bonne priorité, mais je fais partie d’une minorité a ce
sujet, tout comme pour un tas d’autres choses. Avez-vous
I'impression que les négociations que vous avez avec les
bureaucrates provinciaux sont pires, meilleures ou aussi bonnes
que celles que vous avez avec les agents fédéraux.

M. Amagoalik: Nous préférerions de beaucoup traiter avec
le gouvernement du Canada sur la plupart des questions.
Notre expérience avec la province de Terre-Neuve et celle du
Québec n’a pas été bonne. M. Bourrassa traite le peuple
autochtone du Québec avec un certain mépris.

Le sénateur Hébert: Cela ne s’applique pas seulement au
peuple autochtone.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Je ne voulais pas le dire, étant
donné que je ne suis pas du Québec.

M. Amagoalik: Les relations entre les Inuit du Labrador et
la province de Terre-Neuve ne sont pas bonnes non plus. Le
gouvernement du Canada est limité dans ses capacités de
dépenser les fonds nécessaires au Labrador, parce que, pour
des raisons constitutionnelles, tout ce qu’il fait au Labrador
doit passer par le gouvernement provincial. Le gouvernement
provincial de Terre-Neuve n’a pas toujours été utile dans nos
transactions. Si le gouvernement du Canada avait la capacité
de dépenser I'argent directement au Labrador, sans passer par
la province, les choses iraient beaucoup plus vite et la province
de Terre-Neuve ne préléverait point sa part de I'argent fédéral.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Dieu merci. C’est terrible. Voulez-
vous dire que votre préférence a traiter avec le gouvernement
fédéral vient du fait que, malgré les imperfections de son fonc-
tionnement, le gouvernement fédéral travaille sur le principe
établi qu’il a une responsabilité que les provinces n’ont pas?

M. Amagoalik: Oui, c’est pour cette raison. Le gouverne-
ment fédéral nous comprend beaucoup mieux que les gouver-
nements provinciaux, et essentiellement parce qu'il traite avec
nous depuis plus longtemps et qu’il comprend nos problémes de
fagon plus claire.

Le sénateur Adams: M. Amagoalik, vous avez parlé de la
deuxiéme phase de la Baie James et nous travaillons également
a ce sujet au Comité sénatorial de I'Energie et des Ressources
naturelles. Nous avons entendu des témoins cris de la région de
la Baie James qui sont préoccupés par cette deuxiéme phase.
M. Bourassa ne pense pas qu’il a besoin de tenir des audiences
sur I’environnement en ce qui concerne cette seconde phase
parce que, selon lui, la premiére phase n’a eu aucun effct’
désastreux sur I’environnement.

Dans l'intervalle, les Inuit et les Cris qui vivent dans la
région ont vu beaucoup de choses se produire, par exemple cer-
tains mammiferes et certains poissons sont contaminés i la
suite de 'aménagement de la premiére phase de la Baie James.
S’ils vont de I'avant avec Baie James II, ce projet entrainera,
verra-t-on, des conséquences beaucoup plus néfastes pour la
Terre.
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According to our witnesses and the minister the second
phase will supposedly sell 500 megawatts of electricity to the
Americans as part of free trade. The power is to be sold to the
United States in the summer. Then, in turn, the U.S. will sell
power back to Canada in the wintertime when we need more
energy.

I cannot see anything good coming out of this further
development of James Bay. How do you feel about Mr. Bou-
rassa’s putting the second phase of James Bay into effect?

Mr. Amagoalik: The Crees and the Inuit of the Great
Whale were very concerned about James Bay II. James Bay I
created a lot of mercury pollution, which was released from
the dying vegetation when the land was flooded and has now
gone into the fish. My understanding is that the level of mer-
cury in the Inuit and Cree living around the James Bay area is
five times the allowable level. So the mercury is poisoning the
food chain.

Of course, we all remember the 10,000 caribou that
drowned because of James Bay I. James Bay II, as you say,
will flood approximately twice as much land. It is our under-
standing that the flooding of large areas of land could have an
effect on the global environment, just as the destruction of the
rain forest has such an effect. Flooding at this scale in James
Bay could be very dangerous globally. We are hoping that the
government of Canada will insist on an environmental assess-
ment and a proper one. The ways things are now, Hydro-Qué-
bec seems to have a free hand to do whatever it wants in the
northern areas of the province, without any real concern about
the environment or the people living up there.

Senator Adams: We have talked to some Inuit and some
Cree about this subject. I think that when James Bay I was
first proposed, a lot of promises were made to communities for
all kinds of upgrading—better education, better housing, bet-
ter sewers, better airstrips and so on. A lot of that has not been
done. You mentioned earlier that we still have poor housing in
the northern territories and I think that is probably true even
in Quebec. Could you elaborate a little on that? Why was
there not much help given to the communities?

Mr. Amagoalik: Of course, Hydro-Québec and other large
developers always promise the moon when they first propose a
project. It is another story when it comes to providing some of
the benefits that they promised. Most of those benefits do not
materialize. This is one of the reasons why we do not have
much trust in provincial governments.

Senator Adams: If Meech Lake does not pass and Quebec
separates from Canada, what will happen to the land at James
Bay? Would it go to the Inuit and Cree communities or would
it stay with Quebec?

Mr. Amagoalik: When people talk about Quebec separating,
most people assume that if it were to do so it would take the

[Traduction]

Selon nos témoins et le ministre, la deuxiéme phase permet-
tra supposément de vendre 500 mégawatts d’électricité aux
Américains, dans le cadre du Libre échange. L’électricité doit
étre vendue aux Etats-Unis pendant I’été. Alors, les Etats-Unis
a leur tour vendront de I'électricité au Canada pendant I’hiver
ou nous aurons besoin d’une plus grande quantité d’énergie.

Je ne peux rien voir de bon dans cet autre aménagement de
la Baie James. Et qu’est-ce que vous pensez au sujet de la réa-
lisation par M. Bourassa de la deuxiéme phase de la Baie
James?

M. Amagoalik: Les Cris et les Inuit de la région de Grande
Baleine sont trés préoccupés par le projet Baie James II. Le
projet Baie James I a créé beaucoup de pollution au mercure,
qui a été libéré par les plantes mortes a la suite de 'inondation
des terres, et ce mercure se trouve maintenant dans les pois-
sons. A ce que je sache, le niveau de mercure chez les Inuit et
les Cris vivant dans la région de la Baie James est cinq fois
plus élevé que le niveau permis. Ainsi donc, le mercure est en
train d’empoisonner la chaine alimentaire.

Bien siir, nous nous souvenons tous des dix milles caribous
qui se sont noyés a cause de la Baie James I. La Baie James II,
comme vous le dites, inondera un territoire presque deux fois
plus grand. Selon nous, I'inondation de vastes étendues pour-
rait avoir un effet sur I’environnement de toute la planéte, au
méme titre que la destruction de la forét équatoriale. L'inonda-
tion de telles étendues de terrain a la Baie James pourrait étre
dangereuse 4 ’échelle planétaire. Nous espérons que le gouver-
nement canadien insistera sur la tenue d’une étude d’impact
environnemental et d’'une bonne. De la maniére dont les choses
se déroulent actuellement, il semble qu’Hydro-Québec soit
libre de faire ce qu’elle veut dans le nord de la province, sans se
préoccuper aucunement de I’environnement ni des personnes
qui vivent dans ces régions.

Le sénateur Adams: Nous avons parlé a certains Inuits et a
certains Cris 4 ce sujet. Je pense que lorsque le projet de la
Baie James I a été proposé la premiére fois, on a promis beau-
coup d’améliorations de toute sorte aux collectivités: une meil-
leure éducation, de meilleurs logements, de meilleurs égouts,
de meilleures pistes d’atterrissage et ainsi de suite. Beaucoup
de ces promesses n'ont pas été tenues. Vous avez mentionné
plus tét que les logements dans les territoires du Nord sont
encore de piétre qualité et je crois que cela est probablement
vrai, méme au Québec. Pourriez-vous nous donner plus de
détails sur cette question? Pourquoi n’a-t-on pas accordé une
aide plus grande aux collectivités?

M. Amagoalik: Bien sir, Hydro-Québec et d’autres gros
entrepreneurs promettent toujours la lune lorsqu’ils soumettent
un projet pour la premiére fois. L’histoire est différente lorsque
vient le temps de tenir ces promesses. La plupart d’entre elles
ne sont jamais réalisées. Voild pourquoi, entre autres, nous
avons peu confiance dans les gouvernements provinciaux.

Le sénateur Adams: Si I’Accord du lac Meech n’est pas
entériné et que le Québec se sépare du Canada, qu’adviendra-
t-il du territoire de la Baie James? Sera-t-il donné aux Inuits
et aux Cris ou demeurera-t-il partie intégrante du Québec?

M. Amagoalik: Lorsque les gens parlent de la séparation du
Québec, ils présument pour la plupart que si elle survient, le
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whole province, lock stock and barrel. That is not necessarily
the case as I see it. The Inuit and the Cree have a treaty with
the nation of Canada and the province of Quebec. If the status
of Quebec were to change, as I see it, that treaty would have to
be renegotiated. If Quebec were to go from province to nation,
that treaty would have to be renegotiated. If that were not
done, I would only say that I would like the separatists of Que-
bec to show me a map of an independent Quebec. Would it
cover a square metre? Would it cover a square foot? Would it
cover the island of Montreal? As far as I am concerned, three-
quarters of the province is aboriginal homeland. The separa-
tists in Quebec should not assume that they are going to take
the entire province with them if they ever separate.

I do not think the Inuit are interested in being part of an
independent Quebec. As far as I know, they are determined to
stay in Canada. They want their homeland to be a part of
Canada.

Senator Adams: If Quebec separates and the Inuit and the
Cree keep this land, they will have the biggest hydro-electric
power dam in Canada.

Mr. Amagoalik: As I see it, they have a veto.

Senator Hébert: I have a question on the same basic subject.
You mentioned earlier the idea that many of the larger prov-
inces have the wish—and perhaps it is secret in some cases—to
annex some portion of the Northwest Territories. What would
be the effect of that upon the Inuit and other aboriginal popu-
lations? Would you suggest that they would try to design rid-
ings that would start from the North Pole and stretch down to
reach Dundas, or something like that, to ensure that there
would be no possibility for the aboriginal peoples to have
proper representation? Is that what you fear? Or do you .think
that, even if you have your own ridings, you would still be
diluted in legislatures where you would still constitute a tiny
minority?

Mr. Amagoalik: We are small enough as it is. We dp not
want our people to be further divided. We occupy one-third of
the land mass in Canada and we are still a majority in every
community in which we live. We can effectively control our
local governments.

If the provinces were to extend their boundaries northward,
our population would be further fragmented. If _we are frag-
mented, whatever influence we have would effectively be gone.

Senator Hébert: Whether or not Meech Lake passes, is it
constitutionally possible for the provinces and Canada to arrive
at such a decision to divide the north among the bigger prov-
inces?

Mr. Amagoalik: 1 suppose they have the constitutional
power to do that, but I just do not see it happening. I do not
see any attempt being successful.

[Traduction]

territoire de la province demeurera exactement le méme. A
mon avis, ce ne serait pas nécessairement le cas. Les Inuits et
les Cris sont liés par traité avec I’Etat canadien et la province
de Québec. Si le statut du Québec devait changer, je suis de
I'avis que ces traités devraient &tre renégociés. Si le Québec
devait passer du statut de province a celui d’état souverain, ce
traité devrait étre renégocié. Dans le cas contraire, je me con-
tenterais de demander aux séparatistes québécois de me mon-
trer 4 quoi ressemblera la carte d’un Québec indépendant.
Aurait-elle un métre carré? Un pied carré? Représenterait-elle
I'lle de Montréal? Pour autant que je sache, les territoires
ancestraux des autochtones représentent les trois quarts de la
province de Québec. Les séparatistes québécois ne devraient
pas présumer qu’ils pourront s’emparer de tout le territoire de
la province si celle-ci se sépare.

Je ne pense pas que les Inuits soient intéressés 4 faire partie
d’un Québec indépendant. Pour autant que je sache, ils sont
plutdt décidés a demeurer au sein du Canada. IIs désirent que
leurs territoires ancestraux fassent partie du Canada.

Le sénateur Adams: Si le Québec se sépare et que les Inuits
et les Cris conservent leurs territoires, ils deviendront proprié-
taires du plus gros barrage hydro-électrique du Canada.

M. Amagoalik: Selon moi, ils disposent d’un droit de veto.

Le sénateur Hébert: Je désire poser une question sur le
méme sujet. Vous avez mentionné plus tot I'idée que plusieurs
des grandes provinces canadiennes désirent, peut-étre secréte-
ment dans certains cas, annexer une partie des Territoires du
Nord-Ouest. Quel serait I’effet d’une telle mesure sur les Inuits
et les autres populations autochtones? Insinuez-vous que ces
provinces essaieraient de concevoir des circonscriptions électo-
rales qui s’étendraient du pdle nord jusqu’a Dundas, ou quel-
que chose comme ¢a, afin de s’assurer qu’il n’y ait aucune pos-
sibilit€  pour les  autochtones d’étre  représentés
convenablement? Est-ce bien de cela dont vous avez peur? Ou
croyez-vous plutdt que méme si vous aviez vos propres circons-
criptions électorales, vos députés se noieraient dans la masse de
I'assemblée législative ou ils ne formeraient qu'une infime
minorité?

M. Amagoalik: Nous sommes déja suffisamment minoritai-
res comme cela. Nous ne voulons pas voir notre peuple divisé
encore plus. Nous occupons un tiers du territoire canadien et
nous sommes toujours majoritaires dans chacune des localités
ol nous vivons. Nous sommes donc en mesure d’exercer un
contrdle effectif sur les gouvernements locaux.

Si les provinces devaient étirer leurs frontiéres vers le nord
notre population se fragmenterait encore plus. Si nous nous
fragmentons, nous perdrons le peu d’influence dont nous dispo-
sons encore.

Le sénateur Hébert: Que I’Accord du lac Meech soit enté-
riné ou non, est-il constitutionnellement possible pour les pro-
vinces et le Canada de partager les territoires nordiques entre
les provinces les plus importantes?

M. Amagoalik: Je suppose qu’ils ont le pouvoir de faire cela
en vertu de la constitution, mais j’ai du mal 4 concevoir que
cela puisse arriver. Je crois que toute tentative en ce sens serait
vouée a I’échec.
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Senator Hébert: You acknowledge the fact, however, that
some provinces have that in the back of their minds?

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes, we have had indications in the past
that provinces such as Alberta have ambitions to extend their
boundaries.

Senator Hébert: It is interesting to notice that our smallest
provinces, P.E.I., which is so ably represented in this commit-
tee, does not seem to claim a chunk of the north, although it
would be badly in need of it.

Senator Macquarrie: We are very nice people.

Senator Hébert: I happened to be in Igloolik some weeks
ago. People were preparing for a ceremony which was in cele-
bration of some kind of an agreement to be signed. Could you
tell us what that agreement is and what consequences it would
have for the North?

Mr. Amagoalik: The agreement in principle will give our
people outright ownership of more than 100,000 square miles
of land, and we would have sub-service rights for 14,000
square miles. It will give our organizations approximately $580
million over the next 14 years.

This agreement has yet to be ratified by our people. How-
ever, if they understand the agreement, I believe that more
than 90 per cent of our people will support it. We have been at
the negotiating table for 15 years. I believe that most of our
people are happy that we have come to this stage.

Senator Hébert: Those are all the questions I have for the
moment, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Fairbairn: Mr. Amagoalik, one area I would like to
touch on is the young Inuit in the northern territories. We hear
repeatedly very disturbing statistics concerning aboriginal peo-
ple generally. Your area is included in those statistics. We hear
statistics about the high suicide rate, the low literacy rate, and
substance abuse. It is almost a cultural confusion among young
people who are caught in a grey area between the pressures of
adapting to southern ways and the pull to understand, learn
and be able to live in the traditional ways. These people will
carry forward your work on issues such as the Constitution and
the development of self-government and a greater influence
and presence in the North. Can you tell us what you see to be
the reality of the situation, both negative and positive, for
young aboriginal people in the North today? Can you tell us
some of the hopes that you have for helping and assisting them
to progress and develop in the future?

Mr. Amagoalik: All the things you have mentioned—the
high suicide rate, chronic unemployment, allienation from
their own culture—are symptoms of cultural collapse. We
need to reverse this. The way to do that is to arrive at these
land claim settlements and to institute self-government in

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Hébert: Vous reconnaissez toutefois que certai-
nes provinces nourrissent secrétement un projet de ce genre?

M. Amagoalik: Oui. Dans le passé, on nous a signalé que
certaines provinces, notamment I'Alberta, nourrissaient
I’'ambition d'étendre leurs frontiéres.

Le sénateur Hébert: Il est intéressant de constater que la
plus petite province canadienne, I'L.-P.-E., qui est si valable-
ment représentée au sein de ce comité, ne semble pas vouloir
réclamer ne serait-ce qu'une partie du Nord, méme si elle en
aurait grand besoin.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Nous sommes de trés braves gens.

Le sénateur Hébert: J'étais a Igloolik il y a quelques semai-
nes. Les gens se préparaient pour une cérémonie visant 4 célé-
brer une entente sur le point d’étre signée. Pouvez-vous nous
dire quelle est cette entente et quelles conséquences elle aura
sur le Nord?

M. Amagoalik: En principe, 'entente donnera 4 notre peuple
un droit de propriété ferme sur plus de 100 000 milles carrés
de terre et des droits de servitude sur 14 000 autres milles car-
rés. Grice 4 cette entente, nos organisations pourront encaisser
environ 580 millions de dollars au cours des 14 prochaines
années.

Cette entente n’a pas encore été ratifiée par notre peuple.
Cependant, sils la comprennent bien, je suis persuadé que plus
de 90 p. 100 de nos concitoyens appuieront cette entente. Nous
avons négocié pendant 15 ans. Je crois que la plupart de nos
citoyens sont heureux que nous ayons pu en venir a cette
entente.

Le sénateur Hébert: Je n’ai plus de question pour I'instant,
Monsieur le président.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: M. Amagoalik, une des questions
dont j’aimerais m’entretenir avec vous est celle des jeunes
inuits des Territoires du Nord-Ouest. Il existe de nombreuses
statistiques troublantes sur les populations autochtones en
général. Ces statistiques portent notamment sur votre région.
Elles révélent un taux de suicide élevé, des lacunes sur le plan
de I'alphabétisation et de nombreux cas de toxicomanie. Il
semble que les jeunes gens souffrent de confusion culturelle,
qu’ils soient coincés dans un genre de zone grise entre les pres-
sions qui sont exercées sur eux afin qu’ils s’adaptent aux coutu-
mes des gens du Sud et leur désir de comprendre et d’appren-
dre leurs coutumes traditionnelles et de vivre en conformité
avec ces derniéres. Ces jeunes gens sont ceux qui vont pousser
plus loin vos travaux sur la constitution et I’avénement d’un
gouvernement autochtone ainsi que sur I’accroissement de
I'influence et de la présence des autochtones dans le Nord.
Pouvez-vous nous expliquer ce que vous considérez étre les
aspects réels, positifs et négatifs, de la situation des jeunes
autochtones vivant dans le Nord aujourd’hui? Pouvez-vous
nous décrire certains des espoirs que vous entretenez afin
d’aider ces jeunes 4 progresser et a se développer 4 I’avenir?

M. Amagoalik: Tous les problémes que vous avez mention-
nés (taux de suicide élevé, chomage chronique, perte de I'iden-
tité culturelle) sont les symptomes d’une faillite culturelle. Il
nous faut renverser cette situation. Pour y parvenir, il nous
faut régler la question des revendications territoriales et ins-



4-5-1990

Peuples autochtones 1:47

[Text]

order that our people can regain their self-respect, which many
of our people have lost.

There is a generation of Inuit who are younger than me and
who have been effectively lost. They have not received enough
education to be able to compete in the wage economy and they
have not retained enough of their traditional skills to be able to
survive as hunters. They are stuck in this twilight zone. They
are not really part of the past and they cannot seem to step
into the future. As a result, we have these tragic statistics.

The way to deal with that, as I have said, is to settle land
claims and give us self-government. When the Beaufort com-
munities reached their land claim settlement, their suicide rate
dropped very dramatically, because the agreement created eco-
nomic activity; it created jobs, and it gave a degree of self-
respect to our young people. As a result, the suicide rate
dropped very dramatically. The way to deal with it is very
clear. What it takes is this political will. Unfortunately some-
times that commodity does not exist.

Senator Fairbairn: Education, starting from the earliest age,
is critical in bridging some of these gaps. I hate to think of the
generation just behind you as being lost. As you have said,
with the will on all sides it should be a goal on our part to
reclaim that lost generation.

With regard to the current young generation, are there
things that we ought to be doing in terms of education and
communication? Because the North is a vast area of tiny com-
munities, we should be using the technologies that we have
now for teaching. Is there something that you could tell us that
could prevent this twilight zone from extending into another
generation? What can we do to catch the children now as they
are developing?

Mr. Amagoalik: The simple answer is to give us _back the
control of our lives. Up to the present time, most things have
been done for us from Yellowknife, Ottawa, Quebec City and
St. John’s; it has been done for us outside of our homeland and
has been imposed on us. The way to deal with that is to bring
back the ability to control our own lives, make our own mis-
takes, and solve our own problems, and not have someone do it
for us.

Senator Fairbairn: You see that as happening through the
whole process of self-government, which you would place
second in fundamental importance to the protection of the
environment?

Mr. Amagoalik: That is right. Everything seems to come
back to self-government. We can talk about the protection of
the environment, the education of our young people and eco-

[Traduction)

taurer des gouvernements autochtones afin que notre peuple
puisse retrouver I'estime de lui-méme, estime que nombre de
mes concitoyens ont perdue.

Il existe toute une génération d’Inuits plus jeunes que moi
qui ont été sacrifiés. Ces jeunes n’ont pas recu I’éducation qui
leur aurait permis d’étre concurrentiels dans une économie
basée sur les salaires et ils n’ont pas conservé suffisamment de
leurs habiletés traditionnelles pour étre en mesure de survivre
comme chasseurs. Ils sont coincés dans cette zone grise cultu-
relle. Ils ne font pas vraiment partie du passé et il semble qu’il
leur soit impossible de faire partie de I’avenir. Voila qui expli-
que ces statistiques tragiques.

La maniére de s’attaquer 4 ce probléme est, comme je l'ai
déja mentionné, de régler la question des revendications terri-
toriales et de nous permettre de constituer notre propre gou-
vernement. Lorsque les communautés de Beaufort ont conclu
une entente satisfaisant leurs revendications territoriales, le
taux de suicide dans ces collectivités a diminué de fagon spec-
taculaire parce que I’entente a généré de I’activité économique.
Elle a créé des emplois et a permis 4 nos jeunes de retrouver
’estime d’eux-mémes, a la suite de quoi, le taux de suicide a
chuté. La maniére de régler ce probléme est donc claire. Il faut
d’abord une volonté politique de le régler. Malheureusement,
c’est la une denrée qui fait parfois défaut.

7

La sénatrice Fairbairn: L’éducation, et ce dés le plus jeune
age, est cruciale si I'on entend combler certaines de ces lacu-
nes. Je n’aime pas I'idée selon laquelle la génération qui suit la
votre serait perdue. Comme vous ’avez dit, toutes les parties
intéressées devraient démontrer leur volonté de récupérer cette
génération «sacrifiéen.

En ce qui concerne la jeune génération actuelle, y a-t-il des
choses que nous devrions faire dans le secteur de I’éducation et
des communications? Le Nord étant une vaste région parse-
mée de trés petites localités, nous devrions utiliser les technolo-
gies modernes d’enseignement dont nous disposons. Pourriez-
vous nous indiquer comment nous pourrons éviter qu’une autre
génération se retrouve dans cette zone grise dont nous parlions
tout a I’heure? Que pouvons-nous faire afin d’aider les enfants
dés maintenant, pendant leur développement?

M. Amagoalik: La réponse la plus simple que je puisse don-
ner a ces questions est de nous redonner le contrdle sur nos
propres vies. Jusqu’a maintenant, la plu part des gestes qui ont
€té posés afin de nous aider I'ont été depuis Yellowknife
Ottawa, Québec et St. John’s; ils ont été posés ailleurs que sur
nos territoires ancestraux et nous ont été imposés. La meilleure
maniére de régler ces problémes consiste 4 nous redonner les
moyens de contrbler nos propres vies, de faire nos propres
erreurs, de trouver des solutions 4 nos propres problémes, plu-
tot que de chercher a le faire 4 notre place. ‘

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Vous croyez que la solution aux pro-
blémes se trouve dans un processus global qui vous permettrait
de choisir vos propres dirigeants, processus que vous placez au
deuxiéme rang en importance aprés la protection de I’environ-
nement?

M. Amagoalik: Exactement. Il semble quon en revienne
toujours a la création d’un gouvernement autochtone. Peu
importe que I'on discute de la protection de environnement,
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nomic activity, but everything always seems to come back to
self-government.

Senator Fairbairn: That is an interesting statement. The
first committee I was on in the Senate was Senator Hébert’s
Special Committee on Youth. One of the aspects that commit-
tee dealt with was aboriginal issues. They were essentially sup-
posed to be directed at the problems of young people. In the
end, when we wrote the report, the single recommendation
came down to self-government. Even for the young witnesses
who came to talk to us, among all the other things they talked
about they themselves brought it back to self-government.
That is an interesting reflection.

I have one more question, and again it is a broad one. We
are just beginning our work as a new committee. We hope that
it will be an important, continuing committee of the Senate.
We have discovered over the last several years that it is hard to
get a new permanent committee in an institution like the Sen-
ate. It is our belief in the very basic nature and contribution of
aboriginal people that they should have no less than a perma-
nent forum in this institution. So we want to get started in the
right way. That is why we were asking for advice.

Although we are interested in all of the issues that have been
raised today, because they are current and compelling, we also
want to receive some advice on what path would be of most use
to the people we are dealing with through this committee.
Could you give us any points along a roadmap from your per-
spective, as a northerner and as an Inuit, as to what direction
this committee might take that would be the most meaningful,
productive and helpful in your area?

Mr. Amagoalik: One of the first things that the committee
should do is to actually see our people in the communities, not
sit here in Ottawa and talk about our people, but actually go
there and see them.

As a priority, I would suggest that members of the commit-
tee should go to Labrador. I say Labrador because Labrador is
the most neglected part of the whole country. People forget
about it. They never think about Labrador. The only time they
think about Labrador is when they hear about low-level flights
and military activities. But it is important for members of the
committee to go to the communities and actually see the situa-
tions in the community and talk to our people face to face.

I also mention Labrador because it is the poorest region of
Canada. The housing situation in Labrador especially is ter-
rible. The first time I went to Nain, in norther Labrador, was
back in 1975 or 1976. I was appalled with the housing situa-
tion. The housing situation there is similar to a poverty-striken
Third World country. I do not know if the situation is still as
bad as it was then, but I suspect that it still is.

[Traduction)

de I'éducation de nos jeunes ou de développement économique,
on en revient toujours a la question de I"autonomie politique.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Voild qui est intéressant. Le premier
comité sénatorial au sein duquel j’ai siégé était le comité spé-
cial du sénateur Hébert sur la jeunesse. Une des questions sur
lesquelles ce comité s’était penché était justement celle des jeu-
nes autochtones. Ce comité devait uniquement aborder la ques-
tion des problémes vécus par les jeunes autochtones. A la fin,
quand nous avons rédigé le rapport, la seule recommandation
formulée portait sur la création d’'un gouvernement autoch-
tone. Méme les jeunes témoins qui se sont déplacés pour venir
nous parler nous ont eux aussi entretenus, entre autres choses,
du besoin des autochtones de se gouverneur eux-mémes. Voila
un sujet de réflexion intéressant.

Je désirerais vous poser une autre question a portée trés
étendue. Notre comité ne fait qu’amorcer ses travaux. Nous
espérons qu'il deviendra un important comité permanent du
Sénat. Nous avons découvert au cours des derniéres années
qu’il est difficile de créer un nouveau comité permanent au
sein d’une institution comme le Sénat. Nous sommes convain-
cus que la nature méme des populations autochtones et leur
contribution 4 notre société devraient leur donner droit 4 rien
de moins qu’une tribune permanente au sein de cette institu-
tion. Nous voulons donc partir du bon pied et c’est pourquoi
nous demandons conseil.

Bien que toutes les questions soulevées ici aujourd’hui susci-
tent notre intérét parce qu’elles sont actuelles et attrayantes,
nous aimerions aussi obtenir des conseils sur la maniére la plus
utile de venir en aide aux personnes qui sont visées par les tra-
vaux de ce comité. Pourriez-vous, en tant qu’Inuit et homme
du Nord, nous indiquer quelques repéres quant a I'orientation
que ce comité devrait adopter afin que ses travaux soient aussi
significatifs, productifs et utiles que possible pour votre
région?

M. Amagoalik: Une des premiéres choses que les membres
de ce comité devraient s'empresser de faire consisterait 4 se
rendre rencontrer nos concitoyens au sein de leurs collectivités
respectives pour parler avec eux plutdt que siéger ici a Ottawa
et de parler d’eux.

Les membres du comité devraient se rendre réellement sur
place et les rencontrer. Je proposerais également aux membres
du comité de se rendre en priorité au Labrador. Je propose le
Labrador parce que cette région est la plus négligée de tout le
pays. Les gens oublient facilement le Labrador. Ils n’y pensent
tout simplement pas. Les seuls moments ou l'on pense au
Labrador, c’est lorsqu’il est question des vols a basse altitude
et des activités militaires sur ce territoire. Cependant, il est
important que les membres de ce comité se rendent dans ces
localités et constatent de visu la situation qui y régne et qu’ils
aient des contacts directs avec nos concitoyens de l1a-bas.

Je mentionne également le Labrador parce qu’il s’agit de la
région la plus pauvre du Canada. Le probléme du logement est
particuliérement aigu au Labrador. La premiére fois que je me
suis rendu 4 Nain, au nord du Labrador, remonte 4 1975 ou
1976. J'ai été consterné par les conditions de logement. La
situation la-bas est semblable a celle qui prévaut dans les pays
les plus pauvres du Tiers-monde. Je ne sais pas si la situation
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When a new Minister of Indian Affairs is appointed, he
always goes to Yellowknife; sometimes he goes to Iqaluit, but
never to Labrador. I cannot recall a Minister of Indian Affairs
ever going to Labrador. Goose Bay may be visited, but Rigolet
or Nain is not visited. Labrador is very neglected. It would be
very helpful if this committee could direct some attention to
that region. When people talk about northern Canada they
automatically think of the Northwest Territories and norther
Quebec; they never think about Labrador.

Senator Fairbairn: Thank you. After we have heard from a
variety of people here in Ottawa, if we were to venture out,
could we count on you for some suggestions and assistance as
to where we should go and whom we should see?

Mr. Amagoalik: Certainly.

Senator Fairbairn: And, more importantly, how we should
do it, so that it would be most constructive and sensitive to the
people we are visiting?

Mr. Amagoalik: I certainly could do that, yes.

Senator Adams: I would like to follow up on some of the
questions that Senator Fairbairn raised, especially concerning
suicide among native people. I quite often go through the Iqa-
luit to Rankin Inlet. The government started to look after the
aboriginal and northern communities by educating them, and
s0 on, since 1950. Over the last few years, especially in the ter-
ritories, most of the airlines are half filled with passengers who
are going to the Christian Institute between Igaluit and Yel-
lowknife. Do you have some statistics concerning rates of
aboriginal people who are sent to those institutions?

Senator Fairbairn asked you questions about the rate of sui-
cide among young people. A more important question for
me—especially since we have RCMP who live and work in our
communities—is why there are a great number of aboriginal
people in the jails or at the Christian Institute.

A couple of years ago they built a Christian Institute in Iqa-
luit. 1 do not know how many people it is able to hold, but
shortly after it was built—in fact, one year later—it was not
big enough and they had to add another extension to it to
make more room for the people, because they were going to
jail every day. Sometimes they do not have enough room and
people have to be shipped to Yellowknife_ or some other com-
munity. Can you elaborate on those things? Young people
seem to have more to do with the law.

Mr. Amagoalik: You are quite correct. The aboriginal peo-
ple have a proportionately high level of incarceration. In the
provinces, as much as 25 per cent of the population in correc-

[Traduction)

est toujours aussi terrible qu’elle était alors, mais je soupgonne
qu’elle I’est toujours.

Lorsqu’un ministre des Affaires indiennes est nommé, il va
toujours 4 Yellowknife, parfois 4 Iqaluit; mais il ne va jamais
au Labrador. Je ne peux me souvenir d’un ministre des Affai-
res indiennes qui ait visité le Labrador. Parfois, il peut arriver
que l'on visite Goose Bay, mais jamais Rigolet ou Nain. Le
Labrador est trés négligé. Il serait utile que ce comité attire
I’attention sur cette région. Lorsqu’on parle aux gens du Nord
canadien, ils songent immédiatement aux Territoires du Nord-
Ouest et au nord du Québec. Personne ne pense jamais au
Labrador.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Je vous remercie. Si, aprés avoir
recueilli les témoignages de différentes personnes ici 4 Ottawa,
nous décidons de nous rendre dans le Nord, pouvons-nous
compter sur vos suggestions et votre aide afin de nous indiquer
les endroits ou nous devrions aller et les personnes que nous
devrions y rencontrer?

M. Amagoalik: Certainement.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: De plus, ce qui est plus important
encore, pourriez-vous nous indiquer comment nous y prendre
afin que nos efforts soient aussi constructifs et pertinents que
possible pour les personnes que nous visiterons?

M. Amagoalik: Je ferais sirement cela, oui.

Le sénateur Adams: J’aimerais approfondir certaines des
questions que le sénateur Fairbairn a soulevées, particuliére-
ment la question du suicide au sein des populations autochto-
nes. Je traverse assez souvent le bras de mer entre Iqaluit et
Rankin. Le gouvernement a commencé a s’occuper des com-
munautés autochtones et nordiques en leur offrant des services
d’éducation et ainsi de suite depuis 1950. Depuis quelques
années, plus particuliérement dans les territoires, prés de la
moitié¢ des passagers de la plupart des vols commerciaux vont
au Christian Institute entre Iqaluit et Yellowknife. Etes-vous
en possession de statistiques sur la proportion d’autochtones
qui se trouvent dans des établissements de ce genre?

Le sénateur Fairbairn vous a posé des questions sur le taux
de suicide chez les jeunes autochtones. Une question me parait
plus importante (surtout depuis que des membres de la GRC
vivent au sein de nos collectivités) pourquoi y a-t-il tant
d’autochtones en prison ou dans des établissements comme le
Christian Institute?

Il y a environ deux ans, on a construit le Christian Institute
a Iqaluit. Je ne sais pas combien de personnes cet établisse-
ment peut accueillir, mais peu de temps aprés sa construction
(en fait, un an apres), il ne suffisait plus 4 la tache et on a di y
ajouter une annexe afin d’accueillir plus de gens, puisqu’on en
envoyait en prison tous les jours. Parfois, on manque de place
au Christian Institute et on doit envoyer des gens A Yellowk-
nife ou ailleurs. Pourriez-vous nous éclairer sur ces faits? |
semble que les jeunes gens aient plus de problémes que les
autres avec la loi.

M. Amagoalik: Vous avez tout 4 fait raison. Le taux d’incar-
cération des populations autochtones est trés élevé, toutes pro-
portions gardées. Dans les provinces, presque 25 p. 100 des
personnes détenues dans les établissments correctionnels sont
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tional institutes are aboriginal people. In the territories, I sus-

pect about 90 per cent of the inmates are aboriginal people.
The whole justice system needs to be re-examined. It is a

complex problem that needs to be overhauled right from the

bottom up.

Senator Adams: Before the Government of Canada came
into the territories, we had to look after ourselves. There was
no law. There was never really any trouble in the communities
because the people had their own way of dealing with things,
and it was not always strictly by law. Sometimes I think that
RCMP members are sent to the Territories as a step for pro-
motion. So they come up there and pick on the people. It seems
that it is mostly Aboriginal people who go to jail.

Mr. Amagoalik: That’s right. There is an abnormally high
rate of conviction among Inuit offenders, simply because they
do not understand the system or their constitutional rights.
Many times they are punished for things they do not deserve to
be punished for, simply because they do not understand the
system, their rights or the legal technicalities that can be used
to their advantage. Nor does the system understand them.

Senator Adams: Most of the lawyers hired by the govern-
ment to represent the people are really not doing their job.

Mr. Amagoalik: They do not do a very effective job. They
fly in, sit in court, go through the motions and then fly out
again. They do not involve themselves in the community. As a
result, they do not understand the people in the communities.
Many times they do not make full effort to defend clients
properly.

Senator Fairbairn: Are the courts in the Arctic conducted in
the Aboriginal languages?

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes, through translation. However, the
Inuit have a different concept of court than most people. When
an Inuk appears in court he assumes that he is there to be pun-
ished and that is all; not to find out whether or not he is guilty
of a wrong. A unilingual Inuk does not understand his consti-
tutional rights. He assumes that he is going to be punished by
the court, and 99 per cent of the time he is found guilty.

Senator Hébert: Are the accused provided with Inuit law-
yers?

Mr. Amagoalik: I am not aware of any Inuk lawyers. I do
not think there is one in Canada.

Senator Hébert: So white people from the South; come to
defend the accused?

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes. The lawyers are usually from Igaluit,
Yellowknife or Southern Canada.

Senator Hébert: Do these lawyers know the language?

[Traduction)

des autochtones. Dans les territoires, je crois pouvoir affirmer
qu’environ 90 p. 100 des détenus sont des autochtones.

Le fonctionnement de I'appareil judiciaire dans son ensem-
ble doit étre réévalué. Ce probléme est trés complexe et il doit
étre étudié en profondeur.

Le sénateur Adams: Avant que le gouvernement canadien ne
vienne s’occuper des territoires, il nous fallait prendre soin de
nous-mémes. Il n'y avait pas de loi. Il n’y avait jamais de pro-
blémes réels au sein des collectivités parce que les gens dispo-
saient de leurs propres moyens de dissuasion, qui n’étaient pas
toujours strictement juridiques. Parfois, je pense que les agents
de la GRC sont envoyés dans les Territories du Nord-Ouest
afin de «gagner du galon». Ils arrivent donc dans le Nord et se
mettent A harceler les gens. Il semble que ce soit presque tou-
jours des autochtones qui se retrouvent en prison.

M. Amagoalik: Vous avez raison. Le taux de condamnation
chez les contrevenants inuits est anormalement élevé tout sim-
plement parce qu’ils ne comprennent ni le systéme ni leurs
droits constitutionnels. Trés souvent, ils sont punis pour des
gestes qui ne méritent pas de punition, tout simplement parce
qu’ils ne comprennent pas le systéme, leurs droits ni les subtili-
tés juridiques dont ils pourraient se prévaloir. Il semble bien
que cette incompréhension soit réciproque.

Le sénateur Adams: La plupart des avocats embauchés par
le gouvernement afin de défendre les autochtones ne font vrai-
ment pas leur travail.

M. Amagoalik: Leur travail n’est sirement pas efficace. Ils
viennent par avion, s’assoient dans la salle d’audience, suivent
la procédure, puis repartent. Ils n’ont aucun lien avec la collec-
tivité et ne peuvent donc comprendre les personnes qui la com-
posent. Souvent, ils ne font méme pas I'effort de bien défendre
leurs clients.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Les audiences du tribunal qui ont
lieu dans I'Arctique se déroulent-elles dans la langue des
autochtones?

M. Amagoalik: Oui, par [Iintermédiaire d’interprétes.
Cependant, la maniére dont les Inuits envisagent le concept
méme de tribunal est différente de celle adoptée par bien des
gens. Lorsqu’un Inuk comparait devant le tribunal, il présume
qu’il sera puni et c’est tout; il ne sait pas qu’il est 1 pour éta-
blir s’il est coupable ou non d’un délit. Un Inuk unilingue ne
comprend pas les droits qui lui sont conférés par la constitu-
tion. Il pense tout simplement qu’il sera puni par le tribunal et
dans 99 p. 100 des cas, il est en effet reconnu coupable.

Le sénateur Hébert: Les accusés sont-ils défendus par des
avocats inuits?

M. Amagoalik: Personne ne m’a jamais parlé d’un avocat
Inuk. Je ne pense pas qu’il y en ait un seul dans tout le
Canada.

Le sénateur Hébert: Ainsi, ce sont des Blancs venus de Sud
qui défendent les accusés?

M. Amagoalik: Oui. Les avocats viennent la plupart du
temps de Iqaluit, Yellowknife ou du sud du Canada.

Le sénateur Hébert: Ces avocats connaissent-ils la langue
des accusés?
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Mr. Amagoalik: No.

Senator Hébert: So the whole thing is done through transla-
tion?
Mr. Amagoalik: Interpretation, yes.

Senator Adams: People of the north today are punished in
the same way people are punished in the south. Some years
ago, people were punished in different ways. For example, they
might be forced to live out on the land for a while, or to live in
an igloo for a few days. I am sure you all know that it is not
very warm at night in an igloo. Also they had to deal with the
people in the community. People would come up to them and
ask “Why are you making trouble in the community?” The
community would try to teach them the right way. Now, when
the Inuit do something wrong, they are charged and put in
prison with guards. Before the Territorial Government came,
there were no jails. Today, we put our people in prisons.

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes, and many times the punishment is not
appropriate. Sometimes the people complain that the punish-
ment is not enough. The communities should be more involved
in the process than they are at the moment. For example, eld-
ers could give advice on the appropriate punishment.

Senator Macquarrie: I notice in your discussion on the legal
system with Senator Adams you did not use the word “dis-
crimination.” Is that not part of the problem?

Mr. Amagoalik: It is part of the problem and has been ever
since the system was introduced in our communities. Perhaps
it has come about unwittingly.

Senator Macquarrie: Perhaps, and perhaps not.

Mr. Chairman, allow me to take this opportunity, at our
first meeting, to say that this morning’s discussion has been
very successful. We have had a splendid witness. Sometimes
the atmosphere of committee meetings is such that the ambi-
ence is top-notch, and sometimes it is not so good.

I have recollections of the time when Senator Bielish and I
were representatives of the Meech Lake party and we went on
a task force to the north. It was a long trip. I thought we would
fly from Whitehorse to Yellowknife directly but, unfortu-
nately, we had to fly via Vancouver and God knows where else.
I said it was rather like going from Charlottetown to Halifax
via Baltimore and Orlando. I thought I could use my great pull
with the government to get a military plane but, _obvmpsly, my
pull was not adequate. I am sure Senator Bielish will agree
with me that we found very few friends of Meech Lake on that
trip, but we did find a lot of friends and that is why I am glad

to be on this committee.

[Traduction)
M. Amagoalik: Non.

Le sénateur Hébert: Ainsi, toutes les procédures sont tradui-
tes?

M. Amagoalik: Par des interprétes, oui.

Le sénateur Adams: Les habitants du Nord sont aujourd’hui
punis de la méme maniére que les habitants du Sud. Voila
quelques années, ils étaient punis différemment. Par exemple,
les habitants du Nord pouvaient étre forcés a vivre dans un
igloo pendant quelques jours. Je suis convaincu que vous savez
tous qu’il ne fait pas trés chaud la nuit dans un igloo. Les cou-
pables devaient également faire face a leurs concitoyens. Ces
derniers confrontaient souvent les coupables en leur posant des
questions du genre: «Pourquoi viens-tu troubler notre commu-
nauté?» La collectivité essayait de remettre les coupables sur le
droit chemin. Aujourd’hui, lorsqu’un Inuit commet un geste
répréhensible, il est poursuivi, mis en prison et surveillé par des
gardiens. Avant la venue du gouvernement territorial, il n’y
avait pas de prisons.

M. Amagoalik: C’est bien vrai. Et souvent, la punition infli-
gée ne convient pas. Parfois, les gens se plaignent que les pei-
nes ne sont pas suffisamment sévéres. La participation commu-
nautaire au processus devrait étre plus grande qu’elle I’est
actuellement. Par exemple, les anciens pourraient donner leur
avis sur la nature de la peine 4 infliger.

.Le sénateur Macquarrie: J’ai remarqué que pendant votre
discussion avec le sénateur Adams sur I'appareil judiciaire,
vous n’avez jamais utilisé le mot «discrimination». Nest-il pas
justement question ici de discrimination?

M. Amagoalik: La discrimination est partie intégrante du
probleéme et I'a toujours été depuis que le systéme a été
implanté dans nos collectivités. Peut-&tre cela s’est-il produit
involontairement.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Peut-étre bien, mais peut-étre pas
non plus.

Monsieur le président, permettez-moi de profiter de 1’occa-
sion qui m’est donnée en cette premiére séance pour dire com-
bien les discussions de ce matin ont été bénéfiques. Notre
témoin a été formidable. Parfois, 'ambiance qui régne pendant
les séances du comité est tout simplement extraordinaire et
d’autres fois, elle n’est pas si bonne.

Je me souviens qu’il n’y a pas si longtemps, le sénateur Bie-
lish et moi-méme avons été représentants du regroupement en
faveur de I'Accord du lac Meech et que nous nous sommes ren-
dus dans le Nord 4 la faveur des travaux d’un groupe de tra-
vail. Il s’agissait d’un long voyage. Je pensais que notre vol
irait directement de Whitehorse a Yellowknife, Toutefois, il
nous fallait malheureusement passer par Vancouver et f)ar
Dieu seul sait ou encore. C’est un peu comme s fallait passer
par Baltimore et Orlando pour aller de Charlottetown 4 Hali-
fax. Je pensais pouvoir utiliser ma grande influence au sein du
gouvernement pour pouvoir voyager i bord d’un avion mili-
taire, mais !l sembl_e bien que mon influence n’était pas suffi-
sante. :le suis convaincu que le sénateur Bielish confirmera que
nous n'avons pas rencontré beaucoup d’amis du lac Meech au
cours de ce voyage. Pourtant, nous nous sommes réellement
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Senator Fairbairn: A considerable amount of discussion has
been generated over the last year because of the findings of the
Donald Marshall inquiry, the inquiry into native justice going
on in Manitoba and the Rolf inquiry in southern Alberta, as to
whether we should really be looking at a native justice system
rather than an overhaul of the system currently in place. Can
you share your views on that?

I can still vividly remember one occasion when I was visiting
some prisons across Canada for another committee a few years
ago. We stopped in Drumbheller where, as Senator Bielish will
know, there is an enormous number of aboriginal native
inmates and a lot of them are extremely young. It is a
medium-security institution. They invited myself and the two
other senators with me to attend a sweet grass ceremony. They
were all, basically, very young men. They told us that it had
just happened that an elder was being brought in to do sweat
lodge ceremonies with them. These young people told us that
this was the first time in their lives that they had known of
their cultural traditions. The contradiction of learning those
traditions while being imprisoned in an institution, to me, was
dreadful.

I am wondering if you have views on the idea of having a
special system of justice for aboriginal people? It would have
to be very carefully done with a lot of cooperation from the
aboriginal community itself. Is this a possibility? Would it
help in this area?

Mr. Amagoalik: I think it would. You mentioned the differ-
ent inquiries that have taken place in Canada in recent years.
The Donald Marshall inquiry was in the news every day but it
was nothing new to us. I think most aboriginal people reading
those articles recognized all the things that were being exposed
through that inquiry.

There is no doubt that the present system is not working and
that it needs to be re-examined. As I said, the community
needs to be intimately involved in the delivery of the system.
They cannot just be the recipients of it. They have to have
some degree of participation and control. I think that some-
thing like an aboriginal justice system should be examined but
it has to be examined with our participation.

Senator Fairbairn: The Human Rights Commissioner and
others have raised the question, which is not a new one, of a
royal commission to go into the whole question of aboriginal
issues and aboriginal justice in all its dimensions. This idea has
been tossed around for a great many years but it seems that
recently more and more people are looking to this as a viable
possibility. What is your attitude towards it?

[Traduction)

fait de nombreux amis et voila pourquoi je suis particuliére-
ment heureux de participer aux travaux de ce comité.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: De nombreuses discussions ont été
suscitées au cours de I'année derniére par les résultats de
I’enquéte sur 'affaire Donald Marshall, I’enquéte sur ’admi-
nistration de la justice chez les autochtones du Manitoba et
par I’enquéte Rolfe dans le sud de I’Alberta. Toutes ces discus-
sions visaient & établir si nous devrions réellement envisager la
création d’un appareil judiciare particulier pour les autochto-
nes plutdt que d’adapter le systéme déja en place. Pourriez-
vous nous donner votre opinion sur la question?

J’ai encore frais 4 la mémoire le souvenir d’un événement
qui s’est produit il y a quelques années quand je visitais des
prisons canadiennes dans le cadre des travaux d’un autre
comité. Nous nous étions arrétés 2 Drumheller ou, comme le
sénateur Bielish le sait sans doute, on retrouve un grand nom-
bre de détenus autochtones, pour la plupart trés jeunes. Il
s’agit d’un établissment a sécurité moyenne. Ces jeunes
autochtones m’ont invité ainsi que les deux autres sénateurs
qui m’accompagnaient i assister a une cérémonie tradition-
nelle de la bande Sweet Grass. lls étaient tous trés jeunes. Ils
nous ont raconté qu’un ancien avait é&t€ amené parmi eux afin
d’organiser des cérémonies de I'étuve avec eux. Ces jeunes
nous ont affirmé que c’était la premiére fois de leur vie qu’ils
entendaient parler de leurs traditions. Le paradoxe que consti-
tue le fait d’apprendre ses traditions pendant un séjour dans un
¢tablissement carcéral m’a paru effrayant.

Je me demande si vous avez une opinion & exprimer concer-
nant la création d’un systéme judiciaire spécial pour les
autochtones? Ce systéme devrait étre congu avec beaucoup de
soin et avec I’entiére collaboration de la communauté autoch-
tone elle-méme. Cela serait-il possible? Seriez-vous prét a nous
aider dans cette entreprise?

M. Amagoalik: Je pense que ce serait possible. Vous avez
mentionné les différentes enquétes qui ont eu lieu au Canada
au cours des derniéres années. L’enquéte sur I'affair Donald
Marshall a fait les manchettes presque tous les jours, mais elle
ne nous a rien appris 4 nous. Je pense que la plupart des auto-
chotones qui ont lu ces articles ont trouvé un air familier a tous
les faits qui ont été révélés a ’occasion de cette enquéte.

Il ne fait aucun doute que le systéme actuel ne fonctionne
pas et qu’il faut le réévaluer. Comme je 'ai déja dit, la collecti-
vité doit participer activement 4 I'administration de la justice;
elle ne peut se contenter d’en faire I'objet. Les autochtones doi-
vent participer au processus et jusqu’a uin certain point, le con-
troler. Je pense que la création d’un appareil judiciaire autoch-
tone ou de quelque chose du genre devrait étre envisagée, mais
avec notre participation.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Le Commissaire aux droits de la
personne et d’autres intervenants ont demandé, et ce n’est 13
rien de nouveau, la tenue d’une commission royale d’enquéte
afin d’étudier en profondeur toute la problématique des popu-
lations autochtones et de I'administration de la justice au sein
de ces populations. Cette idée resurgit réguliérement depuis de
nombreuses années, mais il semble que derniérement de plus
en plus de gens la considérent comme une option viable. Quelle
est votre attitude face a une telle éventualité?
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There is on the one hand some potential for saying that this
is just another way of putting off decisions and, on the other, it
may be a viable suggestion in terms of having a very searching
and productive look into these issues.

Mr. Amagoalik: I have not made up my mind about the use-
fulness of a royal commission. The reason I say that is because
we already know the problems. What is the use of doing it all
over again? If the mandate of the commission were clear and
the end result were to be some real change, then I would sup-
port it. However, if it is just another inquiry that will end up
on a shelf, then it would be a waste of time. If it had a good
mandate and if it would result in real change, then I think it
would be useful.

Senator Fairbairn: Thank you very much. Like Senator
Macquarrie, I found this morning extremely interesting and
useful. I almost hate to let you go but I am sure that if we have
other areas to explore we will ask you to come back. I would
thank you for all the time and the thought you have put into
this. You have certainly been very helpful to us.

Senator Hébert: If we, in this committee, have the will I
think we could do as good a job as any royal commission. In
any event, I think it would be cheaper.

I do not have the eloquence of Senator Macquarrie because,
I suppose, to have that you have to be born in P.E.I T was only
there for two years when I was in college and that, obviously,
was not long enough. However, I do want to say that I share
the views expressed so eloquently by him about the atmosphere
of this committee and the good start we have made because of
the quality of our witness. I feel a consensus among us that we
have something dramatically important to do for our country
and that we are all convinced of that. I am sure that, under the
leadership of our chairman, we will achieve something egually
as good as what would be achieved by any royal commission.

The Chairman: Just before we let you go, could you just
elaborate on what you think might be some of the xngrcqlgnts
of a proper mandate for a royal commission on aboriginal
issues?

Mr. Amagoalik: I have not really thought about it. I do not
think I can answer that question at this moment. I have not
thought it through.

The Chairman: We are to have Mr. Yalden appear _before us
on May 29. I think he is anxious to make a presentation and I
am sure this question will come up. It would be very usefgl to
the committee to have some more elaboration of your views

[Traduction]

D’un c6té, on pourrait dire qu’il s’agit d’un nouveau moyen
de remettre 4 plus tard la prise des décisions qui s’imposent.
De l'autre c6té, il pourrait s’agir d’une suggestion valable si
I’on désire étudier a fond et d’'une maniére productive ces ques-
tions.

M. Amagoalik: Je ne me suis pas encore fait une opinion
bien arrétée sur I'utilité d’une éventuelle commission royale
d’enquéte. Je dis cela parce que nous connaissons déja les pro-
blémes. Quelle serait I'utilité de reprendre tout le travail
depuis le début? Si le mandat de la commission était clair et le
résultat final recherché I'avénement de changements réels,
J’appuierais sans réserve cette commission. Toutefois, s’il s’agit
simplement d’une autre enquéte dont le résultats finiront sur
une tablette, alors ce sera une perte de temps. Si le mandat de
cette commission était clair et que ses travaux aboutissaient
sur la venue de changements réels, alors ce serait un exercice
utile.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Je vous remercie. Comme le séna-
teur Macquarrie, j’ai trouvé les discussions de ce matin extré-
mement intéressantes et utiles. Je déteste presque I'idée d’avoir
a vous laisser partir, mais je suis convaincu que si nous avons a
étudier d’autres aspects de la question, nous pourrons vous
demander de revenir. Je vous remercie pour le temps que vous
avez consacré aux travaux de ce comité et pour nous avoir livré
le fruit de votre réflexion sur le sujet. Vous nous avez été d’une
grande utilité.

Le sénateur Hébert: Si nous tous, au sein de ce comité, y
mettons la volonté qu’il faut, je pense que nous pourrons faire
un aussi bon travail que n’importe quelle commission royale. A
tout événement, je pense que cela coiiterait moins cher ainsi.

Je ne posséde pas I'éloquence du sénateur Macquarrie, parce
que, je présume, il faut étre originaire de I'Ile-du-Prince-
Edouard pour étre doué d’une telle qualité. Or, je n’ai vécu la
que deux années de ma vie quand j’étais au collége, et il me
semble évident que cela n’est pas suffisant. Cependant, je
désire réellement vous faire savoir que je partage tout a fait le
point de vue qu’il a si brillamment exprimé quant 4 I’atmos-
phére qui a régne sur les travaux de ce comité et sur leur
démarrage en force grace a la qualité de notre témoin. Je sens
qu’un consensus se dégage voulant que nous soyions dans une
position privilégiée pour accomplir quelque chose de trés
important pour notre pays €t que nous sommes tous convaincus
de cette réalité. Je suis sir que, grice au leadership de notre
président, nous ferons tout aussi bien qu’une commission
royale.

Le président: Avant que nous vous laissions partir, pourriez-
vous nous mentionner quels seraient, selon vous, les éléments
du mandat qu’il conviendrait de confier 4 une commission
royale sur les questions autochtones.

M. Amagoalik: Je n’y ai pas vraiment pensé. Je ne pense pas
étre en mesure de répondre 4 cette question pour I'instant. Je
n’y ai pas réfléchi.

Le président: M. Yalden comparaitra devant nous le 29 maij
prochain. Je pense qu'’il est trés désireux de faire une présenta-
tion et je suis certain que cette question sera posée de nouveau.
Il serait trés utile aux travaux de comité de connaitre plus en



1:54

Aboriginal Peoples

4-5-1990

[Text]

once you have had a chance to think about it. It is an impor-
tant point and, as you know, Mr. Yalden made a very impas-
sioned appeal in his last report where he called the plight of
our aboriginal peoples a national tragedy.

Mr. Amagoalik: Yes. Mr. Yalden made that suggestion
recently. I have been preoccupied with Meech Lake and have
not had time to think about anything else.

The Chairman: If there are no more questions, on behalf of
the committee I would like to thank you for being such a good
first witness and for helping us get started. We look forward to
seeing you and hearing from you possibly in the future.

The committee adjourned.

[Traduction)

détail votre point de vue sur cette question lorsque vous aurez
eu la possibilité d’y réfléchir. Il s’agit d’une question impor-
tante et, comme vous le savez, M. Yalden a lancé un vibrant
appel dans son dernier rapport ou il a qualifié le sort réservé
aux populations autochtones de tragédie nationale.

M. Amagoalik: En effet. M. Yalden a fait cette suggestion
derniérement. J'ai été trés occupé par les travaux sur I’Accord
du lac Meech et je n’ai malheureusement pas eu le temps de
penser 4 autre chose.

Le président: S’il n’y a pas d’autres questions . .. au nom du
comité, je tiens 4 vous remercier pour la qualité de votre inter-
vention et pour nous avoir aidés & amorcer nos travaux du bon
pied. Nous espérons avoir I’occasion de vous revoir et de vous
entendre de nouveau.

La séance est levée.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE ORDRE DE RENVOI

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Extrait des Proces-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 29 mars
Thursday, March 29, 1990: 1990:

“The Order of the Day being read,

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Marchand, P.C., resumed the
debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator Mar-
chand, P.C., seconded by the Honourable Senator Petten:

That the Standing Senate Committee on Aboriginal
Peoples be authorized to study and report on the relations
between the Aboriginal Peoples and the Government of
Canada, including a contemporary analysis of the critical
issues facing Aboriginal Canadians; and

That the Committee present its final report no later
than March 31, 1991.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

«A la lecture de I’Ordre du jour,

Avec la permission du Sénat,

L’honorable sénateur Marchand, c.p., reprend le débat
sur la motion de I'honorable sénateur Marchand, c.p.,
appuyé par I’honorable sénateur Petten,

Que le Comité sénatorial permanent des peuples
autochtones soit autorisé a entreprendre une étude sur les
relations entre les peuples autochtones et le gouvernement
du Canada, comprenant une analyse actuelle des ques-
tions cruciales aux-quelles les Autoctones du Canada doi-
vent faire face, et 4 en faire rapport; et

Que le Comité présente son rapport final au plus tard le
31 mars 1991.

Aprés débat,

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Le greffier du Sénat
Gordon L. Barnhart
Clerk of the Senate
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Le Comité sénatorial permanent des peuples autochtones se
réunit aujourd’hui @ 9 h 15, 4 la piéce 256-S, Edifice du Cen-
tre, sous la présidence de I’honorable sénateur Len Marchand
(président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Adams, Bielish, Chaput-Rolland, Hébert, Macquarrie, Muir,
Marchand et Spivak. (8)

Autres sénateurs présents: Les honorables sénateurs Corbin,
Petten et Steuart.

Aussi présents: Du Service de la recherche de la Bibliothe-
que du Parlement: M™ Patricia Bégin, attachée de recherche.

Témoins:

De I’Assemblée des Premieres Nations:
M. Ovide Mercredi, chef pour la région du Manitoba;

M. Bill Wilson, chef pour la région de la Colombie-Britanni-
que.

Du Conseil national des Métis:

M. Yvon Dumont, président, Fédération des Métis du Mani-
toba, et porte-parole du Conseil national des Métis;

M. Larry Desmeules, président, Association des Métis

d’Alberta;

M. Ron Rivard, directeur exécutif, Conseil national des

Métis;
M. Gerald Thom, vice-président, Association des Métis de
I’Alberta.

Le Comité poursuit ’étude de son Ordre de renvoi daté du
29 mars 1990, soit d’entreprendre une étude sur les relations
entre les peuples autochtones et le gouvernement du Canada,
comprenant une analyse actuelle des questions cruciales aux-
quelles les Autochtones du Canada doivent faire face, et & en
faire rapport au plus tard le 31 mars 1991.

Les témoins représentant I’Assemblée des Premiéres Nations
font des déclarations et répondent aux questions.

A 12 h 45, le Comité suspend ses travaux.

A 13 h 40, la séance reprend avec les témoins représentant le
Conseil canadien des Métis.

Ces derniers font une déclaration et répondent aux ques-
tions.

A 16 h 30, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

ATTESTE:

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

FRIDAY, MAY 11, 1990
(5)

[Translation]

The Standing Senate Committee on Aboriginal Peoples met
at 9:15 a.m. this day in Room 256-S, Centre Block, the Chair-
man, the Honourable Len Marchand, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Adams, Bielish, Chaput-Rolland, Hébert, Macquarrie,
Muir, Marchand and Spivak. (8)

Other Senators present: The Honourable Senators Corbin,
Petten and Steuart.

In attendance: From the Research Branch, Library of Par-
liament: Mrs. Patricia Bégin, Research Officer.

Witnesses:

From the Assembly of First Nations:
Mr. Ovide Mercredi, Chief, Manitoba Region;
Mr. Bill Wilson, Chief, British Columbia Region.

From the Metis National Council:

Mr. Yvon Dumont, Chairman, Metis Federation of
Manitoba, and spokesperson for the Metis National
Council;

Mr. Larry Desmeules, Chairman, Metis Association of
Alberta;

Mr. Ron Rivard, Executive Director, Metis National Coun-
cil;

Mr. Gerald Thom, Vice-Chairman, Metis Association of
Alberta.

Pursuant to its Order of Reference of March 29, 1990, the
Committee resumed consideration of the relations between
Aboriginal Peoples and the Government of Canada, including
a contemporary analysis of the critical issues facing Aboriginal
Canadians, a final report to be presented no later than March
31, 1991.

The witnesses representing the Assembly of First Nations
made statements and answered questions.

At 12:45 p.m., the Committee suspended its work.

At 1:40 p.m., the sitting resumed with the witnesses repre-
senting the Metis National Council.

These witnesses made a statement and answered questions,

At 4:30 p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the
Chair.

ATTEST:

Le greffier du Comité
Serge Pelletier
Clerk of the Committee
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Ottawa, Friday, May 11, 1990
[Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Aboriginal Peoples met
this day at 9.00 a.m. to continue its study of relations between
the aboriginal peoples and the Government of Canada, includ-
ing the critical issues facing aboriginal Canadians.

Senator Len Marchand (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, we are happy to have
with us today representatives of the Assembly of First Nations.
Unfortunately, George Erasmus, the Grand Chief, is ill and
cannot attend. Two of our senators, Senator Fairbairn and
Senator Neiman, are also ill and cannot be here today. Senator
Hébert is otherwise occupied at the moment but will join us at
about 9.30.

Speaking on behalf of the Assembly of First Nations are
Ovide Mercredi, the Manitoba Regional Chief, and Bill Wil-
son, the British Columbia Regional Chief. I believe George
Watts is on his way.

Bill Wilson, British Columbia Regional Chief, .‘.\ssembly of
First Nations: Both Mr. Watts and Mr. Courtoureille are sup-
posed to be here, but we have lost them somewhere.

The Chairman: Perhaps 1 will introduce all of the senators
around the table. Senator Muir is from Nova Scotia, Senator
Macquarrie from Prince Edward Island, Senator Bielish from
Alberta, Senator Adams from the north, Senator Corbin from
New Brunswick, Senator Spivak from Manitoba and Senator
Chaput-Rolland from Quebec. )

Gentlemen, you know the process here. We have a wide
open agenda. This is the second meeting of the Standing Sen-
ate Committee on Aboriginal Peoples. We wanted to begin our
study with the national organizations and we want to hear
what you have to say. We are looking for guidance as to what
we should be doing as a committee. We are going to try to do
it right. To start with, then, we hope to have some 1n depth .dlS-
cussions with various organizations to try to get a proper orien-
tation as to what we want to do.

Ovide, the floor is yours. We have at least three hours and
we can extend that time limit if necessary. Thank you for com-
ing.

Ovide Mercredi, Manitoba Regional Chief, A_ssembly of
First Nations: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would 1.1ke to relay
the regrets of the National Chief for his not being ablq to
attend this presentation as he was looking forward to doing.
However, 1 want to indicate, Mr. Chairman and honour_aple
senators, that I have with me the Regional Chief f'rom British
Columbia, Bill Wilson. I expect that we will be joined by. two
other Indian leaders, Lawrence Courtoureille, the _reglonal
chief from Alberta, and George Watts, who is the chairman of
the Nuu-chah-nu-luth Tribal Council of British Columbia.

I intend this morning to read out a general presentation to
begin our discussion with you. We fully expect that senators

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le vendredi 11 mai 1990
[Traduction)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des peuples autochtones se
réunit 4 9 heures pour poursuivre son étude des relations entre
les peuples autochtones et le gouvernement du Canada, y com-
pris des questions critiques auxquelles font face les autochtones
du Canada.

Le sénateur Len Marchand (président) occupe le fauteuil.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, nous sommes heureux
d’accueillir aujourd’hui des représentants de 1’Assemblée des
premiéres nations. Le grand chef George Erasmus est malheu-
reusement malade et ne peut étre présent. Deux de nos séna-
teurs, les sénateurs Fairbairn et Neiman, sont aussi malades et
ne peuvent étre ici aujourd’hui. Le sénateur Hébert est occupé
gii}leurs pour le moment, mais il viendra se joindre a nous vers

30.

Parleront au nom de I’Assemblée des premiéres nations
Ovide Mercredi, chef régional du Manitoba, et Bill Wilson,
chef régional de la Colombie-Britannique. Je crois que George
Watts est en route.

M. Bill Wilson, chef régional de la Colombie-Britannique,
Assemblée des premiéres nations: MM. Watts et Courtoureille
sont tous deux supposés étre ici, mais nous les avons perdus
quelque part.

Le président: Je devrais peut-étre présenter tous les séna-
teurs qui prennent place autour de la table, soit le sénateur
Muir de la Nouvelle-Ecosse, le sénateur Macquarrie de I'fle-
du-Prince-Edouard, le sénateur Bielish de I'Alberta, le séna-
teur Adams du Nord, le sénateur Corbin du Nouveau-Bruns-
wick, le sénateur Spivak du Manitoba et le sénateur Chaput-
Rolland du Québec.

Messieurs, vous savez comment nous procédons ici. Notre
mandat est général. Il s’agit de la deuxiéme séance du Comité
sénatorial permanent des peuples autochtones. Nous voulions
commencer par entendre les organisations nationales. Nous
cherchons conseil sur ce que nous devrions faire en tant que
comité. Nous allons essayer de nous y prendre de la bonne
fagon. C’est pourquoi nous espérons, pour commencer, tenir
quelques discussions détaillées avec divers organismes afin de
partir du bon pied.

Ovide, vous avez la parole. Nous avons au moins trois heures
et nous pouvons prolonger la séance au besoin. Je vous remer-
cie d’étre venu.

M. Ovide Mercredi, chef régional du Manitoba, Assemblée
des premiéres nations: Merci, monsieur le président. Je vous
transmets l.es regrets du chef national, qui est désolé de ne pou-
voir étr; ici ce rpatin, contrairement a ce qu’il espérait. Je tiens
toutefois a préciser, monsieur le président et honorables séna-
teurs, que je suis accompagné du chef régional de la Colombie-
Britannique, Bill Wilson. Je crois que deux autres dirigeants
indiens se joindront 4 nous, soit Lawrence Courtoureille chef
régional de I’Alberta, et George Watts, président du cons’eil de
la tribu Nuu-chah-nu-luth de Colombie-Britannique.

J’ai I'intention de vous lire ce matin un exposé général pour
amorcer nos discussions. Nous nous attendons a ce que les
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will have many questions and we will provide many responses.
We also have some questions about the role of this committee
and what its expectations are. I think we can look forward to
an exchange on the direction you might want to take to assist
the First Nations and other aboriginal peoples in promoting
the agenda that would bring about the kind of changes needed
in this country, particularly in the area of relationships and
government policies affecting aboriginal people.

I would like to thank the chairman and members of this
committee for the opportunity to have a conversation with
them about the relations between the Government of Canada
and the First Nations.

The Assembly of First Nations has just held its Annual
Assembly. This year, which was the eleventh time that the
chiefs of Canada were meeting nationally, we decided to
involve our Elders and youth and women more than ever
before. We felt that a dialogue between the chiefs and our peo-
ple, especially our elders, was long overdue at the national
level. And so, for four days in Whitehorse including the past
weekend, we addressed a number of sub-themes of national
concern within an overall theme of “Determining our Agenda
through Reconciliation of our Past Values”.

Several ideas recurred throughout the proceedings, all of
them related directly to the linkages between the historic tradi-
tions of our First Nations and the pressing issues of today.

Arising out of the proceedings, the Executive Committee of
the AFN has identified several areas for immediate, medium
and long-term follow-up action.

Specifically, as the 21st centruy approaches, the aim of the
First Nations is to restore our several nationhoods, if I might
coin such a word, and move away from the artificial con-
straints resulting from the creation of the Canadian provinces
and the regime of the Indian Act, neither of which was our
doing and in neither of which did we have a say.

Mr. Chairman, the aboriginal peoples of Canada, of which
those of the First Nations are a major part, have the right to
self-determination, a right which we believe stems from our
histories before the arrival of European settlers and which we
believe has a measure of recognition in the Royal Proclama-
tion of 1763 and which is a feature of contemporary interna-
tional law.

As First nations we have an inherent right to govern our-
selves.

We had this right from time immemorial; in other words,
centuries before the arrival of the Europeans. This right exists
today, although the federal and provincial governments so far
have refused to give it an explicit recognition and protection in
the Constitution of Canada. Neither the Crown in right of the
United Kingdom nor of Canada delegated the right to be self-
governing to the First Nations. It existed long before Canada
itself was a nation.

Parliament did not create our right to self-government. The
inherent right to sovereignty of the First Nations of North

[Traduction]
sénateurs aient de nombreuses questions et nous y répondrons.
Nous en avons aussi quelques-unes sur le role du comité et ses
attentes. Je crois que nous pouvons espérer un échange de vues
sur 'orientation que vous pourriez vouloir prendre pour aider
les Premiéres nations et d’autres peuples autochtones a pro-
mouvoir le programme qui permettra d’instaurer les change-
ments qui s'imposent au Canada, en ce qui concerne particulié-
rement les relations avec les peuples autochtones et les
politiques gouvernementales qui les affectent.

Je remercie le président et les membres du comité de nous
offrir I'occasion de discuter avec eux des relations entre le gou-
vernement du Canada et les Premiéres nations.

L’Assemblée des premiéres nations vient de tenir son assem-
blée annuelle. C’était cette année la onziéme fois que les chefs
du Canada se réunissent a I'échelle nationale et c’est pourquoi
nous avons décidé d’y impliquer plus que jamais nos anciens,
les jeunes et les femmes. Le dialogue entre les chefs et nos peu-
ples, et spécialement nos anciens, s’imposait depuis longtemps
a I'échelle nationale. Et c’est pourquoi nous avons siégé quatre
jours & Whitehorse, y compris la fin de semaine derniére, pour
discuter d’un certain nombre de sous-thémes d’intérét national
dans le cadre d’un théme global, soit: «L’établissement de notre
programme par la conciliation de nos valeurs du passé».

Plusieurs idées sont revenues durant nos travaux. Toutes
avaient trait directement aux liens entre les traditions histori-
ques des Premiéres nations et les questions urgentes
d’aujourd’hui.

A la suite de nos délibérations, le Comité exécutif de ’APN
a identifié plusieurs domaines ol un suivi immédiat, & moyen
et a long terme s’impose.

A la veille du XXI siécle, I’Assemblée des premigres nations
vise plus précisément a rétablir nos nombreuses nations, si je
puis m’exprimer ainsi, et 4 s’écarter des contraintes artificielles
résultant de la création des provinces canadiennes et du régime
de la Loi sur les Indiens. Nous n’avons rien eu a voir avec les
deux, pas plus que nous avons eu notre mot a dire a ce sujet.

Monsieur le président, les peuples autochtones du Canada,
dont ceux des Premiéres nations constituent un élément impor-
tant, ont droit 4 I'autonomie politique. Ce droit découle selon
nous de notre histoire, qui remonte avant l'arrivée des colons
européens et qui est reconnue dans une certaine mesure par la
Proclamation royale de 1763, qui fait partie du droit interna-
tional moderne.

Comme Premiéres nations, nous avons un droit inhérent a
I'autonomie politique.

Nous avions ce droit depuis des temps immémoriaux, autre-
ment dit depuis des siécles avant I'arrivée des Européens. Ce
droit existe toujours aujourd’hui, méme si les gouvernements
fédéral et provinciaux ont jusqu’da maintenant refusé de le
reconnaitre et de le protéger explicitement dans la Constitution
du Canada. Ni la Couronne du chef du Royaume-Uni ni celle
du Canada n’ont délégué le droit & I'autonomie politique aux
Premiéres nations qui I’avaient longtemps avant la création du
Canada.

Notre droit a I'autonomie politique ne nous vient pas du
Parlement. Le droit inhérent a la souveraineté des Premiéres
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America was initially recognized by two-row wampums going
back as far as the middle of the 17th century. Yet, today,
although the provisions of the Royal Proclamation are referred
to in the Constitution Act of 1982, First Nations are not enjoy-
ing their sovereignty, which was agreed upon among our
ancestors and your predecessors.

In 1867, as we all know, Mr. Chairman, the federal govern-
ment arrogated to itself a serious and grave responsibility,
which was to have exclusive legislative authority in respect of
Indians and lands reserved for Indians. That is the infamous
section 91(24) of our Constitution. What we have experienced
since then has been the passing of the Indian Act and the crea-
tion of the Department of Indian Affairs.

The Indian Act is an ad hoc piece of legislation that restricts
activities in every sector of our lives. It attempts to restrain our
rights and limits our ability to govern ourselves effectively
within the legal parameters of Canada. A white bureaucracy
has been established to carry out the assimilation as to goals of
the federal government, and it has become an expensive and
unwieldy mechanism that does not function in the best inter-
ests of First Nations.

Departmental managers do not share a common interpreta-
tion of what the department’s role is. So, within that mammo_th
department and its regional offices there is confusion and mis-
management. The Auditor General of Canada has found that
to be the case. The Special Committee of the House of Com-
mons on Indian Self-Government found that to be the case.
The latter committee, which reported in 1983, made far-.reach-
ing recommendations for the down-sizing if not the dlsman-
tling of the department and for the creation of a new relation-
ship between First Nations on the one hand and the federg]
government on the other. We believe that a new rplatlonshlp
must be built on principles of mutual respect, co-existence and
co-operation, which was what our ancestors and your predeqes—
sors had in mind. Instead of that, today we have neo-colonial-
ism and nomination, not just by the Parliament of Canada but,
in particular, the officials who do the work for the Parliament
of Canada.

Mr. Chairman, the First Nations are not a threat to
Canada. We do not preach separatism. This is our country,
from north to south and east to west. It is the only homeland
that we have. We did not come from anywhere else; we have
nowhere else to return to and we have no divided loyalities.

When we talk about sovereignty, we are using that .wqrd to
indicate that we existed and survived as distinct societies in
Canada, that we have our own cultures, our own languages,
our own institutions of self-government, and many of us Erac-
tice our own inherent spirituality. When we use the term “sov-
ereignty,” we are describing our notion of where we are com-
ing from, that prior to settlement by Europeans, we owned the
land and the resources and we exercised jurisdiction over the
land and those resources.

Our ancestors and your predecessors in many areas of
Canada signed treaties. We have found that our ancestors
understanding of the treaties is not in tune with the under-
standing of contemporary law and bureaucracy.

[Traduction)]

nations de ’Amérique du Nord a été reconnu & l'origine par
des wampums a deux rangs dés le milieu du XVII® siécle.
Méme si la Loi constitutionnelle de 1982 fait allusion 4 la Pro-
clamation royale, les Premiéres nations ne jouissent toujours
pas de la souveraineté convenue entre nos ancétres et vos pré-
décesseurs.

Comme nous le savons tous, monsieur le président, le gou-
vernement fédéral s’est arrogé en 1867 une responsabilité
grave et sérieuse, soit l'autorité législative exclusive sur les
Indiens et les terres réservées aux Indiens. Je veux parler de
I'infame article 91(24) de la Constitution. Nous avons depuis
connu |’avénement de la Loi sur les Indiens et la création du
ministére des Affaires indiennes.

La Loi sur les Indiens est une mesure législative improvisée
qui limite toutes nos sphéres d’activité. Cette mesure essaie de
contraindre nos droits et limite notre capacité de nous gouver-
ner efficacement en-decd des paramétres juridiques du
Canada. Une bureaucratie blanche a été chargée d’assurer
I'assimilation en fonction des buts du gouvernement fédéral.
Elle est devenue un mécanisme coiteux et lourd qui n’agit pas
dans les meilleurs intéréts des Premiéres nations.

Les gestionnaires du ministére n’interprétent pas tous son
role de la méme fagon. C’est pourquoi la confusion et I'incurie
régnent dans ce ministére énorme et ses bureaux régionaux,
comme l'ont constaté le vérificateur général du Canada et le
Comité spécial de la Chambre des communes sur I’autonomie
politique des Indiens. Dans son rapport de 1983, celui-ci a pré-
senté des recommandations d’envergure sur la décroissance du
ministére, voire son démantélement, et sur la création d’une
nouvelle relation entre les Premiéres nations et le gouverne-
ment fédéral. Une nouvelle relation doit reposer sur les princi-
pes du respect mutuel, de la coexistence et de la coopération,
comme le voulaient nos ancétres et vos prédécesseurs. Ce que
nous connaissons plutt maintenant, c’est le néocolonialisme et
I'ingérence non seulement du Parlement du Canada, mais
aussi, plus particulierement, des fonctionnaires qui font le tra-
vail pour le Parlement du Canada.

Monsieur le président, les Premiéres nations ne constituent
pas une menace pour le Canada. Nous ne préchons pas le sépa-
ratisme. Le Canada est notre pays, du nord au sud et de Iest &
I'ouest. C’est notre seule patrie. Nous ne venons de nulle part
ailleurs, nous n’avons nulle part ol retourner et nous n’avons
aucune allégeance double.

Lorsque nous parlons de souveraineté, nous voulons indiquer
que nous existons et avons survécu comme société distincte au
Canada, que nous avons nos cultures, nos langues et nos insti-
tutions politiques propres, et que beaucoup d’entre nous prati-
quent leur propre spiritualité. En utilisant le terme «souverai-
neté», nous décrivons ce que nous considérons comme nos
origines, le fait qu’avant la colonisation par les Européens, la
terre et les ressources nous appartenaient et nous en avion; le
controle.

Nos ancétres et vos prédécesseurs dans nombre de régions
du Canada ont signé des traités. Nous avons constaté que la
fagon de comprendre les traités de nos ancétres ne correspond
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Our ancestors understood that they were signing documents
of co-existence, in most cases. Frequently, the settlers were
asking only for six inches of soil to farm and for our permission
to use the land and the resources. Obviously, the treaties are
clear evidence of our ancient sovereignty and our ownership of
the land. Yet, today, First Nations are forced to lay claim to
our own lands, to justify our claims to the federal government,
which performs the dual role of adversary and judge. We are
told that our title to our lands is not even as good as fee simple.

People who have been on this land for less than 500 or 400
or 300 or 200 or 100 or even 10 years, who have been thou-
sands of years, that they cannot recognize our title as equal to
theirs.

The treaties established that a political relationship existed
between the First Nations and the Crown. Yet, for genera-
tions, Canada has worked to diminish and restrict our rights to
the point today that it is largely an administrative relationship,
controlled by bureaucrats who are not accountable or commit-
ted to First Nations. Even when the highest courts in the land
recognize our rights, the legislative and executive arms of the
government ignore or trivialize the treaties. Senators, we ask
you, how long do we have to wait before Parliament recognizes
the need to implement our treaties with the Crown, and, there-
fore, Canada’s historical obligations to the First Nations of
Canada?

One point that we tried to drive home time and time again
during the First Ministers Conferences on Aboriginal Consti-
tutional Matters between 1982 and 1987 was that, in seeking
the explicit recognition of our self-government in the Canadian
Constitution, we were not advocating the dismemberment of
our country; rather, we envisaged the sharing of this land and
its bountiful resources based on mutual respect and co-exist-
ence of jurisdictions, and based on the recognition of our inher-
ent rights and of our distinct societies in Canada.

For us, Mr. Chairman, self-determination, in contemporary
terms, has got to mean much more than practicing our own
cultures, traditional customs, religions and languages or the
right to determine the development of our own identity. If the
right to self-determination, as proclaimed in international law,
is to have any meaning for us at all, it must include constitu-
tionally-protected powers over our lives, our lands, and our
resources, as well as the right for us to determine—not for
anybody else to dictate to us—how we will relate and live with
the federal and provincial governments within Canada.

Mr. Chairman, what I have said so far I can tell you is
shared by our elders and our leaders across this country. Those
sentiments were reiterated time and again at our General
Assembly this past week. First Nations citizens are sick and
tired of being made to feel that they are a minority element of
the Canadian population which does not merit much attention

[Traduction)
pas a la compréhension du droit et des bureaucraties moder-
nes.

Nos ancétres croyaient signer des documents de coexistence
dans la plupart des cas. Bien souvent, les colons ne deman-
daient que six pouces de terre arable a cultiver, et notre per-
mission d’utiliser la terre et les ressources. Les traités prouvent
clairement notre souveraineté ancienne et que la terre nous
appartenait. De nos jours, toutefois, les Premiéres nations sont
obligées de revendiquer leurs propres terres, de justifier leurs
revendications au gouvernement fédéral, qui est a la fois partie
et juge. On nous dit que notre titre de propriété ne vaut pas
grand chose.

Les gens qui sont sur ces terres depuis moins de 500, 300,
200, 100 ou méme 10 ans nous disent & nous qui y sommes
depuis des millénaires qu’ils ne reconnaissent pas que notre
titre de propriété a autant de valeur que le leur.

Les traités ont établi une relation politique entre les Premié-
res nations et la Couronne. Le Canada s’efforce toutefois
depuis des générations de diminuer et de restreindre nos droits
jusqu’au point ou la relation est en grande partie administra-
tive, controlée par des bureaucrates qui n’ont pas de compte a
rendre aux Premiéres nations ni aucun engagement envers cel-
les-ci. Méme lorsque les plus hauts tribunaux du pays recon-
naissent nos droits, les organes législatif et exécutif du gouver-
nement ne tiennent pas compte des traités ou les banalisent.
Honorables sénateurs, combien de temps faudra-t-il attendre
pour que le Parlement reconnaisse que la Couronne doit res-
pecter nos traités et, par conséquent, que le Canada a des obli-
gations historiques envers les Premiéres nations du Canada?

Au cours des conférences des premiers ministres sur les
questions constitutionnelles des autochtones qui ont eu lieu
entre 1982 et 1987, nous avons essayé a maintes reprises de
faire comprendre qu’en cherchant a faire reconnaitre explicite-
ment I'autonomie politique des autochtones dans la Constitu-
tion canadienne, nous ne préconisions pas I'éclatement du pays.
Nous envisagions plutdt le partage des terres et de leurs res-
sources abondantes fondé sur le respect mutuel et la coexis-
tence des compétences, ainsi que sur la reconnaissance de nos
droits inhérents et de nos sociétés distinctes au Canada.

Pour nous, monsieur le président, 'autodétermination expri-
mée en termes modernes doit signifier beaucoup plus que la
simple pratique de nos cultures, de nos coutumes traditionnel-
les, de nos religions et de nos langues, ou que le droit de déter-
miner ’évolution de notre identité. Pour que le droit 4 ’auto-
nomie politique tel que proclamé dans le droit international
signifie quelque chose pour nous, il doit englober des pouvoirs
constitutionnalisés que nous pourrons exercer sur notre vie, nos
terres et nos ressources, ainsi que le droit pour les autochtones
de déterminer—sans que personne d’autre ne leur impose quoi
que ce soit—Ileurs relations avec les administrations fédérale et
provinciales du Canada.

Monsieur le président, je puis vous dire que nos anciens et
nos dirigeants partout au Canada sont de cet avis. Ces senti-
ments ont été répétés 4 maintes reprises a I’occasion de notre
assemblée générale la semaine derniére. Les citoyens des Pre-
miéres nations en ont vraiment assez qu’on leur fasse sentir
qu’ils représentent une minorité de la population canadienne
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on the national agenda. We are getting tired of being regarded
as people whose interests, rights, values and aspirations have
no opportunity for expression in this country.

Just before Christmas, the Assembly of First Nations
appeared before the Standing Committee on Aboriginal
Affairs, as you would say, “in the other place,” and addressed
the major issues of current concern to the First Nations. We
are faced with many social, economic, environmental, educa-
tional, legal and political issues. Specifically, we have critical
issues of housing, child care and child welfare, health, eco-
nomic development and education. In addition, the practice of
our treaty rights and aboriginal rights, including hunting and
fishing, are all crucial issues of our livelihood and day-to-day
living.

Let me be more specific.

In this rich country there is still a critical shortage of quality
housing in the First Nations communities. An estlma_ted
10,000 new houses are required and a similar number of exist-
ing homes need repairs just to bring them up to a s}andard
enjoyed by the majority of Canadians. Current housing pro-
grams are outdated and are totally inadequate as far as fund-
ing levels are concerned. First Nations housing must become a
national priority for this government. Serious efforts must be
made to complete the on-reserve housing policy review, a pro-
cess which was begun in 1987 and which has yet to be com-
pleted by the Department of Indian Affairs and Northern
Development.

Reducing the disparity in the level of health between
Canadian and First Nations citizens is also an area of utmost
concern. Today the First Nations infant mortality rate is twice
the national average. Life expectancy—62.4 years for males
and 69 for females—is comparable to Third World countries.
Suicide rates for our youth between ages 15 to 19 are almost
seven times the national average. It is unjustifiable, given this
country’s high living standards, that our people continue to die
from respiratory and infectious disease at an alarming rate,
four times the national average.

A little over four years ago Medical Services Branch under-
took a study entitled “costing the gap”. The purpose of this
study was to identify the costs required to raise the health sta-
tus of our people. This exercise was abandoned, ar_1d for the
past two years the branch has continued to cut Indian health
costs even more. The current Minister of Health and Welfare
says that he is committed to “closing the gap”, but he has yet
to say when. )

Complicating matters is the government’s policy on Indian
health transfer. Touted by the federal government as a recog-
nition of self-government, this policy is everything but that. It
is a transfer of administrative authority only. Under the
scheme, the Minister retains ultimate contro! over st.andards,
budgeting and the types of health programs First Nations gov-
ernments can offer their citizens. Our governments are asked

[Traduction)

qui ne mérite pas beaucoup d’attention dans les programmes
nationaux. Nous en avons assez d’étre considérés comme un
peuple qui n’a aucune chance d’exprimer ses intéréts, ses
droits, ses valeurs et ses aspirations au Canada.

Peu avant Nogl, I'’Assemblée des premiéres nations a com-
paru devant le Comité permanent des affaires autochtones de
«’autre endroit», ol nous avons traité des grandes questions
d’actualité qui intéressent les Premiéres nations. Nous sommes
confrontés & nombre de problémes sociaux, économiques, éco-
logiques, éducationnels, légaux et politiques. Je pense particu-
licrement aux problémes critiques que nous connaissons dans
les domaines du logement, des garderies, du bien-étre des
enfants, de la santé, du développement économique et de I’édu-
cation. Nos droits émanant des traités et les droits aborigi-
naux, y compris la péche et la chasse, constituent de plus des
aspects critiques de notre vie quotidienne.

Permettez-moi de vous donner des précisions.

Dans ce riche pays qu’est le ndtre, une pénurie critique de
logements de qualité sévit encore dans les communautés des
Premiéres nations. On estime qu’il faut 10 000 nouvelles mai-
sons et qu’autant de maisons existantes ont besoin de répara-
tions simplement pour leur donner une qualité qui équivaut a
celle dont bénéficient la majorité des Canadiens. Les program-
mes de logement actuels sont désuets et leur financement est
tout a fait insuffisant. Le logement des Premiéres nations doit
devenir une priorité nationale pour le gouvernement actuel. Il
faut faire des efforts sérieux pour terminer la revue des politi-
ques relatives au logement sur les réserves, entreprise en 1987
et que le ministére des Affaires indiennes et du Nord canadien
n’a pas encore terminée.

Il est aussi trés crucial de refermer I’écart qui existe dans le
domaine de la santé entre les Canadiens et les citoyens des Pre-
miéres nations. Le taux actuel de mortalité infantile des Pre-
micres nations est deux fois plus élevé que la moyenne natio-
nale. L’espérance de vie, qui est de 62,4 ans chez les hommes
et de 69 ans chez les femmes, est comparable 4 celle des pays
du Tiers-Monde. Les taux de suicide chez nos jeunes de 15 4
19 ans sont presque sept fois plus élevés que la moyenne natio-
nale. Etant donné le niveau de vie élevé au Canada, il est injus-
tifiable que nos citoyens continuent de mourir de maladies res-
piratoires et infectieuses 4 un taux alarmant et quatre fois plus
élevé que la moyenne nationale.

La Direction générale des services médicaux a entrepris, il y
a un peu plus de quatre ans, une étude sur I’établissement du
coit de Iécart afin d’établir ce qu’il en codterait pour relever
le niveau de santé de nos gens. On a laissé tomber ’étude et
depuis deux ans, la Direction réduit constamment les dépense;
consacrées 4 la santé des Indiens. L’actuel ministre de la Santé
et du Bien-étre affirme vouloir «refermer ’écart, mais il n’a
pas encore dit quand.

La politique fédérale sur les budgets affectés  la santé des
Indiens vient compliquer la situation. Le gouvernement fédéral
prétend qu’il s’agit d’une reconnaissance de I’autonomie politi-
que, mais c’est loin d’étre le cas. Il s’agit uniquement d’un
transfert de pouvoirs administratifs. Dans le cadre de ce
régime, le ministre continue de contrdler les normes, les bud-
gets et les programmes de santé que les gouvernements des
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to assume all the headaches with no real authority or resources
to do an effective and responsible job. That is why self-govern-
ment with adequate fiscal arrangements is so important in our
aspirations. Without a definite and timely commitment to
“closing the gap”, our people will continue to reject this and
any other process.

In 1988 the assembly produced a comprehensive four-
volume report on Indian education, which we will table with
you today—the result of an extensive four-year community
consultation process. In it we estimated that a total cost of
between $411 million and $552.5 million was required to cover
school capital costs for upgrading facilities, the backlog in
school classrooms and additional space for children of rein-
stated parents returning to the reserve. The 5 per cent capping
of Indian Affairs ca